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Introduction
The Public Accounts of the Province of Prince Edward Island are presented through the
publication of Volume 1, the audited consolidated financial statements, Volume II, the financial
statements of the Operating Fund and the details of revenues and expenses of the Operating
Fund, and Volume III (Part A and B) which presents a reproduction of the available audited
financial statements of the Province’s Agencies, Boards and Crown Corporations.

Internet Address – Volumes I, II, and III (Part A and B) of the Public Accounts are available in
PDF format on the Province’s Website:
https://www.princeedwardisland.ca/en/topic/public-accounts
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June 29, 2021
Independent Auditor's Report
To the Board of Directors of The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Charlottetown Area Development
Corporation, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at March 31, 2021, and the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation as at March 31, 2021, and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of The Charlottetown Area Development
Corporation in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing The Charlottetown
Area Development Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing The Charlottetown Area Development
Corporation’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:
(1)
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!

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

!

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of The
Charlottetown Area Development Corporation’s internal control.

!

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

!

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause The Charlottetown Area Development
Corporation to cease to continue as a going concern.

!

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Chartered Professional Accountants

(2)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended March 31, 2021
2021
$

2020
$

Retained earnings - Beginning of year

4,873,898

3,836,279

Net earnings for the year

1,159,472

1,037,619

Retained earnings - End of year

6,033,370

4,873,898

(4)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended March 31, 2021
2021
$

2020
$

147,017
137,683
25,951

152,400
156,796
14,563
35,715

310,651

359,474

20,286
34,791
36,446
15,257
2,625
98,609
56,935
126,553
25,078
591,455
7,320

74,947
100,000
14,168
2,414
125,568
42,030
71,807
21,895
2,294
527,705
6,174

1,015,355

989,002

Revenue
Management fee (note 17)
Interest
Interest on investment in leases
Miscellaneous

Expenses
Concept planning
Directors' fees (note 18)
Doubtful accounts
Insurance
Interest and bank charges
Interest on long-term debt (note 17)
Office operations and sundry
Professional fees
Telephone
Travel
Wages and benefits (notes 16 and 18)
Depreciation

Operating loss

(704,704)

(629,528)

946,710
401,355
(29,718)
247,196
395,257
(79,599)
(579)
(16,446)

925,364
135,051
128,167
248,814
294,600
(64,276)
(573)
-

Other income (expense)
Harbourside Complex (Schedule 1)
Invesco Building (Schedule 2)
Peake's Wharf (Schedule 3)
CGI Building (Schedule 4)
Biocommons (Schedule 5)
Venue Site and Parking Lot (Schedule 6)
Convention Centre (Schedule 7)
Loss on sale of investment property

Net earnings for the year

(5)

1,864,176

1,667,147

1,159,472

1,037,619
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2021
2021
$

2020
$

1,159,472

1,037,619

11,470
1,117,646
16,446
(629,391)

10,040
1,093,349
(628,882)

1,675,643

1,512,126

Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Net earnings for the year
Items not affecting cash
Depreciation of property and equipment
Depreciation of investment properties
Loss on sale of property inventory
Depreciation of deferred credits
Net change in non-cash working capital items
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable
Decrease (increase) in prepaid deposits and expenses
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities

602,041
41,878
348,685
2,668,247

(590,378)
(31,334)
(106,984)
783,430

Financing activities
Increase in long-term debt
Repayment of demand loan
Repayment of long-term debt
Increase in deferred credits- net
Decrease in deferred revenue

(2,929,000)
(572,811)
1,219,449
(96,696)

7,429,000
(105,000)
(1,128,401)
104,306
(96,696)

(2,379,058)

6,203,209

(83,098)
255,950
(13,235)
(643,064)
2,976,731
(4,136,070)

(109,666)
562,914
(17,454)
12,538
(7,939,309)
-

(1,642,786)

(7,490,977)

(1,353,597)

(504,338)

Investing activities
Increase in property inventory
Proceeds on sale of property inventory
Decrease in investment in leases
Purchase of property and equipment
Decrease (increase) in investment properties
Decrease (increase) in mortgages receivable
Increase in properties held for development

Decrease in cash
Cash - Beginning of year

6,385,472

6,889,810

Cash - End of year

5,031,875

6,385,472

(6)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

1

General information
The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation was established to provide innovation, investment, and
expertise for individual projects of economic and social benefit that government or the private sector are not
prepared to execute alone.
The corporation is owned by the Province of Prince Edward Island, the City of Charlottetown and the Town of
Stratford and is, therefore, a non-taxable entity under the provisions of the Income Tax Act.
The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation's head office is located in Charlottetown, Prince Edward
Island.
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).
These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on June 29, 2021.

2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(a)

Basis of measurement
These consolidated financial statements have been presented on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments as indicated in note 2(e).

(b)

Basis of consolidation
These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of The Charlottetown Area Development
Corporation and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Harbourside Management Services Inc.

(c)

Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is The Charlottetown
Area Development Corporation's functional currency.

(d)

Foreign currency translation
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of The Charlottetown Area
Development Corporation at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at that date. Foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the
difference between cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period or at the reporting
date if a current year transaction, and the cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the
end of the reporting period. Foreign currency differences arising on the translation are recognized in
the statement of comprehensive income.

(7)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021
(e)

Financial instruments
i)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
A financial asset is classified as the following measurement categories:
Amortized cost;
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); or
Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).
The classification of financial assets is generally based on the business model in which a
financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics. The corporation's
financial assets consist of cash measured at FVTPL and accounts receivable, investment in
leases and mortgages receivable measured at amortized cost. The corporation's financial
liabilities consist of accounts payable and accrued liabilities, demand loans and long-term debt
measured at amortized cost.

ii)

Fair value
Fair value of a financial asset or liability is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants in the
principal,or in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the corporation has access
at the measurement date.
The corporation measures instruments carried at fair value under the following fair value
hierarchy. The different levels have been defined as follows:
Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (ie. as prices) or indirectly (ie. derived from prices);
and
Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

iii)

Impairment
An expected credit loss ("ECL") model applies to financial assets measured at amortized cost.
The corporation's financial assets measured at amortized cost and subject to the ECL model
consist of accounts receivable, mortgages receivable and investment in leases which has a
significant low credit risk due to the nature of the counterparties involved and historical
default experienced. The corporation applied the simplified approach in calculating ECL for
these amounts. The impact was negligible on the carrying amounts of the corporation's
financial assets on the transition date.

(f)

Cash
Cash includes cash on hand and deposits held with banks.
(8)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021
(g)

Investment properties
Investment properties includes buildings held to earn rental income and properties that are under
construction or development for future use as investment properties.
(i)

Property inventory
Properties being developed for resale are accounted for in accordance with IAS 2 – Inventories
and are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of property inventory is
comprised of the original purchase, costs of conversion to prepare the property for resale and
borrowing costs incurred during that period. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less selling costs and costs to complete development. To the
extent there have been write-downs to net realizable value, the reversal of these write-downs is
recognized in the subsequent period should net realizable value recover. Property inventory
expected to be sold within a year is reported as a current asset.

(ii) Investment properties
Initially, investment properties are recorded at cost, including transaction costs which include
transfer taxes and various professional fees. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
The corporation allocates the amount recognized in respect of each item in investment properties
to its significant components and depreciates each component separately.
Depreciation is recognized so as to write-off the cost less the residual values over the useful lives
of the assets using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at each year-end with the effect of any changes in estimates
accounted for on a prospective basis. Depreciation rates are as follows:
Land improvements
Buildings

40 years
1.33% - 4%

Investment property is derecognized when it has been disposed of or permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on
retirement or disposal of investment properties are recognized in the income statement in the year
of retirement or disposal.
(iii) Investment properties under development
The cost of development properties includes direct development costs, realty taxes and borrowing
costs directly attributable to the development. Investment properties under development are
recorded at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Once development has been completed, the properties are transferred to investment properties and
depreciated accordingly.

(9)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021
(h)

Property and equipment
Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes expenditures
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Subsequent expenditures are included in
the asset’s carrying amount or are recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to The Charlottetown Area
Development Corporation and the cost can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are
charged to expenses during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Depreciation is calculated using the declining balance method as follows:
Equipment
Computer
Automotive

20% and 33.3%
30%
30%

The useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each statement
of financial position date. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. No property and equipment were
identified as impaired as at March 31, 2021.
Gains and losses on disposals of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds to
the net book value of the asset and are presented as a gain or loss on disposal in the statement of
comprehensive income.
(i)

Retiring allowance
The Corporation provides a retiring allowance to its employees. The amount paid to eligible
employees at retirement is one week of pay for each year of service and the rate of pay in effect at the
retirement date. The retirement pay benefits are accrued on an annual basis, starting retroactively in
2017, and are reflected in accounts payable and accrued liabilities.

(j)

Government assistance and capital donations
Grants relating to general operations are recorded as revenue in the period in which they are received
or receivable. Grants relating to the delivery of specific programs are recorded as revenue in the
period in which the related expenditures are made.
Government assistance received relating to property and equipment, investment properties and
investment properties under development are recorded as deferred credits and are depreciated on the
same basis as the related assets are being depreciated.

(10)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021
(k)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from rental operations is recognized over the terms of the leases when collection is
reasonably assured.
Management fees - leasing is based on market rates for financing and administering rental operations
and the City's three parkades.
Interest income and interest on investment in leases is recorded in the period earned.

(l)

Impairment of assets
At the end of each reporting period, non-financial assets, such as investment properties, are assessed
for any indication of impairment. Should the indication of impairment exist, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the corporation estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is defined as the higher of an asset’s “fair value less cost to sell” and its “value in
use”. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk
specific to the asset for which the estimate of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
When the carrying amount of an asset exceeds the recoverable amount determined, an impairment loss
is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. After the recognition of an impairment loss,
the depreciation charge related to that asset is also revised for the adjusted carrying amount on a
systematic basis over the remaining useful life of an asset. Should this impairment loss be determined
to be reversed in a future period, a reversal of the impairment loss is recorded in the statement of
earnings. However, the reversal of an impairment loss will not increase the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized.

(m)

Related parties
A related party is a person or an entity that is related to The Charlottetown Area Development
Corporation.
A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to The Charlottetown Area Development
Corporation if that person:
i)

Has control or joint control over The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation, with the
power to govern The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation’s financial and operating
policies;

(11)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021
ii) Has significant influence over The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation, participating in
financial and operating policy decisions, but not control over these policies; or
iii) Is a member of the key management personnel of The Charlottetown Area Development
Corporation. Key management personnel, consistent with the definition under IAS 24, Related
Party Disclosures, are persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation, directly or
indirectly, including any director of The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation.
(n)

Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and report amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and
expenses during the period. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.
The judgments that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
statements are detailed in note 3.

3

Critical accounting estimates and judgments
The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future
that will, by definition, seldom equal actual results. These estimates and judgments have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the period the assumptions
changed. The principal areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity and/or area which require
significant estimates are described below:
(a)

Provision for losses
The expected credit loss model requires the recognition of credit losses based on up to 12 months of
expected losses for performing loans and the recognition of lifetime losses on performing loans that
have experienced a significant credit risk since origination.
The determination of a significant increase in credit risk takes into account many different factors
since origination, and certain other criteria, such as delinquencies. The assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk requires experienced credit judgment.
In determining whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and in calculating the
amount of expected credit losses, we must rely on estimates and exercise judgment regarding matters
for which the ultimate outcome is unknown. These judgments include changes in circumstances that
may cause future assessments of credit risk to be materially different from current assessments, which
could require an increase or decrease in the allowance for credit losses.
(12)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021
(b)

Estimated useful lives of property and equipment and investment properties
Management estimates the useful lives of property and equipment and investment properties based on
the period during which assets are expected to be available for use. The amounts and timing of
recorded depreciation expense of property and equipment and investment properties for any period are
affected by these estimated useful lives. The estimates are reviewed at least annually and are updated
if expectations change as a result of physical wear and tear and legal and other limits to use. It is
possible that changes in these factors may cause changes in the estimated useful lives of The
Charlottetown Area Development Corporation’s property and equipment and investment properties in
the future.

(c)

COVID-19
Since January 31, 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 (coronavirus) has resulted in governments
worldwide enacting emergency measures to combat the spread of the virus. These measures have
caused material disruption to businesses globally resulting in an economic slowdown, and global
equity markets have experienced significant volatility. The duration and impact of the COVID-19
outbreak is unknown at this time, as is the outcome of government and central bank interventions.
The company has concluded that these events have not had a material impact on the carrying value of
assets and liabilities reported in these consolidated financial statements as at March 31, 2021. The
duration and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic remains unclear at this time. Therefore, it is not
possible to reliably estimate the duration and severity of these consequences, as well as their impact on
the financial position and results of the company for future periods.

(13)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

4

Financial instruments
Fair values versus carrying amounts
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the statement of
financial position, are as follows:
2021
Carrying
amount
$
Financial assets
Cash
Accounts receivables
Mortgages receivable

Financial liabilities
Demand loans
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Long-term debt

5

Fair
value
$

2020
Carrying
amount
$

Fair
value
$

5,031,875
839,621
4,962,578

5,031,875
839,621
4,962,578

6,385,472
1,441,662
7,939,309

6,385,472
1,441,662
7,939,309

10,834,074

10,834,074

15,766,443

15,766,443

Level 1

10,326,067

10,326,067

13,255,067

13,255,067

Level 2
Level 1

2,015,884
9,549,330

2,015,884
9,549,330

1,667,199
10,122,140

1,667,199
10,122,140

21,891,281

21,891,281

25,044,406

25,044,406

Level 1
Level 2
Level 1

Accounts receivable

Trade receivable
Funding receivables
Other receivables
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

2021
$

2020
$

663,282
268,348
63,536
(155,545)

432,838
1,144,935
13,889
(150,000)

839,621

1,441,662

Continuity of allowance for doubtful accounts
2021
$

2020
$

Balance - beginning of year
Provision for doubtful accounts

150,000
5,545

50,000
100,000

Balance - end of year

155,545

150,000

(14)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

6

Mortgages receivable
2021
$
Bankers' acceptance rate plus 1.25% mortgage, due March 2022
6% mortgage, due October 2029, repayable in monthly
installments of $5,256, including principal and interest
Bankers' acceptance rate plus 1.25% mortgage, received during
the year

Less: Current portion

2020
$

4,500,000

4,500,000

462,578

460,305

-

2,979,004

4,962,578

7,939,309

4,536,780

3,015,784

425,798

4,923,525

The Bankers' acceptance rates at March 31, 2021 was 0.4125% and are subject to change based on the changes
in the related borrowing.

7

Property inventory
2021
$

2020
$

Balance - beginning of year
Add: Capitalized expenditures
Add: Capitalized interest
Less: Disposals

3,424,515
20,931
62,167
(272,396)

3,314,849
9,853
99,813
-

Balance - end of year

3,235,217

3,424,515

The corporation expects these properties to be completed within their normal operating cycle for such
properties, which may extend beyond one year.

(15)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

8

Property and equipment
Equipment
$

Automotive
$

Total
$

Cost
Balance - March 31, 2020
Additions

749,796
5,000

147,779
8,235

35,921
-

933,496
13,235

Balance - March 31, 2021

754,796

156,014

35,921

946,731

Accumulated depreciation
Balance - March 31, 2020
Current year depreciation

731,313
4,150

130,544
6,406

32,874
914

894,731
11,470

Balance - March 31, 2021

735,463

136,950

33,788

906,201

18,483
19,333

17,235
19,064

3,047
2,133

38,765
40,530

Carrying value
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2021

9

Computer
$

Investment properties
Land
$

Land
Improvements
$

Buildings
$

Total
$

Cost
Balance - March 31, 2020
Capitalized expenditures

4,902,781
8,088

3,759,202
568,188

56,350,981
66,788

65,012,964
643,064

Balance - March 31, 2021

4,910,869

4,327,390

56,417,769

65,656,028

Accumulated depreciation
Balance - March 31, 2020
Depreciation

-

1,581,414
153,229

13,317,960
964,417

14,899,374
1,117,646

Balance - March 31, 2021

-

1,734,643

14,282,377

16,017,020

4,902,781
4,910,869

2,177,788
2,592,747

43,033,021
42,135,392

50,113,590
49,639,008

Carrying value
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2021

The fair value of the investment properties is estimated to be $34,510,000 (2020 - $31,200,000).
The carrying value of the investment properties is reduced by the $35,383,196 (2020 - $34,793,138) balance in
deferred credits to get a net book value of the investment properties of $14,255,973 (2020 - $16,244,044) for
purposes of evaluating that fair value exceeds carrying value.
(16)
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March 31, 2021
Independent valuations were completed by accredited appraisal firms for six of the seven investment
properties in 2017 and 2018 which represented 93% of the 2019 portfolio. In 2020 three of the six investment
properties appraised in 2017 and 2018 were revalued internally by management along with the property
previously valued internally reducing the percentage of properties valued by accredited appraisal firms to 12%.
Management's internal valuation model is based on the capitalization rate of normalized income by property
using specific capitalization rates. Management determined the normalized income for each property based on
current rents and assumptions about occupancy.
Investment property valuations are most sensitive to changes in the capitalization rates. The weighted average
of the capitalization rate used is 6.0% with a range of 5.0% to 7.0%.
The impact of a 10% change in the capitalization rate used to value the investment properties would affect the
fair value calculation as follows:
!
!

a 10% increase in the capitalization rate would result in a fair value amount of $37,927,000.
a 10% decrease in the capitalization rate would result in a fair value amount of $31,086,000.

10 Investment properties under development

Balance - March 31,
2020
Additions acquisitions
Balance - March 31,
2021

Land
improvements

2021

2020

Land

Buildings

Total

$

$

$

$

$

$

290,425

-

-

290,425

290,425

289,306

-

3,846,764

4,136,070

-

579,731

-

3,846,764

4,426,495

290,425

(17)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

11 Demand loans
2021
$
Prime minus .1% demand loan, due on demand, interest paid
monthly
Bankers' acceptance rate plus .75% stamping fee demand
loan, due on demand, interest paid monthly
Bankers' acceptance rate plus .75% stamping fee demand
loan, due on demand, interest paid monthly
Prime minus .1% demand loan, due on demand, repaid during
the year

2020
$

2,631,601

2,631,601

4,500,000

4,500,000

3,194,466

2,929,000

-

3,194,466

10,326,067

13,255,067

The Prime rate was 2.45% at March 31, 2021. The Bankers' acceptance borrowing rate for the March 31, 2021
loans was 0.4125% plus the stamping fee.

12 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
2021
$
Trade payables
Property taxes payable
HST payable (receivable)
Other

959,378
288,324
(185,311)
953,493
2,015,884

(18)

2020
$
371,053
283,253
115,533
897,360
1,667,199
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
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March 31, 2021

13 Long-term debt
2021
$

2020
$

Debentures
Mortgages payable
2.95% mortgage, due February 2022, repayable in monthly
instalments of $21,578, including principal and interest
2.92% mortgage, due April 2023, repayable in monthly instalments
of $16,518 including principal and interest
3.11% mortgage, due April 2023, repayable in monthly instalments
of $9,410, including principal and interest
4.18% mortgage, due November 2021, repayable in monthly
instalments of $6,092, including principal and interest
2.48% mortgage, due June 2030, repayable in monthly instalments of
$18,568, including principal and interest

Less: Current portion

2,689,849

2,866,439

2,028,107

2,164,608

1,142,625

1,218,722

425,265

479,520

3,263,484

3,392,852

9,549,330

10,122,141

568,376

3,836,604

8,980,954

6,285,537

Based on the refinancing of long-term debt indicated below, the aggregate amount of principal repayments
required in each of the next five years to meet retirement provisions are as follows:
$
Year ending March 31, 2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

568,376
613,908
1,531,075
563,346
579,214

Security on long-term debt and demand loans
The 2.95%, 2.92%, 3.11%, 4.18% and 2.48% mortgages and the demand loans are secured by a general
security agreement representing a first charge on all assets, continuing collateral mortgages representing a first
charge on all real property known as Harbourside Complex and an undertaking not to encumber or mortgage
the property at 119 Euston Street, assignment of mortgage receivable and fire insurance for Harbourside
Complex and general assignment of rents representing a first charge on rents on the Harbourside Complex.
Refinancing of long-term debt
On June 8, 2021, the Corporation renewed $2,689,849 and $2,028,107 of its maturing mortgages payable. The
amounts have been renewed at interest rates of 2.60% and 2.73%, respectively, and with new respective
maturity dates of June 1, 2031 and June 22, 2026.
(19)
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March 31, 2021

14 Deferred credits
Accumulated
depreciation
$

Cost
$
Harbourside Complex
Peakes Wharf
CGI Building
Invesco Building
Biocommons
Venue Site - Event Space
Convention Centre
Venue Site - Parking lot
BioScience Incubator project

2021

2020

Net
$

Net
$

117,500
619,428
4,124,499
4,625,000
2,000,000
1,484,582
27,119,979
1,068,638
1,350,000

9,720
374,561
1,634,199
1,445,887
216,837
732,945
2,456,607
255,674
-

107,780
244,867
2,490,300
3,179,113
1,783,163
751,637
24,663,372
812,964
1,350,000

99,882
259,756
2,583,708
3,281,977
1,808,675
780,281
24,991,252
847,056
140,551

42,509,626

7,126,430

35,383,196

34,793,138

During the year, $1,219,450 (2020 -$140,551) in deferred credit additions was the result of receiving a
government grant to fund ongoing projects by The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation, and nil
(2020 - $36,248) in deferred credit disposals.

15 Capital stock
Authorized
5,000 common shares of the par value of $1 each
2021
$
Issued
2,500 common shares

2,500

2020
$
2,500

16 Pension
Employees, who are members, contribute a minimum of 5% of earnings to a defined contribution pension plan.
The corporation matches 100% of the minimum contribution. Pension expense for the year was $42,919 (2020
- $41,938).

17 Related party transactions
Related parties
The Province of Prince Edward Island is the majority shareholder of The Charlottetown Area Development
Corporation and the City of Charlottetown and the Town of Stratford are minority shareholders.

(20)
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Balances
Included in accounts receivable and accounts payable and accrued liabilities are the following amounts due to
and from related parties:
2021
2020
$
$
Accounts receivable
Due from the City of Charlottetown
Due from the Province of Prince Edward Island

15,119
15,000

567,455
381,909

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to the City of Charlottetown
Due to Province of Prince Edward Island
Due to Stratford Utility Corporation

(10,743)
92,017
-

12,688
77,640
1,292

Deferred revenue
Province of Prince Edward Island

346,568

443,264

Transactions
During the year, the Corporation received $740,489 (2020 - $756,990) from the Province of Prince Edward
Island for commercial rental revenue recorded in Harbourside Complex and $122,407 (2020 - $128,108) from
a provincial Crown corporation recorded as rental revenue in Biocommons. The Corporation reported $96,696
(2020 - $96,696) in commercial rental revenue in Harbourside Complex for deferred revenue from the
Province of Prince Edward Island being recognized in the fiscal period. In addition, the corporation received
$97,017 (2020 - $152,400) in management fee revenue from the City of Charlottetown for managing the
parkades.
During the year, the Corporation expensed interest on long-term debt of nil (2020 - $4,817) paid to the
Province of Prince Edward Island.

18 Composition of key management
Key management includes the general manager, assistant general manager and controller. Compensation
awarded to key management included:

(21)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021
(a) Key management, excluding directors

Salaries and short-term employee benefits

2021
$

2020
$

302,286

300,782

2021
$

2020
$

34,791

-

(b) Directors' remuneration

Honorariums

19 Commitments
Property Development Commitments
During the year, the corporation entered into various construction contracts in relation to two investment
property development projects. At March 31, 2021, committed construction contracts totaled $14,000,000 with
$9,863,931 yet to be disbursed. Funding commitments for the related projects totals $14,000,000, which
includes $12,000,000 in repayable loans. Funding of $1,350,000 was received by March 31, 2021, with
$12,650,000 expected to be received subsequent to March 31, 2021.
Subsequent to March 31, 2021, the corporation entered into additional construction contracts totaling $615,844
in relation to two investment property development projects. Funding commitments for the related future
projects total $175,844.

20 Subsequent event
Subsequent to March 31, 2021, the Province of Prince Edward Island sold 50 of their existing shares in the
corporation to the Town of Cornwall.

21 Risk management
The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation’s principal business activities result in a Statement of
Financial Position that exposes it to a variety of financial risks. The principal financial risks that arise from
transacting financial instruments include credit, liquidity, market and operational risk. Authority for all risktaking activities rests with the Board of Directors (Board), which approves risk management policies,
delegates limits and regularly reviews management’s risk assessments and compliance with approved policies.
Qualified professionals throughout The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation manage these risks
through comprehensive and integrated control processes, including regular review and assessment of risk
measurement and reporting processes.

(22)
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March 31, 2021
(a)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation if a
member or counterparty of a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk
arises primarily from The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation’s mortgages receivable.
Credit risk also arises from the possibility that tenants may experience financial difficulty and be
unable to fulfil their lease term commitments. The corporation mitigates this risk of credit loss
through diversification of it existing portfolio and limiting its exposure to any one tenant. Credit
assessments are conducted with respect to all new leasing and the corporation also obtains a security
deposit to assist in potential recovery requirements. The receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the corporation establishes an appropriate provision for doubtful accounts.
Credit risk is the single largest risk for The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation’s business;
management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit risk. Oversight for the credit risk
management and control is done by management who reports to the Board.
The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the statement
of financial position date in relation to each class of recognized financial assets is the carrying amount
of those assets indicated in the statement of financial position. The maximum credit exposure does not
take into account the value of any collateral or other security held, in the event other entities or parties
fail to perform their obligations under the financial instruments in question. The principal collateral
and other credit enhancements The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation holds as security for
loans include insurance and mortgages over residential lots and properties, and recourse to liquid
assets, guarantees and rents. The value of collateral held against individual exposures is generally
only assessed at the time of borrowing or when a specific review of that exposure is undertaken in
accordance with policy.
The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date was:
2021
2020
$
$
Cash
Accounts receivable
Mortgages receivable

5,031,875
839,621
4,962,578

6,385,472
1,441,662
7,939,309

10,834,074

15,766,443

Cash has low credit risk exposure as this asset is cash at chartered banks. The Charlottetown Area
Development Corporation reviews the member’s capacity to repay the receivables rather than relying
exclusively on collateral, although it is an important component in establishing risk. See note 2(e) (iii)
for further disclosure of impairment of financial instruments.

(23)
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(b)

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation will encounter
difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities as they come due.
The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that
it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to The Charlottetown Area
Development Corporation’s reputation.
Exposure to liquidity risk:
For this purpose, liquid assets are financial assets that are readily saleable or expected to generate cash
inflows to meet cash outflows on financial liabilities. Consequently, cash inflows by remaining
maturities are as follows:
Under 1
year
$
Cash
Accounts receivable
Mortgages receivable

Over 1 to
5 years
$

2021
Total
$

5,031,875
839,621
4,536,780

170,926

254,872

5,031,875
839,621
4,962,578

10,408,276

170,926

254,872

10,834,074

Under 1
year
$
Cash
Accounts receivable
Mortgage receivable

Over
5 years
$

Over 1 to
5 years
$

Over
5 years
$

2020
Total
$

6,385,472
1,441,662
3,015,784

4,670,926

252,599

6,385,472
1,441,662
7,939,309

10,842,918

4,670,926

252,599

15,766,443

(24)
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Cash flows payable under financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities are as follows:
Under 1
year
$
Demand loans
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Long-term debt

Over 1 to
5 years
$

March 31,
2021
Total
$

10,326,067

-

-

10,326,067

2,015,884
568,376

3,287,543

5,693,411

2,015,884
9,549,330

12,910,327

3,287,543

5,693,411

21,891,281

Under 1
year
$
Demand loans
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Long-term debt

Over
5 years
$

Over 1 to
5 years
$

Over
5 years
$

March 31,
2020
Total
$

13,255,067

-

-

13,255,067

1,667,199
3,836,604

6,101,101

184,436

1,667,199
10,122,141

18,758,870

6,101,101

184,436

25,044,407

(c) Market risk
Market risk is the risk of exposure to changes to financial prices affecting the value of positions held by
The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation as part of its normal trading activities. As The
Charlottetown Area Development Corporation does not deal in foreign exchange contracts or
commodities, market risk consists solely of interest rate risk. The objective of market rate risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimizing the return on risk.
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The borrowings of the corporation have fixed and floating
rate interest components resulting in an exposure to interest rate movements. The corporation’s debt
consists of $9,549,330 (2020 - $10,122,14) in fixed rate debt and $10,326,067 (2020 - $13,255,067) in
floating rate debt which is all in demand loans. The corporation has entered into interest rate swaps in
order to manage the fluctuating interest rates on $9,549,330 (2020 - $9,642,621) of its debt. The swap
contracts have an effective interest rate range of 2.92% to 3.11% and have maturity dates ranging from
February 2022 until February 2030.

(25)
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The following table provides the potential impact of an immediate and sustained 1% increase or decrease
in interest rates on net interest expense, assuming no further hedging is undertaken. These measures are
based on assumptions made by management. All interest rate risk measures are based upon interest rate
exposures at a specific time and continuously change as a result of business activities and The
Charlottetown Area Development Corporation’s management initiatives.
Net interest
expense
2021
$
1% increase or decrease in interest rates

103,260

Net interest
expense
2020
$
132,551

(d) Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with
The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure,
and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and
regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour.
The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to
balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage to The Charlottetown Area Development
Corporation’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that restrict
initiative and creativity. The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls
to address operational risk is assigned to senior management.
(e) Capital management
The primary objective of The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation's capital management is to
ensure that it maintains a healthy financial position in order to support its business. The Charlottetown
Area Development Corporation manages its capital structure and makes changes to it in light of changes
in economic conditions.

(26)
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Schedule 1
2021
$

2020
$

1,712,291
939,770

1,657,559
935,722

2,652,061

2,593,281

113,274
72,853
155,671
231,355
57,723
33,319
445,069
336,712
2,076
1,988
29,460
1,247
224,604

79,306
111,889
158,449
301,876
67,423
29,059
421,831
250,058
6,839
3,001
31,542
5,037
201,607

1,705,351

1,667,917

946,710

925,364

Revenue
Rental - commercial (note 17)
- residential

Expenses
Cleaning
Common area
Electricity
Fuel
Heating system
Insurance
Property taxes
Repairs and maintenance
Snow removal
Supplies and miscellaneous
Water
Deblois property expenses
Depreciation

Net revenue

(27)
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Schedule 2
2021
$

Revenue
Rent - commercial
Monthly parking

Expenses
Cleaning
Electricity
Heating system
Insurance
Interest on long-term debt
Property taxes
Repairs and maintenance
Snow removal
Telephone
Water
Depreciation
Depreciation of deferred credits

1,303,028
58,300

1,239,543
63,883

1,361,328

1,303,426

88,724
170,881
56,541
7,226
168,674
289,504
15,892
10,205
4,422
2,547
248,221
(102,864)

Net revenue

(28)

2020
$

148,838
209,912
70,373
6,000
187,106
264,502
119,135
11,108
2,536
3,664
248,066
(102,865)

959,973

1,168,375

401,355

135,051
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Schedule 3
2021
$

Revenue
Base rent
Percentage rent
Parking lot

Expenses
Insurance
Operating, repairs and maintenance
Parking lot
Promotion
Property tax
Interest on long-term debt
Depreciation
Depreciation of deferred credits

Net rental revenue (expense)

(29)

2020
$

45,038
52,203
30,028

60,048
90,144
169,396

127,269

319,588

2,292
41,668
16,931
652
31,853
356
80,223
(16,988)

2,412
60,339
36,854
2,500
25,581
80,223
(16,488)

156,987

191,421

(29,718)

128,167
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Schedule 4
2021
$

2020
$

Revenue
Rent - commercial

513,268

530,708

Expenses
Cleaning
Electricity
Insurance
Interest on long-term debt
Property taxes
Repairs and maintenance
Snow removal
Water
Depreciation
Depreciation of deferred credits

57,504
87,331
3,296
18,841
49,742
26,221
6,220
2,521
107,804
(93,408)

57,941
97,402
2,736
20,976
47,679
23,405
11,905
5,449
107,804
(93,403)

266,072

281,894

247,196

248,814

Net revenue

(30)
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Schedule 5
2021
$

2020
$

Revenue
Rent - commercial (note 17)

748,682

654,378

Expenses
Common area
Electricity
Fuel
Insurance
Interest on long-term debt
Property taxes
Repairs and maintenance
Snow removal
Water
Depreciation
Depreciation of deferred credits

420
19,084
80,216
5,875
61,716
78,167
7,226
9,933
53,869
62,431
(25,512)

730
15,804
79,059
5,052
65,101
76,711
4,746
11,403
64,284
62,398
(25,510)

353,425

359,778

395,257

294,600

Net revenue
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Schedule 6
2021
$

Revenue
Rent - commercial
Expenses
Advertising
Electricity
Fuel
Insurance
Interest on long-term debt
Interest and bank charges
Property taxes
Repairs and maintenance
Snow removal
Supplies
Telephone
Water
Depreciation of deferred credits
Depreciation

Net expense

(32)

2020
$

6,941

35,779

9,459
1,246
1,841
36,862
577
11,824
9,560
690
3,052
4,115
(62,738)
70,052

99
6,342
1,553
4,596
38,412
369
12,701
16,868
4,883
37
3,237
4,284
(62,735)
69,409

86,540

100,055

(79,599)

(64,276)
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Schedule 7
2021
$

Revenue
Recovery of expenses
Expenses
Property tax
Depreciation of deferred credits
Depreciation

Net expense

221,936

137,876

221,936
(327,881)
328,460

137,876
(327,881)
328,454

222,515

138,449

(579)

(33)

2020
$

(573)
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June 22, 2021
Independent Auditor's Report
To the Board of Directors of Island Investment Development Inc.
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Island Investment Development Inc.,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at March 31, 2021, and the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Island Investment Development Inc. as at March 31, 2021, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of Island Investment Development Inc. in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing Island Investment Development
Inc.’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate Island Investment
Development Inc. or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing Island Investment Development Inc.’s financial
reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:
(1)
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!

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

!

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of Island Investment Development Inc.’s internal control.

!

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

!

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on Island Investment Development Inc.'s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause Island Investment Development Inc. to
cease to continue as a going concern.

!

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

Chartered Professional Accountants

(2)
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at March 31, 2021
2021
$

2020
$

Assets
Cash
Marketable securities
Accounts receivable (notes 7 and 17)
Prepaid expense
Inventory (note 15)
Demand loan receivable (note 9)
Notes receivable (note 10)
Advances to related company (note 17)
Investment in private companies (note 11)
Deferred financing costs (note 12)
Investment properties (notes 8 and 15)
Property and equipment (Schedule and note 15)
Restricted funds (note 13)
Cash and marketable securities

19,518,800
13,331,443
7,310,285
377,947
119,466
6,998,482
145,522,391
7,152,986
4,155,397
60,844
13,951,366
3,569,864

18,704,173
5,562,756
6,985,131
44,104
121,272
7,007,465
144,580,842
2,119,298
4,148,387
77,100
12,916,348
3,049,115

72,729,781

121,489,012

294,799,052

326,805,003

3,214,712
5,825,439
72,729,781

2,895,037
7,920,859
121,489,012

81,769,932

132,304,908

213,029,120

194,500,095

294,799,052

326,805,003

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (notes 14 and 17)
Long-term debt (note 15)
Restricted funds (note 13)

Commitments (note 18)

Retained earnings

Approved by the Board of Directors
_____________________________ Director

_____________________________ Director
(3)
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended March 31, 2021

Retained earnings - Beginning of year
Net earnings for the year

Retained earnings - End of year

(4)

2021
$

2020
$

194,500,095

170,360,268

18,529,025

24,139,827

213,029,120

194,500,095
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended March 31, 2021
2021
$

2020
$

7,155,058
2,398,013
1,923,401
10,553,179
10,092,513

6,474,181
3,812,088
1,767,112
16,600,000
11,305,989

32,122,164

39,959,370

84,314
457,156
1,109
461,558
1,320
140,146
537,500
1,620
61,551
193,788
803
7,818,766
629,765
113,260
2,004,905
17,055
1,061,508
16,256

135,334
498,708
29,755
501,338
1,699
135,516
535,326
59,857
105,401
133,200
9,124
8,465,253
2,447,626
64,582
1,678,678
31,926
903,391
63,165

13,602,380

15,799,879

18,519,784

24,159,491

Revenue
Interest on notes and loan receivable (note 17)
Investment income
Provincial Nominee Program fees
Provincial Nominee Program defaults
Property operations (notes 16 and 17)

Expenses
Doubtful accounts
Education contribution
Equipment
Grants - private companies
Interest and bank charges
Interest on notes payable (note 17)
Management fees (note 17)
Meetings and conferences
Office
Professional fees
Promotion and advertising
Property operations (note 17)
Provision for possible losses
Rent (note 17)
Salaries (note 17)
Travel
Amortization
Amortization of deferred financing costs

Operating earnings
Other income (expense)
Gain on sale of property and equipment
Loss from hurricane damages
Insurance recovery from hurricane damages

9,241
(1,142,704)
1,142,704
9,241

Net earnings for the year

18,529,025

(5)

5,336
(513,051)
488,051
(19,664)
24,139,827
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2021
2021
$

2020
$

18,529,025

24,139,827

Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Net earnings for the year
Items not affecting cash
Amortization
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Gain on sale of property and equipment
Provision for possible losses

1,061,508
16,256
(9,241)
629,765
20,227,313

Net change in non-cash working capital items
Increase in accounts receivable
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expense
Decrease in inventory
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities

(325,154)
(333,843)
1,806
319,675

903,391
63,165
(5,336)
2,447,626
27,548,673
(4,563,059)
27,619
27,618
(222,787)

19,889,797

22,818,064

(2,095,420)
(5,033,688)

(14,944,219)
400,986

(7,129,108)

(14,543,233)

(7,010)
(7,768,687)
(48,759,231)
48,759,231
(1,571,314)
8,983
(911,747)
(1,959,491)
253,963
9,241
-

(861,293)
2,691,951
(51,917,524)
51,917,524
(7,999,677)
2,084
(640,762)
(2,036,909)
156,057
5,336
(2,996)

(11,946,062)

(8,686,209)

Financing activities
Decrease in long-term debt - net
Decrease (increase) in advances to related company

Investing activities
Increase in investment in private companies
Decrease (increase) in marketable securities - net
Decrease in restricted funds - cash and marketable securities
Decrease in restricted funds - liability
Increase in notes receivable - net
Decrease in demand loan receivable
Additions to property and equipment
Additions to investment properties
Capital grants received
Proceeds on disposal of property and equipment
Increase in deferred financing costs

Increase (decrease) in cash

814,627

(411,378)

Cash - Beginning of year

18,704,173

19,115,551

Cash - End of year

19,518,800

18,704,173

(6)
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021
1

Reporting entity
The company is a provincial Crown corporation established under the provisions of the Island Investment
Development Inc. Act and is therefore a non-taxable entity under the provisions of the Income Tax Act.
The company is the corporate administrator of government-administered venture capital funds in the Province
of Prince Edward Island with its purpose to invest in active business operations. The investments are made in
typically new or expanding companies. The company also develops and commercializes the real property
assets of the former Canadian Forces Base Summerside. It rents real property to commercial and residential
tenants and operates airport, accomodations, food and beverage and retail divisions.
The company administers the Prince Edward Island Provincial Nominee Program on behalf of the Province of
Prince Edward Island, and charges applicants under the program various fees to process the applications
received.
Island Investment Development Inc.'s head office is located in Charlottetown, Prince Edward Island.
Island Investment Development Inc. prepares its financial statements in compliance with Canadian
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”).
These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on June 22, 2021.

2

Basis of presentation
(a) Basis of consolidation
These financial statements include the operations of Island Investment Development Inc. and its whollyowned subsidiaries, Prince Edward Island Century 2000 Fund Inc. (Century 2000 Fund) and Slemon Park
Corporation.
(b) Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been presented on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments as indicated in note 3(a).
(c) Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the company’s functional currency.

(7)
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021
(d) Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and
expenses during the period. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
The judgments that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements
are detailed in note 5.

3

Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Financial instruments
i)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
The company applies IFRS 9 and classifies its financial assets into one of the following measurement
categories:
!
!
!

Amortized cost;
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); or
Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Financial assets include both debt and equity instruments.
Debt instruments
Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend on:
i)
ii)

the company's business model for managing the asset; and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Business model assessment involves determining how financial assets are managed in order to
generate cash flows. The company's business model assessment is based on the following
categories:
!
!
!

Held to collect: The objective of the business model is to hold assets and collect contractual
cash flows. Any sales of the asset are incidental to the objective of the model.
Held to collect and for sale: Both collecting contractual cash flows and sales are integral to
achieving the objectives of the business model.
Other business model: The business model is neither held-to-collect nor held-to-collect and for
sale.

(8)
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021
The company assesses the business model at a portfolio level reflective of how groups of assets are
managed together to achieve a particular business objective. For the assessment of a business model,
the company takes into consideration the following factors:
!

!
!

Whether the assets are held for trading purposes (ie. assets that the company acquires or incurs
principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term, or holds as part of a
portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit or position taking);
The risks that affect the performance of assets held within a business model and how those risks
are managed; and
The revenue of prior periods and expectations about future revenue activity.

The contractual cash flow characteristics assessment involves assessing the contractual features of an
instrument to determine if they give rise to cash flows that are consistent with a basic lending
arrangement. Contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement if they
represent cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding (SPPI).
Principal is defined as the fair value of the instrument at initial recognition. Principal may change
over the life of the instrument due to repayments or amortization of premium/discount.
Interest is defined as the consideration for the time value of money and the credit risk associated with
the principal amount outstanding and for other basic lending risks and costs (liquidity risk and
administrative costs), and a profit margin.
If the company identifies any contractual features that could significantly modify the cash flows of
the instrument such that they are no longer consistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related
financial asset is classified and measured at FVTPL.
Based on these factors, the company classifies its debt instruments into one of the following three
measurement categories:
Amortized cost
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest ("SPPI"), and that are not designated at FVTPL, are measured at
amortized cost. The carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by any expected credit loss
allowance recognized and measured in note 10. Interest income form these financial assets is
included in 'Interest on notes and loans receivable' using the effective interest rate method.

(9)
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021
Fair value through profit or loss
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognized in profit or loss and
presented in the profit or loss statement within "Investment income" in the period in which it arises,
unless it arises from debt instruments that were designated at fair value or which are not held for
trading, in which case they are presented separately in "Investment income". Interest income from
these financial assets is included in "Investment income" using the effective interest method.
Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets, where
the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are not designated
at FVTPL, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income (OCI), expect for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses on the
instrument's amortized cost which are recognized in profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified form equity to
profit or loss and recognized in "Investment income". Interest income from these financial assets is
included in "Investment income" using the effective interest rate method.
Equity instruments
The company subsequently measures all equity investments at FVTPL, except where the company's
management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity investment at
FVOCI. When this election is used, fair value gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal.
Impairment losses and reversals of impairment losses are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value. Dividends, when representing a return on such investments, continue to be recognized
in profit or loss as other income when the company's right to receive payments is established.
Gains and losses on equity investments at FVTPL are included in "Investment income" in the
statement of comprehensive income.
ii)

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified into one of the following measurement categories:
!
!
!

Amortized cost;
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL);
Designated at FVTPL.

(10)
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Long-term debt and restricted funds are accounted for at amortized cost. Interest on notes payable,
calculated using the effective interest rate method, is recognized as interest expense.
Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL
Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL are held principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term, or form a part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together
and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-making. Financial
liabilities are recognized on a trade date and are accounted for at fair value, with changes in fair
value and any gains or losses recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as part of the
non-interest income. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred.
Financial liabilities designated at FVTPL
Financial liabilities classified in this category are those that have been designated by the company
upon initial recognition, and once designated, the designation is irrevocable. The FVTPL
designation is only available for those financial liabilities for which a reliable estimate of fair value
can be obtained.
Financial liabilities are designated at FVTPL when one of the following criteria is met:
!
!
!

The designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch which would
otherwise arise; or
A group of financial liabilities are managed and their performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk management strategy; or
The financial liability contains one or more embedded derivatives which significantly modify
the cash flows otherwise required.

Financial liabilities designated at FVTPL are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position at fair
value and any changes in fair value are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(11)
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021
iii) Determination of fair value
Fair value of a financial asset or liability is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants in the principal, or in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the company has access at the measurement date.
The company measures instruments carried at fair value under the following fair value hierarchy.
The different levels have been defined as follows:
!
!
!

Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (ie. as prices) or indirectly (ie. derived from prices); and
Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Determination of fair value and the resulting hierarchy requires the use of observable market data
whenever available. The classification in the hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is
significant to the measurement of fair value.
iv) Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
The derecognition criteria are applied to the transfer of part of an asset rather than the asset as a
whole, only if such part comprises specifically identified cash flows from the asset, a fully
proportionate share of the cash flows from the asset, or a fully proportionate share of specifically
identified cash flows from the asset.
A financial asset is derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset has
expired or the company transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial
asset; or has assumed an obligation to pay those cash flows to an independent third-party, or the
company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of that asset to an
independent third-party. Management determines whether substantially all the risk and rewards of
ownership have been transferred by quantitatively comparing the variability in cash flows before and
after the transfer. If the variability in cash flows remains significantly similar subsequent to the
transfer, the company has retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership.
Where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are neither retained
nor transferred, the company derecognizes the transferred asset only if it has lost control over the
asset. Control over the asset is represented by the practical ability to sell the transferred asset. If the
company retains control over the asset, it will continue to recognize the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of (i)
the consideration received and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other
comprehensive income is recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(12)
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled
or expires. If an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same counterparty on
substantially different terms or the terms of the existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability at fair value. The difference in the respective carrying amount of the existing liability
and the new liability is recognized as a gain/loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
v)

Impairment
The company applied a three-stage approach to measure allowance for credit losses, using an
expected credit loss approach as required under IFRS 9 for the financial assets measured at
amortized cost.
The expected credit loss impairment model reflects the present value of all cash shortfalls related to
default events either (i) over the following 12 months or (ii) over the expected life of a financial
instrument.
The impairment model measures credit loss allowances using a three-stage approach based on the
extent of credit deterioration since origination:
!

!

!

Stage 1 – where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
of a financial instrument, an amount equal to 12 months expected credit loss is recorded. The
expected credit loss is computed using a probability of default occurring over the next 12
months. For those instruments with a remaining maturity of less than 12 months, a probability
of default corresponding to remaining term to maturity is used.
Stage 2 – when a financial instrument experiences a credit risk subsequent to origination but is
not considered to be in default, it is included in Stage 2. This requires the computation of
expected credit loss based on the probability of default over the remaining estimated life of the
financial instrument.
Stage 3 – financial instruments that are considered to be in default are included in this stage.
Similar to Stage 2, the allowance for credit losses captures the lifetime expected credit losses.

The probability of default (PD), exposure at default (EAD) and loss given default (LGD) inputs used
to estimate expected credit losses are modelled based on macroeconomic variables that are most
closely related with credit losses in the relevant portfolio.
Details of these statistical inputs are as follows:
!
!

PD – the probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time
horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the remaining estimated life.
EAD – the exposure at default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into
account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of
principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on
committed facilities and accrued interest from missed payments.

(13)

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III - PART B 2020-2021

51

Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021
!

LGD – the loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs
at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those
that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realization of any collateral. It is
usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

At each reporting date, the company assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk for exposures since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the
remaining expected life from the reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The assessment
considers borrower-specific quantitative and qualitative information without consideration of
collateral and the impact of forward-looking macroeconomic factors. Common assessments for
credit risk include management judgment, delinquency and monitoring.
When measuring expected credit loss, the company considers the maximum contractual period over
which the company is exposed to credit risk. All contractual terms are considered when determining
the expected life, including prepayment and extension and rollover options.
The company considers a financial instrument to be in default as a result of one or more loss events
that occurred after the date of initial recognition of the instrument and the loss event has a negative
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the instrument that can be reliably estimated. This
includes events that indicate:
!
!
!
!

Significant financial difficulty of the borrower;
Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
High probability of the borrower entering a phase of bankruptcy or a financial recognition;
Measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from the loan or the underlying assets
that back the loan.

The company considers that default has occurred and classifies the financial asset as impaired when
it is more than 90 days past due.
The company writes off an impaired financial asset, either partially or fully, when there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. Where financial assets are secured, write-off is generally after receipt of any
proceeds from the realization of security. In circumstances where the net realizable value of any
collateral has been determine and there is no reasonable expectation of further recover, write-off may be
earlier.
(b) Cash
Cash consists of cash held in banks and cash on hand. Bank indebtedness is considered to be a
financing instrument.

(14)
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021
(c) Inventory
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs are assigned using the
specific item formula for food inventory. Costs include all expenses directly attributable to the
purchase and delivery of the product to the Company's location. Fuel oil inventory is valued at the
lower of cost and net realizable value and is recorded at invoice cost on a first-in, first-out basis. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less any applicable
selling expenses.
(d) Deferred financing costs
The costs incurred in obtaining financing have been capitalized and are being amortized using the
straight-line basis over the term of the notes payable, which is 60 months.
(e) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying assets are
added to the cost of the assets until they are substantially ready for their intended use. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
(f) Property and equipment
Property and equipment are recorded at the fair value on the transition date of April 1, 2015 to IFRS
for Slemon Park Corporation, a subsidiary, as deemed cost, with additions since that time measured
at historic cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, property and equipment is recorded at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. The company allocates the amount
recognized in respect of each item in property and equipment to its significant components and
amortizes each component separately.
Amortization is recognized so as to write-off the cost less residual values over the useful lives of the
assets. The estimated useful lives, residual values and amortization method are reviewed at each
year-end with the effect of any changes in estimates accounted for on a prospective basis.
Amortization rates are as follows:
Sewer and water infrastructure
Runways and taxiways
Roads and parking areas
Buildings
Heavy equipment
Furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles
Computer equipment and software

2% - 4%
8%
8%
4% - 20%
20%
20%
30%
30%

declining balance
declining balance
declining balance
declining balance
declining balance
declining balance
declining balance
declining balance

As asset's carrying value is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's
carrying amount is higher than its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. No property and equipment
were identified as impaired as at March 31, 2021.

(15)
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Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021
(g) Investment properties
Investment properties include land and buildings, roads and paving held to earn rental income.
Investment properties are recorded at the fair value on the transition date of April 1, 2015 to IFRS of
Slemon Park Corporation, a subsidiary, as deemed cost, with additions since that time measured at
historic cost. Subsequent to its initial recognition, investment properties are recorded at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. The company allocates the amount
recognized in respect of each item in investment properties to its significant components and
amortizes each component separately.
Amortization is recognized so as to write-off the cost less residual values over the useful lives of the
assets. The estimated useful lives, residual values and amortization method are reviewed at each
year-end with the effect of any changes in estimates accounted for on a prospective basis.
Amortization rates are as follows:
Building
Building - roof/shingles
Building - equipment
Building - painting
Building - tenant improvements based on lease term 1 - 5 years
Building - tenant improvements based on lease term 6 - 15
years

4%
6%
8%
10%

declining balance
declining balance
declining balance
declining balance

20% declining balance
10% declining balance

Investment properties are derecognized when it has been disposed of or permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on retirement
or disposal of investment properties are recognized in the income statement in the year of retirement
or disposal.
(h) Capitalization policy - property and equipment and investment properties
Acquisition, construction or development over time:
The cost of constructing a capital asset includes direct construction or development costs (such as
materials and labour) and overhead costs directly attributable to the construction or development
activity.
The cost of capital assets includes the purchase price and other acquisition costs such as installation
costs including architectural, design and engineering fees, legal fees, survey costs, site preparation
costs, freight charges, transportation insurance costs, duties, testing and preparation charges.

(16)
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Betterment:
The cost incurred to enhance the service potential of a capital asset is a betterment. Service potential
may be enhanced when there is an increase in the previously assessed physical output or service
capacity, associated operating costs are lowered, the life or useful life is extended, or the quality of
output is improved. The cost incurred in the maintenance of the service potential of a capital asset is
a repair, not a betterment. If a cost has the attributes of both a repair and a betterment, the portion
considered to be a betterment is included in the cost of the capital asset.
Government assistance:
Government assistance towards acquisition of capital assets is deducted from the related capital
assets with any amortization calculated on the net amount.
Buildings and renovations:
All expenditures that provide future benefit beyond the annual operating period and which are an
integral component of the building are classified as an addition to the building.
(i)

Impairment of long-lived assets
For impairment assessment purposes, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
largely independent cash inflows (cash generating units). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash generating unit level. The company tests
long-lived assets for impairment on an annual basis or whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that its carrying amount of the asset is not recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized
when the carrying amount of the asset is not recoverable and exceeds its fair value. The impairment
loss is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the long-lived asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The carrying amount of a long-lived asset is not recoverable if the carrying
amount exceeds the higher of fair value less costs to disposal and value-in-use. To determine the
value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and
determines a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

(j)

Revenue recognition
Interest on notes and loans receivable is recognized as revenue in the period earned.
Investment income is recorded in the period earned.
Provincial Nominee Program fees are recorded as revenue when earned.
Provincial Nominee Program defaults are recorded as revenue in the year in which the deposit period
ends and the applicant does not meet the conditions for repayment.

(17)
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Property operations revenue is recognized when all the following criteria have been met: transfer to
the buyer of significant risks and rewards of ownership; the company does not retain any continuing
managerial involvement; the revenue amount can be reliably measured; it is probably that the
economic benefits will flow to the company; and costs incurred can be reliably measured.
Accommodation, food and beverage, sports centre, retail and airport operation revenues, included in
property operations, are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable less
any trade discounts or volume rebates. Revenues are recognized when the goods or services have
been provided to the customer, it is probable that the associated economic benefit will flow to the
company and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured.
Revenue from commercial and residential rental operations, included in property operations, is
recognized straight-line over the terms of the leases when collection is reasonably assured. The
difference between the rental revenue recognized and the amounts contractually due under the lease
agreements is recorded in trade receivables. The company retains substantially all of the benefits
and risks of ownership of its income properties and, therefore, accounts for its leases with tenants as
operating leases. Realty tax and operating cost recoveries, and other incidental income are
recognized on an accrual basis.
Miscellaneous revenue is recognized in the period in which the transaction or events that give rise to
the revenue occur and collection is reasonably assured.
(k) Government assistance and other grants
The Governments of Canada and Prince Edward Island have made grants to fund renovations to
existing facilities of Slemon Park Corporation. Grants are not recognized until there is reasonable
assurance that the entity will comply with the conditions attaching to the grant, and that the grant
will be received. These funds, along with other grants received, are credited to the operating
expenses or capital assets to which they relate. During the year, $253,963 (2020 - $156,057) in
grants were received or receivable related to capital projects and credited to investment properties
property and equipment.
(l)

Provisions
Provisions are recorded when a present legal or constructive obligation exists as a result of past
events where it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.
The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the statement of financial position date, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.
A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the
company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting its obligations under the
contract. No provisions meeting the criteria for recognition exist for the periods presented.

(18)
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4

Agent agreement
Prince Edward Island Century 2000 Fund Inc.
The Federal Minister of Citizenship and Immigration acts as an Agent for the company and Crown
corporations of other participating provinces by receiving investments from immigrant investors and
disbursing them to the provincial Crown corporations in accordance with the allocation formula set out in the
federal Immigration Regulations, 1978. All monies received by the Agent pursuant to the issuance of debt
obligations are held by the Agent in a separate account from the moment such monies are received, on behalf
of the company and the provincial designates. Investments are subject to a commission agreement whereby a
5% commission is paid to the party that facilitates an investment. These commissions are paid out of the
special account by the Agent on the first day of the second month following the issuance of a visa to the
investor to the party that made the facilitated investment, and are recorded as deferred financing charges by the
company.
The Agent disburses the provincial allocation, less applicable commissions, to the company at the beginning of
the five-year allocation period. The Agent issues a promissory note to the investor on behalf of the company.
The company is obligated to repay the note, bearing interest at 0%, within 30 days after the expiry of the
allocation period.
The company is required to repay the investor, through the Agent, the investor's promissory note within 90
days of receipt by the Agent of a request by the investor to withdraw his/her application for permanent
residence, or upon the refusal of the application by the Minister.
In the 2014 Federal Government Budget, it was disclosed that Citizenship Immigration Canada (CIC) would
be terminating the Federal Immigrant Investor Programs during the 2014 calendar year. Subsequently, CIC has
communicated to all provinces that there will be no accelerated repayment schedule for funds received through
the Immigrant Investor Program.

5

Critical accounting estimates and judgments
The company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future that will, by definition, seldom equal
actual results. These estimates and judgments have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the period the assumptions change. The principal areas involving a
higher degree of judgment or complexity and/or area which require significant estimates is described below:
(a) Allowance for credit losses
The expected credit loss model requires the recognition of credit losses based on up to 12 months of
expected losses for performing loans and the recognition of lifetime losses on performing loans that have
experienced a significant credit risk since origination.
The determination of a significant increase in credit risk takes into account many different factors since
origination, and certain other criteria, such as delinquencies. The assessment of a significant increase in
credit risk requires experienced credit judgment.

(19)

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III - PART B 2020-2021

57

Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021
In determining whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and in calculating the amount of
expected credit losses, we must rely on estimates and exercise judgment regarding matters for which the
ultimate outcome is unknown. These judgments include changes in circumstances that may cause future
assessments of credit risk to be materially different from current assessments, which could require an
increase or decrease in the allowance for credit losses.
(b) Fair value of financial instruments
Fair value measurement techniques are used to value various financial assets and financial liabilities and
are used in impairment testing on certain non-financial assets.
The fair values of the company's financial instruments were estimated using the valuation methods and
assumptions described below. Since many of the company’s financial instruments lack an available
trading market, the fair values represent estimates of the current market value of instruments, taking into
account changes in interest rates that have occurred since their origination. Due to the use of subjective
assumptions and uncertainties, the fair value amounts should not be interpreted as being realizable in an
immediate settlement of the instruments.
Fair values of floating loans and deposits approximate book value as the interest rates on these
instruments automatically re-price to market and the spread remains appropriate. Fixed rate loans are
valued by discounting the contractual future cash flows at current market rates for loans with similar
credit risks. Fixed rate deposits are valued by discounting the contractual future cash flows using market
rates currently being offered for deposits with similar terms. A credit valuation adjustment is applied to
the calculated fair value of uninsured deposits to account for the company’s own risk.
The fair value for the company’s investments as detailed in note 11 is determined as follows:
!

Atlantic Canada Regional Venture Fund LP and Island Capital Partners Seed Investment Fund LP do
not trade in a public market. Fair value is determined by using Level 3 indicators.

(c) Estimated useful lives of investment properties and property and equipment
Management estimates the useful lives of investment properties and property and equipment based on the
period during which assets are expected to be available for use. The amounts and timing of recorded
amortization expense of investment properties and property and equipment for any period are affected by
these estimated useful lives. The estimates are reviewed at least annually and are updated if expectations
change as a result of physical wear and tear, legal and other limits to use. It is possible that changes in
these factors may cause changes in the estimated useful lives of the company's investment properties and
property and equipment in the future.

(20)
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(d) Investment properties fair value
The fair market value of investment properties is disclosed on an annual basis as of the statement of
financial position date. This fair value information is also used to identify potential impairment losses as
of the statement of financial position date. The valuations are prepared using recognized valuation
techniques and the principles of IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement. The determination of the fair value
requires the use of estimates and judgments on future cash flows from assets, discount rates applicable to
those assets due to their nature and location, the unit of account, and assumptions with respect to highest
and best use. These estimates are based on local market conditions existing at the statement of financial
position date, including the impact of recent market transactions. The valuation techniques and
significant unobservable inputs used in determining the fair value of investment properties are set out in
note 8.
(e) Investment properties and property and equipment
The company's accounting policies related to investment properties and property and equipment are
described in note 3. In applying these policies, judgment is applied to determine the significant
components of each asset, including the useful lives over which componentized assets are to be
amortized. Judgment is also required in determining what assets are classified as property, plant and
equipment and what assets are classified as investment property.
(f) COVID-19
Since January 31, 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 (coronavirus), has resulted in governments worldwide
enacting emergency measures to combat the spread of the virus. These measures have caused material
disruption to businesses globally resulting in an economic slowdown, and global equity markets have
experienced significant volatility. The duration and impact of the COVID-19 outbreak is unknown at this
time, as is the outcome of government and central bank interventions.
The company has determined that these events have not had a material impact on the carrying value of
assets and liabilities reported in these financial statements as at March 31, 2021. The duration and impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic remains unclear at this time. Therefore, it is not possible to reliably estimate
the duration and severity of these consequences, as well as their impact on the financial position and
results of the company for future periods.

(21)
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6

Financial instruments
Fair values versus carrying amounts
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the statement of
financial position, are as follows:
March 31, 2021
Fair
level
hierarchy
Financial assets
Cash
Marketable securities
Accounts receivable
Demand loan
receivable
Notes receivable
Advance to related
company
Investments in private
companies
Restricted funds

Fair
value
$

Carrying
amount
$

Fair
value
$

Level 1
Level 1
Level 2

19,518,800
13,331,443
7,310,285

19,518,800
13,331,443
7,310,285

18,704,173
5,562,756
6,985,131

18,704,173
5,562,756
6,985,131

Level 2
Level 2

6,998,482
145,522,391

6,998,482
145,522,391

7,007,465
144,580,842

7,007,465
144,580,842

Level 2

7,152,986

7,152,986

2,119,298

2,119,298

Level 3
Level 1

4,155,397
72,729,781

4,155,397
72,729,781

4,148,387
121,489,012

4,148,387
121,489,012

276,719,565

276,719,565

310,597,064

310,597,064

3,214,712
5,825,439
72,729,781

3,214,712
5,825,439
72,729,781

2,895,037
7,920,859
121,489,012

2,895,037
7,920,859
121,489,012

81,769,932

81,769,932

132,304,908

132,304,908

2021
$

2020
$

Financial liabilities carried
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Level 2
Long-term debt
Level 2
Restricted funds
Level 2

7

Carrying
amount
$

March 31, 2020

Accounts receivable

Trade
Related party (note 17)
Other
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

(22)

1,691,050
6,646,408
495,478
(1,522,651)

1,870,112
6,405,260
243,444
(1,533,685)

7,310,285

6,985,131
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8

Investment properties
The fair market value of investment properties as of March 31, 2021 is $37,240,000 (2020 - $18,603,638). The
Investment properties have been valued by manageusing a capitalized net operating income method and a
market approach. Under this method, capitalization rates are applied to net operating income (revenues less
property operating expenses). The key assumption is the capitalization rate of 10% to 13 % for commercial
assets and 7% for residential assets (2020 - 10% to 14%). The rate was further calibrated by applying a 20%
discount to reflect a recent orderly transaction occurring at arm's length under current market conditions. This
discount is to reflect the nature of these specialized assets and their location. Management engaged a third
party appraiser to value the entire portfolio of assets during the 2021 fiscal year, based on 2020 operating
results, and have updated the valuation numbers for the year ended March 31, 2021 based on those appraisal
numbers.
This valuation process is classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and represents the estimated price
that would be received to sell the asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement dates. The fair value is based on each asset group's current use as a revenue generating
investment property. The current use is considered to be the highest and best use. The company utilized
capitalization and discount rates based on recent market transactions and past appraisals. To the extent that
rates change from one reporting period to the next,or should another rate be more appropriate than the rate
previously used, the fair value of the investment properties would increase or decrease accordingly.
Land
$

Buildings, roads
and paving
$

Total
$

Cost
Balance - March 31, 2020
Additions
Grants received

1,578,852
5,499
-

13,444,267
1,953,992
(253,963)

15,023,119
1,959,491
(253,963)

Balance - March 31, 2021

1,584,351

15,144,296

16,728,647

Accumulated amortization
Balance - March 31, 2020
Amortization expense

(10,981)
(12,510)

(2,095,790)
(658,000)

(2,106,771)
(670,510)

Balance - March 31, 2021

(23,491)

(2,753,790)

(2,777,281)

Net carrying value
March 31, 2020

1,567,871

11,348,477

12,916,348

March 31, 2021

1,560,860

12,390,506

13,951,366
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The future minimum lease payments to be received under non-cancelable operating leases in aggregate for
each of the following periods:

$
Under 1 year
2 to 5 years
Over 5 years

2,457,654
5,888,025
6,062,278

Total
9

14,407,957

Demand loan receivable

Demand note receivable from Finance PEI
Accrued interest receivable

2021
$

2020
$

6,998,482
-

6,998,482
8,983

6,998,482

7,007,465

The company entered into an agreement for Finance PEI, a provincial Crown corporation, to receive a
$15,000,000 revolving line of credit.
Interest is charged monthly at a rate equal to the Department of Provincial Treasury of Prince Edward Island's
short-term lending rate and the total amount is repayable on demand.
The demand loan is secured by a promissory note for $15,000,000 and a revolving credit agreement.

(24)

62

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III - PART B 2020-2021

Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

10 Notes receivable
(a) Loans at amortized cost
2021
Gross
loans
$
Manufacturing and
processing general
51,308,551
Manufacturing and
processing - steel 6,855,219
Information and
communication
technology
Aerospace
2,556,577
Tourism
28,408,281
General business
72,400,441
Agriculture
1,822,122
Fisheries/aquaculture 2,223,465
Residential
4,565,856
Bioscience
11,715,386
181,855,898

2020

Allowance for
credit losses
$

Net carrying
amount
$

Gross
loans
$

13,624,187

37,684,364

53,987,632

13,140,488

40,847,144

-

6,855,219

7,416,529

-

7,416,529

2,545,393
2,197,325
16,817,752
921,960
226,890

11,184
26,210,956
55,582,689
1,822,122
1,301,505
4,565,856
11,488,496

211,585
2,435,505
26,653,323
74,646,602
1,757,889
2,143,635
374,615
10,657,269

205,914
2,434,896
2,113,329
14,510,041
2,141,581
1,157,493

5,671
609
24,539,994
60,136,561
1,757,889
2,054
374,615
9,499,776

36,333,507

145,522,391

180,284,584

35,703,742

144,580,842

(25)
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(b) Impaired loans
2021
Gross
impaired
loans
$
Manufacturing
and processing
- general
27,704,320
Manufacturing and
processing - steel
672,760
Information and
communication
technology
Aerospace
2,556,577
Tourism
28,408,281
General business
35,388,513
Agriculture
1,822,122
Fisheries/aquaculture 2,223,465
Bioscience
1,466,872
100,242,910

2020

Allowance for
credit losses
$

Net carrying
amount
$

Gross
impaired
loans
$

13,236,815

14,467,505

13,265,019

12,711,251

553,768

-

672,760

696,730

-

696,730

2,545,392
2,197,325
16,745,170
921,960
-

11,185
26,210,956
18,643,343
1,822,122
1,301,505
1,466,872

211,585
2,435,505
15,506,915
35,672,986
1,757,889
2,143,635
1,414,947

205,914
2,434,896
1,988,316
14,082,587
2,141,581
945,645

5,671
609
13,518,599
21,590,399
1,757,889
2,054
469,302

35,646,662

64,596,248

73,105,211

34,510,190

38,595,021

Allowance for Net carrying
credit losses
amount
$
$

(c) Allowance for credit losses
2021
Balance
as at
April 1,
2020
$

Provision
for
credit
losses
$

Net
write-offs
$

Net
$

Manufacturing and processing
- general
13,140,489
Information and communication
technology
205,914
Aerospace
2,434,897
Tourism
2,113,328
General business
14,510,041
Fisheries/aquaculture
2,141,580
Bioscience
1,157,493

483,695

-

13,624,184

(205,914)
110,496
84,000
2,307,711
(1,219,620)
(930,603)

-

2,545,393
2,197,328
16,817,752
921,960
226,890

35,703,742

629,765

-

36,333,507

(26)

64

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III - PART B 2020-2021

Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

2020
Balance
as at
April 1,
2019
$

Provision
for
credit
losses
$

Net
write-offs
$

Net
$

Manufacturing and processing
- general
10,048,679
Information and communication
technology
157,554
Aerospace
2,493,664
Tourism
3,657,497
General business
14,158,175
Fisheries/aquaculture
978,357
Bioscience
1,762,190

3,091,810

-

13,140,489

48,360
(58,767)
(1,544,169)
351,866
1,163,223
(604,697)

-

205,914
2,434,897
2,113,328
14,510,041
2,141,580
1,157,493

33,256,116

2,447,626

-

35,703,742

As at March 31, 2021

Stage 1
$

Stage 2
$

Stage 3
$

Total
$

Manufacturing and processing
- general
Aerospace
Tourism
General business
Fisheries/aquaculture
Bioscience

387,372
72,582
226,890

1,377,888
2,545,393
681,277
16,507,976
-

11,858,927
1,516,048
237,194
921,960
-

13,624,187
2,545,393
2,197,325
16,817,752
921,960
226,890

686,844

21,112,534

14,534,129

36,333,507
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As at March 31, 2020
Manufacturing and processing
- general
Information and communication
technology
Aerospace
Tourism
General business
Fisheries/aquaculture
Bioscience

Stage 1
$

Stage 2
$

Stage 3
$

Total
$

429,237

1,650,007

11,061,244

13,140,488

125,013
427,454
211,848

2,434,896
429,710
13,823,586
2,051,730
-

205,914
1,558,606
259,001
89,851
945,645

205,914
2,434,896
2,113,329
14,510,041
2,141,581
1,157,493

1,193,552

20,389,929

14,120,261

35,703,742

Loans past due but not impaired
2021

Manufacturing and
processing general

2020

31 - 90 days

91+ days
$

Total
$

31 - 90 days
$

91+ days
$

Total
$

-

2,724,119

2,724,119

-

2,724,119

2,724,119

Related party notes:
Included in manufacturing and processing are unsecured notes receivable due from Finance PEI of $3,660,992
(2020 - $3,703,648).
Included in notes receivable is accrued interest of $738,275 (2020 - $739,177) from Finance PEI.

11 Investment in private companies
2021
$
Investment in private companies:
Atlantic Canada Regional Venture Fund LP
Island Capital Partners Seed Investment Fund

(28)

2020
$

2,273,044
1,882,353

2,148,387
2,000,000

4,155,397

4,148,387
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12 Deferred financing costs

Accumulated
amortization
$

Cost
$
Commissions

752,857

692,013

2021

2020

Net
$

Net
$

60,844

77,100

13 Restricted funds
Restricted funds held in trust consist of the following amounts held under the Provincial Nominee Program:
2021
$
Good Faith deposits
Language deposits
Escrow deposits - business impact category
Intermediary deposits

2020
$

79,073
21,665
71,929,043
700,000

104,073
21,665
120,663,274
700,000

72,729,781

121,489,012

The company has internally restricted cash and marketable securities to meet or exceed the restricted funds
payable.

14 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
2021
$
Trade payables and accrued liabilities
Government remittances
Related entities
Other

(29)

2020
$

1,882,768
67,821
681,231
582,892

1,674,833
75,866
405,535
738,803

3,214,712

2,895,037
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15 Long-term debt
2021
$
Prince Edward Island Century 2000 Fund Inc.
Non-interest bearing notes payable, nominally dated with
commencement dates ranging from April 1, 2016 to
April 1, 2019, repayable in full in five years from the
commencement date pursuant to the federally
administered Immigrant Investor Program
Island Investment Development Inc.
2.95% term loan, due August 2023, to the Province of Prince
Edward Island, payable in quarterly payments of
$155,574 including interest, unsecured
2.46% term loan, due November 2022, to the Province of
Prince Edward Island, payable in quarterly payments
of $47,962 including interest, unsecured
Slemon Park Corporation
Non-interest bearing loan, payments of $6,250, commenced on
September 1, 2019 for 120 consecutive months
Non-interest bearing loan, payments of $4,100, commencing on July
1, 2020, followed by payments of $4,275 for all remaining periods

2020
$

654,463

2,032,751

3,668,499

4,173,233

327,627

508,625

687,500

706,250

487,350

500,000

5,825,439

7,920,859

Prince Edward Island Century 2000 Fund Inc.
All notes payable are pursuant to the Immigrant Investor Regulations.
The Province of Prince Edward has provided a guarantee of the notes payable to the Minister of Citizenship
and Immigration (Agent) in the event of the failure of Prince Edward Island Century 2000 Fund Inc. to repay
the notes payable to the Agent within 30 days following the end of the allocation period.

(30)
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Slemon Park Corporation
As additional security for certain long-term debt and an authorized operating line of credit of $900,000,
Slemon Park Corporation has provided a location specific general security agreement over all present and
future personal property of certain buildings, a floating charge over inventory and appliances of the residential
units, an assignment of residential rents, an assignment of specific commercial rents, a first fixed charge
mortgage with cash value insurance coverage over the residential units, a collateral mortgage over certain
properties and a general assignment of book debts.
The principal payments due on the long-term debt over the next five years are as follows:
$
Year ending March 31, 2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

1,191,373
1,055,600
2,782,516
126,300
126,300

16 Revenue from contracts with customers
The company has recognized the following amounts related to revenue in accordance with IFRS 15 on the
statement of comprehensive income:

Accommodations
Food and beverage
Airport
Retail

2021
$

2020
$

1,271,834
940,302
481,638
245,897

1,503,789
1,906,831
513,008
300,488

2,939,671

4,224,116

The company has recognized the following amounts related to revenue in accordance with IFRS 17 on the
statement of income and comprehensive income:

Commercial rent
Residential rent

(31)

2021
$

2020
$

4,155,117
2,997,725

4,043,533
3,038,340

7,152,842

7,081,873

10,092,513

11,305,989
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The revenue from contracts with customers is included in property operations on the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income.
The above revenues recognized in accordance with IFRS 15 were derived from hotel, restaurant, airport and
retail sites which are located at Slemon Park, Prince Edward Island. The company has not recognized any
additional contract assets or liabilities associated with this revenue.

17 Related party transactions
Related parties
Finance PEI, Innovation PEI and Tourism PEI are Crown corporations of the Province of Prince Edward
Island.
Related party balances
Included in accounts receivable is $6,044,150 (2020 - $5,818,648) from Finance PEI.
Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities is $85,445 (2020 - $86,349) to Innovation P.E.I. and
$465,598 (2020 - nil) to the Province of Prince Edward Island.
Advances to related company:
2021
$
Finance PEI

7,152,986

2020
$
2,119,298

Advances to related company are non-interest bearing with no specific terms of repayment.
Transactions
Included in interest on notes and loan receivable is $46,065 (2020 - $164,904) from Finance PEI.
Included in property operations is revenue of $4,034,394 (2020 - $3,817,436) and purchases of $584,311
(2020 - $590,370) from enterprises controlled by the Province of Prince Edward Island.

(32)
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Included in expenses are management fees of $537,500 (2020 - $535,326) and rent of $50,000 (2020 $50,000) to Finance PEI and interest on notes payable of $138,313 (2020 - $134,079) to the Province of Prince
Edward Island.
Included in capital grants received is $173,837 (2020 - $156,065) from the Province of Prince Edward Island
or enterprises controlled by the Province of Prince Edward Island.
As of March 31, 2021, Island Investment Development Inc. administered the Mandatory Isolation Support for
Temporary Foreign Workers Program on behalf of the federal government for employers in Prince Edward
Island. The company administered $1,131,281 in funds for this program with $465,598 to be paid to the
Department of Finance to cover lodging costs and $665,682 paid to employers to cover wage costs. As the
company was acting as an agent for the federal government, these expenditures are not included as expenses of
the corporation.
These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the amount of consideration
established and agreed to by the two parties and approximate fair market value.
Compensation of directors and key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and key management personnel during 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

Salaries

2021
$

2020
$

778,540

636,588

Key management personnel consist of the executive director, directors and manager needed to administer the
programs in Island Investment Development Inc. Certain members of key management are employed under
Innovation PEI and the portion of their salary which pertains to the work performed for Island Investment
Development Inc. is reflected in the $537,500 (2020 - $535,326) management fee paid to Finance PEI.

18 Commitments
Prince Edward Island Century 2000 Fund Inc. loans approved but not disbursed at March 31, 2021 amount to
$5,739,711 (2020 - $14,301,198).
Island Investment Development Inc. has committed to, but not disbursed $2,726,954 (2020 - $2,851,611) in
advances to private companies.

(33)
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19 Financial risk management objectives and policies
Island Investment Development Inc.’s principal business activities result in a statement of financial position
that consists primarily of financial instruments. The principal financial risks that arise from transacting
financial instruments include credit, liquidity, market and operational risk. Authority for all risk-taking
activities rests with the Board of Directors (Board), which approves risk management policies, delegates’
limits and regularly reviews management’s risk assessments and compliance with approved policies. Qualified
professionals throughout Island Investment Development Inc. manage these risks through comprehensive and
integrated control processes and models, including regular review and assessment of risk measurement and
reporting processes.
(a) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty of a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk arises primarily from the company’s notes
receivable and marketable securities.
The company's maximum exposure to credit risk at the statement of financial position date in relation to
each class of recognized financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets indicated in the statement
of financial position. The maximum credit exposure does not take into account the value of any collateral
or other security held, in the event other entities/parties fail to perform their obligations under the
financial instruments in question.
The company's maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Cash
Marketable securities
Accounts receivable
Demand loan receivable
Notes receivable
Advances to related companies
Investment in private company
Restricted funds

(34)

2021
$

2020
$

19,518,800
13,331,443
7,310,285
6,998,482
145,522,391
7,152,986
4,155,397
72,729,781

18,704,173
5,562,756
6,985,131
7,007,465
144,580,842
2,119,298
4,148,387
121,489,012

276,719,565

310,597,064
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i)

Notes receivable
For the notes receivable portfolio, the company uses risk modelling that is customer based rather
than product based. The company reviews the borrowers capacity to repay the loan rather than
relying exclusively on collateral, although it is an important component in establishing credit risk.
Typically, collateral consists of capital assets held by the borrower but can extend to working capital
such as inventory when warranted. Any shortfall in collateral as compared to the carrying value of
the loan is considered when analyzing the loan for the provision that needs to be applied to it.
Credit is approved by staff and the company’s Board of Directors with loans in excess of $1 million
requiring approval by Treasury Board. The company factors the financial strength of each borrower,
the security which is available, their position in industry and past payment history when assessing all
potential loans.

ii)

Cash and marketable securities
Cash and marketable securities have a low credit risk exposure as the assets are high quality
investments with low risk counterparties.

(b) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company may not be able to meet its financial obligations as they come
due. Specifically, the company needs to ensure it has adequate resources to repay all accounts payable
and accrued liabilities, notes payable and to pay back any deposits under the Provincial Nominee Program
as they come due. The company's approach to manage liquidity risk is to closely monitor its cash flows
and forecast the expected receipts and obligations.
The table below analyzes the company's financial liabilities into relevant groupings based on the
remaining period at the statement of financial position date to the contractual maturity date.
2021
Under 1
year
$
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Long-term debt
Restricted funds

Between
1 - 2 years
$

Between
2 - 5 years
$

3,214,712
1,191,373
72,729,781

1,055,600
-

3,035,116
-

543,350
-

3,214,712
5,825,439
72,729,781

77,135,866

1,055,600

3,035,116

543,350

81,769,932

(35)

Over
5 years
$

Total
$

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III - PART B 2020-2021

73

Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

2020
Under 1
year
$
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Long-term debt
Restricted funds

Between
1 - 2 years
$

Between
2 - 5 years
$

Over
5 years
$

2,895,037
2,229,266
121,489,012

1,191,373
-

3,912,470
-

587,750
-

2,895,037
7,920,859
121,489,012

126,613,315

1,191,373

3,912,470

587,750

132,304,908

Total
$

As at March 31, 2021, the company has $105,580,024 (2020 - $145,755,941) in cash and marketable
securities that is readily available to be used to meet the cash outflows of the company's financial
liabilities.
(c) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and equity prices will affect the
company’s income or the value of its holdings in financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimizing the return on risk.
(i)

Price risk
The company is exposed to price risk because of the marketable securities held by the company that
are classified as fair value through profit or loss. This company is not exposed to commodity price
risk. To manage its price risk arising from marketable security is the company diversifies its
portfolio.

(ii) Interest rate risk
The following table sets out the assets and liabilities on the earlier of contractual maturity or
repricing date. Use of the table to derive information about the company's interest rate risk position
is limited by the fact that borrowers may choose to terminate their financial instruments at a date
earlier than contractual maturity or repricing date. For example, notes receivable are shown at
contractual maturity but could prepay earlier.

(36)
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2021
Under
1 year
$
Assets
Cash
Marketable securities
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Inventory
Demand loan receivable
Effective interest rate
Notes receivable (net of
allowance for losses)
Effective interest rate
Advances to related company
Investment in private
companies
Deferred financing costs
Property and equipment
Investment properties
Restricted funds
Total assets

Over 1 to
5 years
$

19,518,800
13,331,443
6,998,482
1.53%

-

26,940,651
3.87%
-

96,199,427
4.07%
-

Over
5 years
$
22,382,313
2.43%
-

Not interest
rate sensitive
$

Total
$

7,310,285
377,947
119,466
-

19,518,800
13,331,443
7,310,285
377,947
119,466
6,998,482

-

145,522,391

7,152,986

7,152,986

-

-

-

4,155,397
60,844
3,569,864
13,951,366
72,729,781

4,155,397
60,844
3,569,864
13,951,366
72,729,781

66,789,376

96,199,427

22,382,313

109,427,936

294,799,052

3,214,712
-

3,214,712
5,825,439

72,729,781

72,729,781

Liabilities and surplus
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Long-term debt
Effective interest rate
Restricted funds
Effective interest rate
Retained earnings

1,191,373
1.60%
0.94%
-

4,090,716
1.51%
-

-

213,029,120

213,029,120

Total liabilities and retained
earnings

1,191,373

4,090,716

543,350

288,973,613

294,799,052

Interest rate sensitivity gap

65,598,003

92,108,711

21,838,963

(37)

543,350
0.00%

(179,545,677)

-
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2020
Under
1 year
$
Assets
Cash
Marketable securities
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Inventory
Demand loan receivable
Effective interest rate
Note receivable (net of
allowance for losses)
Effective interest rate
Advances to related company
Investment in private
companies
Deferred financing costs
Property and equipment
Investment properties
Restricted funds
Total assets

Over 1 to
5 years
$

18,704,173
5,562,756
6,998,482
1.34%
14,357,007
3.90%
-

114,424,151
4.15%
-

Over
5 years
$
15,799,684
2.43%
-

Not interest
rate sensitive
$
6,985,131
44,104
121,272
8,983

18,704,173
5,562,756
6,985,131
44,104
121,272
7,007,465

-

144,580,842

2,119,298

2,119,298

-

-

-

4,148,387
77,100
3,049,115
12,916,348
121,489,012

4,148,387
77,100
3,049,115
12,916,348
121,489,012

45,622,418

114,424,151

15,799,684

150,958,750

326,805,003

2,895,037
-

2,895,037
7,920,859
121,489,012
194,500,095

Liabilities and surplus
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Long-term debt
Effective interest rate
Restricted funds
Retained earnings

2,227,866
1.60%
-

5,095,443
1.51%
-

-

121,489,012
194,500,095

Total liabilities and
retained earnings

2,227,866

5,095,443

597,550

318,884,144

43,394,552

109,328,708

15,202,134

Interest rate sensitivity gap

Total
$

597,550
0.00%

326,805,003

(167,925,394)

(d) Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with
the company’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than
credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and
generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour.
The company’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses
and damage to the company’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures
that restrict initiative and creativity. The primary responsibility for the development and implementation
of controls to address operational risk is assigned to senior management.

(38)

-

76

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III - PART B 2020-2021

Island Investment Development Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021
(e) Capital management
The primary objective of Island Investment Development Inc.'s capital management is to ensure that it
maintains a healthy financial position in order to support its business. Island Investment Development
Inc. manages its capital structure and makes changes to it in light of changes in economic conditions.

(39)

Land
Buildings and improvements
Paving and water and sewer
Furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles
Computer equipment and
software

Land
Buildings and improvements
Paving and water and sewer
Furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles
Computer equipment and
software

21,784
640,762

3,800,426

Additions
$

Beginning
$

105,897

911,747

4,432,659

121,101
92,571
278,300
127,006

270,350

127,681

30,043
930,985
1,417,942
1,151,826
163,733

220,621
153,753
190,051
76,972

Additions
$

30,043
1,052,086
1,501,984
1,430,126
290,739

Beginning
$

For the year ended March 31, 2021

Schedule of Property and Equipment

Island Investment Development Inc.

(8,529)

-

(8,529)
-

Grants
Received
$

Cost 2020

-

-

-

Grants
Received
$

Cost 2021

(40)

4,432,659

127,681

30,043
1,052,086
1,501,984
1,430,126
290,739

Ending
$

5,344,406

398,031

30,043
1,272,707
1,655,737
1,620,177
367,711

Ending
$

1,072,347

73,111

208,140
188,308
540,626
62,162

Beginning
$

1,383,544

86,215

243,246
272,983
679,863
101,237

Beginning
$

1,774,542

139,207

285,926
356,938
838,632
153,839

Ending
$

311,197

13,104

35,106
84,675
139,237
39,075

Amortization
$

1,383,544

86,215

243,246
272,983
679,863
101,237

Ending
$

Accumulated amortization 2020

390,998

52,992

42,680
83,955
158,769
52,602

Amortization
$

Accumulated amortization 2021

3,049,115

41,466

30,043
808,840
1,229,001
750,263
189,502

Net book
value
$

2020

3,569,864

258,824

30,043
986,781
1,298,799
781,545
213,872

Net book
value
$

2021

Schedule
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0DQDJHPHQW¶V5HVSRQVLELOLW\IRU)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ
0DUFK




7KH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV DUH WKH UHVSRQVLELOLW\ RI PDQDJHPHQW DQG KDYH EHHQ SUHSDUHG LQ
FRQIRUPLW\ZLWK,QWHUQDWLRQDO)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ6WDQGDUGV0DQDJHPHQWLVDOVRUHVSRQVLEOH
IRUWKHQRWHVWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDQGVFKHGXOHVDQGIRUHQVXULQJWKDWWKLVLQIRUPDWLRQLV
FRQVLVWHQWZKHUHDSSURSULDWHZLWKWKHLQIRUPDWLRQFRQWDLQHGLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV%DVHG
RQPDQDJHPHQW¶VNQRZOHGJHKDYLQJH[HUFLVHGUHDVRQDEOHGLOLJHQFHWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
IDLUO\UHSUHVHQWLQDOOPDWHULDOUHVSHFWWKHILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDVDW0DUFK

0DQDJHPHQWLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRULPSOHPHQWLQJDQG PDLQWDLQLQJDV\VWHPRILQWHUQDOFRQWUROWR
SURYLGHUHDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHWKDWUHOLDEOHILQDQFLDOLQIRUPDWLRQLVSURGXFHG

7KH%RDUGRI'LUHFWRUVLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUHQVXULQJWKDWPDQDJHPHQWIXOILOVLWVUHVSRQVLELOLWLHVIRU
ILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJDQGLQWHUQDOFRQWURO7KH%RDUGUHYLHZVLQWHUQDOILQDQFLDOUHSRUWVRQDUHJXODU
EDVLVDQGH[WHUQDOO\DXGLWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDQQXDOO\7KH%RDUGUHFRPPHQGVDSSURYDORI
WKHDXGLWHGH[WHUQDOILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDQGPHHWVSHULRGLFDOO\ZLWKPDQDJHPHQWDQGH[WHUQDO
DXGLWRUVFRQFHUQLQJLQWHUQDOFRQWUROVDQGRWKHUPDWWHUVUHODWLQJWRILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJ

*UDQW7KRUQWRQ,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VLQGHSHQGHQWDXGLWRUVKDVSHUIRUPHG
DQDXGLWRI,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK
,QWHUQDWLRQDO )LQDQFLDO 5HSRUWLQJ 6WDQGDUGV 7KH ,QGHSHQGHQW $XGLWRU¶V 5HSRUW RXWOLQHV WKH
VFRSHRIWKLVLQGHSHQGHQWDXGLWDQGLQFOXGHVWKHRSLQLRQH[SUHVVHGRQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
7KHDXGLWRUVKDYHIXOODQGIUHHDFFHVVWRILQDQFLDOLQIRUPDWLRQDQGPDQDJHPHQWRI,VODQG:DVWH
0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQDVUHTXLUHG
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7RWKH%RDUGRI'LUHFWRUVRI

,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ

2SLQLRQ

Grant Thornton LLP
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98 Fitzroy Street, PO Box 187
Charlottetown, PE
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:HKDYHDXGLWHGWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRI,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
³WKH&RUSRUDWLRQ´ ZKLFKFRPSULVHWKHFRQVROLGDWHGVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDVDW0DUFK
DQGWKHFRQVROLGDWHGVWDWHPHQWRIFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPHFRQVROLGDWHGVWDWHPHQWRI
FKDQJHVLQHTXLW\DQGFRQVROLGDWHGVWDWHPHQWRIFDVKIORZVIRUWKH\HDUWKHQHQGHGDQGQRWHVWR
WKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQFOXGLQJDVXPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV
,QRXURSLQLRQWKHDFFRPSDQ\LQJFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVSUHVHQWIDLUO\LQDOOPDWHULDO
UHVSHFWV WKH FRQVROLGDWHG ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRQ RI ,VODQG :DVWH 0DQDJHPHQW &RUSRUDWLRQ DV DW
0DUFKDQGLWVFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOSHUIRUPDQFHDQGLWVFRQVROLGDWHGFDVKIORZVIRU
WKH\HDUWKHQHQGHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK,QWHUQDWLRQDO)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ6WDQGDUGV ,)56 
%DVLVIRU2SLQLRQ
:HFRQGXFWHGRXUDXGLWLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGDXGLWLQJVWDQGDUGV2XU
UHVSRQVLELOLWLHVXQGHUWKRVHVWDQGDUGVDUHIXUWKHUGHVFULEHGLQWKHAuditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the consolidated Financial StatementsVHFWLRQRIRXUUHSRUW:HDUHLQGHSHQGHQWRI
WKH&RUSRUDWLRQLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHHWKLFDOUHTXLUHPHQWVWKDWDUHUHOHYDQWWRRXUDXGLWRIWKH
FRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQ&DQDGDDQGZHKDYHIXOILOOHGRXURWKHUHWKLFDOUHVSRQVLELOLWLHV
LQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHVHUHTXLUHPHQWV:HEHOLHYHWKDWWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHZHKDYHREWDLQHGLV
VXIILFLHQWDQGDSSURSULDWHWRSURYLGHDEDVLVIRURXURSLQLRQ
2WKHU0DWWHUV
2XU DXGLW ZDV FRQGXFWHG IRU WKH SXUSRVH RI IRUPLQJ DQ RSLQLRQ RI WKH FRQVROLGDWHG ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVRI,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQDVDZKROH7KHVXSSOHPHQWDU\LQIRUPDWLRQ
LQFOXGHGLQWKHVFKHGXOHVSUHVHQWHGIRUWKHSXUSRVHRIDGGLWLRQDODQDO\VLVDQGLVQRWDUHTXLUHG
SDUWRIWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV6XFKLQIRUPDWLRQKDVEHHQVXEMHFWWRWKHDXGLWLQJ
SURFHGXUHVDSSOLHGRQO\WRWKHH[WHQWQHFHVVDU\WRH[SUHVVDQRSLQLRQRQWKHDXGLWRIWKHILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVWDNHQDVDZKROH
5HVSRQVLELOLWLHVRI0DQDJHPHQWDQG7KRVH&KDUJHGZLWK*RYHUQDQFHIRUWKH
FRQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DQDJHPHQWLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUWKHSUHSDUDWLRQDQGIDLUSUHVHQWDWLRQRIWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK,QWHUQDWLRQDO)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ6WDQGDUGV ,)56 DQGIRUVXFK
LQWHUQDOFRQWURODVPDQDJHPHQWGHWHUPLQHVLVQHFHVVDU\WRHQDEOHWKHSUHSDUDWLRQRIFRQVROLGDWHG
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVWKDWDUHIUHHIURPPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRUHUURU.
,QSUHSDULQJWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVPDQDJHPHQWLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUDVVHVVLQJWKH
&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VDELOLW\WRFRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJFRQFHUQGLVFORVLQJDVDSSOLFDEOHPDWWHUVUHODWHGWR
JRLQJFRQFHUQDQGXVLQJWKHJRLQJFRQFHUQEDVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJXQOHVVPDQDJHPHQWHLWKHULQWHQGV
WROLTXLGDWHWKH&RUSRUDWLRQRUWRFHDVHRSHUDWLRQVRUKDVQRUHDOLVWLFDOWHUQDWLYHEXWWRGRVR
7KRVH FKDUJHG ZLWK JRYHUQDQFH DUH UHVSRQVLEOH IRU RYHUVHHLQJ WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ¶V ILQDQFLDO
UHSRUWLQJSURFHVV
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$XGLWRU¶V5HVSRQVLELOLWLHVIRUWKH$XGLWRIWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
2XU REMHFWLYHV DUH WR REWDLQ UHDVRQDEOH DVVXUDQFH DERXW ZKHWKHU WKH FRQVROLGDWHG ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVDVDZKROHDUHIUHHIURPPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRUHUURUDQGWR
LVVXH DQ DXGLWRU¶V UHSRUW WKDW LQFOXGHV RXU RSLQLRQ  5HDVRQDEOH DVVXUDQFH LV D KLJK OHYHO RI
DVVXUDQFHEXWLVQRWDJXDUDQWHHWKDWDQDXGLWFRQGXFWHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQJHQHUDOO\
DFFHSWHG DXGLWLQJ VWDQGDUGV ZLOO DOZD\V GHWHFW D PDWHULDO PLVVWDWHPHQW ZKHQ LW H[LVWV
0LVVWDWHPHQWVFDQDULVHIURPIUDXGRUHUURUDQGDUHFRQVLGHUHGPDWHULDOLILQGLYLGXDOO\RULQWKH
DJJUHJDWHWKH\FRXOGUHDVRQDEO\EHH[SHFWHGWRLQIOXHQFHWKHHFRQRPLFGHFLVLRQVRIXVHUVWDNHQ
RQWKHEDVLVRIWKHVHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
$V SDUW RI DQ DXGLW LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK &DQDGLDQ JHQHUDOO\ DFFHSWHG DXGLWLQJ VWDQGDUGV ZH
H[HUFLVHSURIHVVLRQDOMXGJPHQWDQG PDLQWDLQSURIHVVLRQDOVNHSWLFLVPWKURXJKRXWWKHDXGLW:H
DOVR
x

,GHQWLI\ DQG DVVHVV WKH ULVNV RI PDWHULDO PLVVWDWHPHQW RI WKH FRQVROLGDWHG ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRUHUURUGHVLJQDQGSHUIRUPDXGLWSURFHGXUHVUHVSRQVLYH
WRWKRVHULVNVDQGREWDLQDXGLWHYLGHQFHWKDWLVVXIILFLHQWDQGDSSURSULDWHWRSURYLGHDEDVLV
IRURXURSLQLRQ7KHULVNRIQRWGHWHFWLQJDPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWUHVXOWLQJIURPIUDXGLVKLJKHU
WKDQ IRU RQH UHVXOWLQJ IURP HUURU DV IUDXG PD\ LQYROYH FROOXVLRQ IRUJHU\ LQWHQWLRQDO
RPLVVLRQVPLVUHSUHVHQWDWLRQVRUWKHRYHUULGHRILQWHUQDOFRQWURO

x

2EWDLQ DQ XQGHUVWDQGLQJ RI LQWHUQDO FRQWURO UHOHYDQW WR WKH DXGLW LQ RUGHU WR GHVLJQ DXGLW
SURFHGXUHVWKDWDUHDSSURSULDWHLQWKHFLUFXPVWDQFHVEXWQRWIRUWKHSXUSRVHRIH[SUHVVLQJ
DQRSLQLRQRQWKHHIIHFWLYHQHVVRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VLQWHUQDOFRQWURO

x

(YDOXDWH WKH DSSURSULDWHQHVV RI DFFRXQWLQJ SROLFLHV XVHG DQG WKH UHDVRQDEOHQHVV RI
DFFRXQWLQJHVWLPDWHVDQGUHODWHGGLVFORVXUHVPDGHE\PDQDJHPHQW

x

&RQFOXGH RQ WKH DSSURSULDWHQHVV RI PDQDJHPHQW V XVH RI WKH JRLQJ FRQFHUQ EDVLV RI
DFFRXQWLQJDQGEDVHGRQWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHREWDLQHGZKHWKHUDPDWHULDOXQFHUWDLQW\H[LVWV
UHODWHGWRHYHQWVRUFRQGLWLRQVWKDWPD\FDVWVLJQLILFDQWGRXEWRQWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VDELOLW\WR
FRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJFRQFHUQ,IZHFRQFOXGHWKDWDPDWHULDOXQFHUWDLQW\H[LVWVZHDUHUHTXLUHG
WRGUDZDWWHQWLRQLQRXUDXGLWRU VUHSRUWWRWKHUHODWHGGLVFORVXUHVLQWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVRULIVXFKGLVFORVXUHVDUHLQDGHTXDWHWRPRGLI\RXURSLQLRQ2XUFRQFOXVLRQVDUH
EDVHGRQWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHREWDLQHGXSWRWKHGDWHRIRXUDXGLWRU VUHSRUW+RZHYHUIXWXUH
HYHQWVRUFRQGLWLRQVPD\FDXVHWKH&RUSRUDWLRQWRFHDVHWRFRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJFRQFHUQ

x

(YDOXDWH WKH RYHUDOO SUHVHQWDWLRQ VWUXFWXUH DQG FRQWHQW RI WKH FRQVROLGDWHG ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV LQFOXGLQJ WKH GLVFORVXUHV DQG ZKHWKHU WKH FRQVROLGDWHG ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV
UHSUHVHQWWKHXQGHUO\LQJWUDQVDFWLRQVDQGHYHQWVLQDPDQQHUWKDWDFKLHYHVIDLUSUHVHQWDWLRQ

x

2EWDLQVXIILFLHQWDSSURSULDWHDXGLWHYLGHQFHUHJDUGLQJWKHILQDQFLDOLQIRUPDWLRQRIWKHHQWLWLHV
RUEXVLQHVVDFWLYLWLHVZLWKLQWKH*URXSWRH[SUHVVDQRSLQLRQRQWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV:HDUHUHVSRQVLEOHIRUWKHGLUHFWLRQVXSHUYLVLRQDQGSHUIRUPDQFHRIWKHJURXS
DXGLW:HUHPDLQVROHO\UHVSRQVLEOHIRURXUDXGLWRSLQLRQ

:H FRPPXQLFDWH ZLWK WKRVH FKDUJHG ZLWK JRYHUQDQFH UHJDUGLQJ DPRQJ RWKHU PDWWHUV WKH
SODQQHG VFRSH DQG WLPLQJ RI WKH DXGLW DQG VLJQLILFDQW DXGLW ILQGLQJV LQFOXGLQJ DQ\ VLJQLILFDQW
GHILFLHQFLHVLQLQWHUQDOFRQWUROWKDWZHLGHQWLI\GXULQJRXUDXGLW


&KDUORWWHWRZQ&DQDGD
-XQH



&KDUWHUHG3URIHVVLRQDO$FFRXQWDQWV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWRI2SHUDWLRQVDQG&KDQJHVLQ1HW
$VVHWV
<HDUHQGHG0DUFK



5HYHQXHV
 +RXVHKROGXVHUIHHV 3DJH 
 
 
 'LVSRVDOIHHV 3DJH 




 7LUHV




 'HFRPPLVVLRQLQJDQGPRQLWRULQJ




 (QYLURQPHQWDO,QGXVWULDO6HUYLFHV,QF 3DJH 




 6WHZDUGVKLSVDQGRWKHU





  
 
 
([SHQGLWXUHV
 $GPLQLVWUDWLRQ 3DJH 




 $GYHUWLVLQJHGXFDWLRQDQGSXEOLFUHODWLRQV 3DJH 




 2SHUDWLRQDOFRVWV
  5HVLGHQWLDOFROOHFWLRQ 3DJH 




  'LVSRVDO 3DJHV 




  7LUHFROOHFWLRQDQGGLVSRVDO 3DJH 




 'HFRPPLVVLRQLQJDQGPRQLWRULQJ




 ,QWHUHVWRQORQJWHUPGHEW




 'HSUHFLDWLRQ




 (QYLURQPHQWDO,QGXVWULDO6HUYLFHV,QF 3DJH 




 6WHZDUGVKLSVDQGRWKHU




 
  
 
 

([FHVVRIH[SHQGLWXUHVRYHUUHYHQXHV

 

 


1HWDVVHWVEHJLQQLQJRI\HDU
 
 

([FHVVRIH[SHQGLWXUHVRYHUUHYHQXHV

 


  

1HWDVVHWVHQGRI\HDU
 
 


6HHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVDQGVFKHGXOHVWRWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWRI)LQDQFLDO3RVLWLRQ
0DUFK





$VVHWV
&XUUHQW
 &DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV


 
 
 5HFHLYDEOHV 1RWH 


 
 
 7HUPGHSRVLWV


 
 
 3UHSDLGV






  


 
 
  

3HUIRUPDQFHGHSRVLWV






3URSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQW 1RWH 


 
 
  
  




  


/LDELOLWLHV
&XUUHQW
 3D\DEOHVDQGDFFUXDOV


 
 
 &XUUHQWSRUWLRQRIORQJWHUPGHEW 1RWH 

 
 
 'HEWGXHRQGHPDQG 1RWH 






  


 
 
 

&RQWUDFWRUGHSRVLWV






'HIHUUHGJRYHUQPHQWDVVLVWDQFH 1RWH 

 
 
/RQJWHUPGHEW 1RWH 


 
 
$VVHWUHWLUHPHQWREOLJDWLRQ 1RWH 


 
 
  


 
 
 
1HWDVVHWV


 
 
 

  




 

&RPPLWPHQWV 1RWH 



2QEHKDOIRIWKH%RDUG



 
'LUHFWRU 
'LUHFWRU


6HHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVDQGVFKHGXOHVWRWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWRI&DVK)ORZV
<HDUHQGHG0DUFK



,QFUHDVH GHFUHDVH LQFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV

 2SHUDWLQJ
  &DVKUHFHLYHGIURPFXVWRPHUV
 
 
  &DVKSD\PHQWVWRVXSSOLHUV
  
  
  &DVKSD\PHQWVWRHPSOR\HHV

 

 
  ,QWHUHVWSDLG

 

 
  ,QWHUHVWUHFHLYHG





   




 
 )LQDQFLQJ
  3URFHHGVIURPORQJWHUPGHEW




  *RYHUQPHQWDVVLVWDQFHUHFHLYHG




  5HSD\PHQWRIORQJWHUPGHEW

 

 
   
   

 

 

 ,QYHVWLQJ
  3URFHHGVIURPVDOHRIHTXLSPHQW




  3XUFKDVHRISURSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQW

 

 

   

 

 

1HWGHFUHDVHLQFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV

 

 

&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV

 %HJLQQLQJRI\HDU





 (QGRI\HDU


 


6HHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVDQGVFKHGXOHVWRWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 1DWXUHRIRSHUDWLRQV

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQLVD3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGFURZQFRUSRUDWLRQHVWDEOLVKHGXQGHUWKHSURYLVLRQV
RIWKHEnvironmental Protection ActDQGWKHUHIRUHLVH[HPSWIURPLQFRPHWD[HVXQGHU
SDUDJUDSK  G RIWKH&DQDGLDQIncome Tax Act7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VREMHFWLYHLVWR
LPSOHPHQWDQGPDQDJHDSURYLQFHZLGHZDVWHPDQDJHPHQWV\VWHP7KLVLQFOXGHVWKH
FROOHFWLRQDQGGLVSRVDORIVROLGZDVWHJHQHUDWHGLQ3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG

(QYLURQPHQWDO,QGXVWULDO6HUYLFHV,QFLVDZKROO\RZQHGVXEVLGLDU\RI,VODQG:DVWH
0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VREMHFWLYHLVWRRSHUDWHZDWHUDQGZDVWHZDWHU
IDFLOLWLHV

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQDQGLWVZKROO\RZQHGVXEVLGLDU\DUHORFDWHGDW:DWWV$YHQXH
&KDUORWWHWRZQ3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG

7KHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVZHUHDXWKRUL]HGIRULVVXHLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKD
UHVROXWLRQRIWKH%RDUGRI'LUHFWRUVRQ-XQH


 6XPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV

%DVLVRISUHVHQWDWLRQDQGDGRSWLRQRI,)56
7KHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQKDYHEHHQSUHSDUHGLQDFFRUGDQFH
ZLWK,QWHUQDWLRQDO)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ6WDQGDUGV ,)56 

7KHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQFRPSO\
LQDOOPDWHULDOUHVSHFWVZLWK,)56DVLVVXHGE\WKH,QWHUQDWLRQDO$FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUGV%RDUG
,$6% LQHIIHFWDVDW0DUFK

7KHSULQFLSDODFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVDSSOLHGLQWKHSUHSDUDWLRQRIWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWDUHVHWRXWEHORZ


%DVLVRIPHDVXUHPHQW
7KHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQKDYHEHHQSUHSDUHGRQDKLVWRULFDO
FRVWEDVLV7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VIXQFWLRQDOFXUUHQF\LVWKH&DQDGLDQGROODUZKLFKLVWKH
FXUUHQF\RIWKHSULPDU\HFRQRPLFHQYLURQPHQWLQZKLFKWKH&RUSRUDWLRQRSHUDWHVZKLFKLV
DOVRWKHSUHVHQWDWLRQFXUUHQF\RIWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

3ULQFLSDOVRIFRQVROLGDWLRQ
7KHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQFOXGHWKHDFFRXQWVRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQDQGLWVZKROO\
RZQHGVXEVLGLDU\(QYLURQPHQWDO,QGXVWULDO6HUYLFHV,QF6LJQLILFDQWLQWHUFRPSDQ\WUDQVDFWLRQV
DUHHOLPLQDWHGXSRQFRQVROLGDWLRQ


&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV
&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVLQFOXGHFDVKRQKDQGDQGEDODQFHVZLWKEDQNVQHWRIEDQN
RYHUGUDIWVDQGKLJKO\OLTXLGWHPSRUDU\PRQH\PDUNHWLQVWUXPHQWVZLWKRULJLQDOPDWXULWLHVRI
WKUHHPRQWKVRUOHVV%DQNERUURZLQJVDUHFRQVLGHUHGWREHILQDQFLQJDFWLYLWLHV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 6XPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV FRQW¶G 

%RUURZLQJFRVWV
%RUURZLQJFRVWVGLUHFWO\DWWULEXWDEOHWRWKHDFTXLVLWLRQRUFRQVWUXFWLRQRISURSHUW\SODQWDQG
HTXLSPHQWDUHDGGHGWRWKHFRVWRIWKHDVVHWVXQWLOWKH\DUHVXEVWDQWLDOO\UHDG\IRUWKHLU
LQWHQGHGXVH

5HYHQXHUHFRJQLWLRQ
5HYHQXHVDUHUHFRJQL]HGZKHQSHUIRUPDQFHREOLJDWLRQVXQGHUDJUHHPHQWVRUFRQWUDFWVDUH
VDWLVILHGLQDQDPRXQWWKDWUHIOHFWVWKHFRQVLGHUDWLRQWKH&RUSRUDWLRQH[SHFWVWREHHQWLWOHGWR
LQH[FKDQJHIRUWKRVHVHUYLFHV

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQGHWHUPLQHVUHYHQXHUHFRJQLWLRQWKURXJKWKHIROORZLQJVWHSV
  ,GHQWLILFDWLRQRIWKHFRQWUDFWRUFRQWUDFWVZLWKDFXVWRPHU
  ,GHQWLILFDWLRQRIWKHSHUIRUPDQFHREOLJDWLRQVLQWKHFRQWUDFW
  'HWHUPLQDWLRQRIWKHWUDQVDFWLRQSULFH
  $OORFDWLRQRIWKHWUDQVDFWLRQSULFHWRWKHSHUIRUPDQFHREOLJDWLRQVLQWKHFRQWUDFWDQG
  5HFRJQLWLRQRIUHYHQXHZKHQRUDVWKH&RUSRUDWLRQVDWLVILHVDSHUIRUPDQFH
REOLJDWLRQ

+RXVHKROGXVHUIHHVDUHEDVHGRQDQDQQXDODVVHVVPHQWDSSOLHGWRWKHKRXVHKROG¶V
SURSHUW\WD[DVVHVVPHQW5HYHQXHLVUHFRJQL]HGVWUDLJKWOLQHRYHUWKH\HDURQDPRQWKO\
EDVLVEDVHGRQWKHDQQXDODVVHVVPHQWUDWH

'LVSRVDOUHYHQXHVDUHUHFRJQL]HGZKHQWKHZDVWHKDVEHHQGHOLYHUHGWRWKHGURSRII
IDFLOLWLHV

5HYHQXHVDQGHDUQLQJVIURPXWLOLW\XVHUIHHVDQGH[FHVVH[SHQGLWXUHUHFRYHULHVDUHUHFRUGHG
ZKHQFROOHFWLRQLVUHDVRQDEO\DVVXUHGDQGDOORWKHUVLJQLILFDQWFRQGLWLRQVRIVHUYLFHDUHPHW

'HIHUUHGJRYHUQPHQWDVVLVWDQFH
*RYHUQPHQWJUDQWVUHODWLQJWRWKHDFTXLVLWLRQRIDVVHWVDQGHTXLSPHQWSXUFKDVHGE\
(QYLURQPHQWDO,QGXVWULDO6HUYLFHV,QFDUHUHFRUGHGDVGHIHUUHGFUHGLWV7KLVDFFRXQWLVEHLQJ
DPRUWL]HGRQWKHVDPHEDVLVDVWKHUHODWHGDVVHWVDUHEHLQJGHSUHFLDWHGDQGLVUHIOHFWHGDVD
UHGXFWLRQLQFXUUHQWGHSUHFLDWLRQH[SHQVH

)LQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWV
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VILQDQFLDODVVHWVDUHFODVVLILHGDVIDLUYDOXHWKURXJKSURILWRUORVVRU
DPRUWL]HGFRVW)LQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDUHFODVVLILHGDVDPRUWL]HGFRVW)LQDQFLDODVVHWVDQG
OLDELOLWLHVDUHLQLWLDOO\UHFRJQL]HGDWIDLUYDOXHZLWKVXEVHTXHQWPHDVXUHPHQWEDVHGRQ
FODVVLILFDWLRQ7KHFODVVLILFDWLRQGHSHQGVRQWKHSXUSRVHIRUZKLFKWKHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWV
ZHUHDFTXLUHGWKHLUFKDUDFWHULVWLFVDQGFKRLFHZKHUHDSSOLFDEOH

)LQDQFLDODVVHWVDUHPHDVXUHGDWIDLUYDOXHH[FHSWWKRVHFODVVLILHGDVDPRUWL]HGFRVWZKLFK
DUHLQLWLDOO\UHFRJQL]HGDWIDLUYDOXHQHWRIDQ\WUDQVDFWLRQFRVWVGLUHFWO\DWWULEXWDEOHWRWKH
LVVXDQFHRIWKHLQVWUXPHQWWKHQVXEVHTXHQWO\FDUULHGDWDPRUWL]HGFRVWXVLQJWKHHIIHFWLYH
LQWHUHVWUDWHPHWKRG
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 6XPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV FRQW¶G 

)LQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDUHLQLWLDOO\PHDVXUHGDWIDLUYDOXHQHWRIDQ\WUDQVDFWLRQFRVWVGLUHFWO\
DWWULEXWDEOHWRWKHLVVXDQFHRIWKHLQVWUXPHQWDQGDUHVXEVHTXHQWO\FDUULHGDWFRVWXVLQJWKH
HIIHFWLYHLQWHUHVWUDWHPHWKRG

,PSDLUPHQWRIILQDQFLDODVVHWV
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQPHDVXUHVLPSDLUPHQWRIILQDQFLQJDVVHWVXVLQJDQH[SHFWHGFUHGLWORVV
³(&/´ PRGHO7KLVDSSOLHVWRILQDQFLDODVVHWVFODVVLILHGDWDPRUWL]HGFRVW7KH(&/PRGHO
UHVXOWVLQDQDOORZDQFHIRUFUHGLWORVVHVEHLQJUHFRUGHGRQILQDQFLDODVVHWVUHJDUGOHVVRI
ZKHWKHUWKHUHKDVEHHQDQDFWXDOLPSDLUPHQW

$FFRXQWLQJHVWLPDWHVDQGPHDVXUHPHQWXQFHUWDLQW\
7KHSUHSDUDWLRQRIFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQFRQIRUPLW\ZLWK,)56UHTXLUHVWKHXVH
RIMXGJHPHQWVDVVXPSWLRQVDQGHVWLPDWHVDVDWWKHGDWHRIWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVWKDWDIIHFWWKHUHSRUWHGDPRXQWVRIDVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVGLVFORVXUHRIFRQWLQJHQW
OLDELOLWLHVDQGWKHUHSRUWHGDPRXQWVRIUHYHQXHVDQGH[SHQVHVGXULQJWKHUHSRUWLQJSHULRGV
SUHVHQWHG

0HDVXUHPHQWXQFHUWDLQW\H[LVWVZKHQWKHUHLVDYDULDQFHEHWZHHQWKHUHFRJQL]HGDPRXQWDQG
DQRWKHUUHDVRQDEOHDPRXQW6RPHDFFRXQWLQJPHDVXUHPHQWVUHTXLUHPDQDJHPHQW¶VEHVW
HVWLPDWHEDVHGRQDVVXPSWLRQVDVDWWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWGDWHWKDWUHIOHFWWKH
PRVWSUREDEOHVHWRIHFRQRPLFFRQGLWLRQVDQGSODQQHGFRXUVHVRIDFWLRQ

$VVHWUHWLUHPHQWREOLJDWLRQVHPSOR\HHIXWXUHEHQHILWVDOORZDQFHIRUGRXEWIXODFFRXQWVDQG
GHSUHFLDWLRQDUHWKHPRVWVLJQLILFDQWLWHPVWKDWDUHEDVHGRQDFFRXQWLQJHVWLPDWHV$FWXDO
UHVXOWVFRXOGGLIIHUIURPWKHHVWLPDWHVPDGHE\PDQDJHPHQWLQWKHVHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVDQGWKHVHGLIIHUHQFHVZKLFKPD\EHPDWHULDOFRXOGUHTXLUHDGMXVWPHQWLQ
VXEVHTXHQWUHSRUWLQJSHULRGV6HH1RWHIRUDGGLWLRQDOGHWDLOVRQWKHDVVHWUHWLUHPHQW
REOLJDWLRQ

3URYLVLRQV
3URYLVLRQVDUHUHFRUGHGZKHQDSUHVHQWOHJDORUFRQVWUXFWLYHREOLJDWLRQH[LVWVDVDUHVXOWRI
SDVWHYHQWVZKHUHLWLVSUREDEOHWKDWDQRXWIORZRUUHVRXUFHVHPERG\LQJHFRQRPLFEHQHILWV
ZLOOEHUHTXLUHGWRVHWWOHWKHREOLJDWLRQDQGDUHOLDEOHHVWLPDWHRIWKHDPRXQWRIWKHREOLJDWLRQ
FDQEHPDGH7KHDPRXQWUHFRJQL]HGDVDSURYLVLRQLVWKHEHVWHVWLPDWHRIWKHFRQVLGHUDWLRQ
UHTXLUHGWRVHWWOHWKHSUHVHQWREOLJDWLRQDWWKHFRQVROLGDWHGVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQ
GDWHWDNLQJLQWRDFFRXQWWKHULVNVDQGXQFHUWDLQWLHVVXUURXQGLQJWKHREOLJDWLRQ:KHUHD
SURYLVLRQLVPHDVXUHGXVLQJWKHFDVKIORZVHVWLPDWHGWRVHWWOHWKHSUHVHQWREOLJDWLRQLWV
FDUU\LQJDPRXQWLVWKHSUHVHQWYDOXHRIWKRVHFDVKIORZV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 6XPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV FRQW¶G 

$SURYLVLRQIRURQHURXVFRQWUDFWVLVUHFRJQL]HGZKHQWKHH[SHFWHGEHQHILWVWREHGHULYHGE\
WKH&RUSRUDWLRQIURPDFRQWUDFWDUHORZHUWKDQWKHXQDYRLGDEOHFRVWVRIPHHWLQJLWV
REOLJDWLRQVXQGHUWKHFRQWUDFW

&29,'HVWLPDWLRQXQFHUWDLQW\
,Q 0DUFK  WKH:RUOG +HDOWK 2UJDQL]DWLRQ GHFODUHGD JOREDO SDQGHPLFDV D UHVXOW RIWKH
HPHUJHQFH DQG UDSLG WUDQVPLVVLRQ RI D QRYHO VWUDLQ RI WKH FRURQDYLUXV &29,'   7KH
SDQGHPLF KDV VLJQLILFDQWO\ DIIHFWHG WKH JOREDO HFRQRP\ GLVUXSWLQJ EXVLQHVV RSHUDWLRQV DQG
HFRQRPLF DFWLYLW\ ZRUOGZLGH  7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ KDV QRW REVHUYHG DQ\ PDWHULDO LPSDLUPHQW RQ
DVVHWVRUDVLJQLILFDQWFKDQJHLQRSHUDWLRQVDVDUHVXOWRIWKH&29,'SDQGHPLF+RZHYHU
GXHWRUDSLGGHYHORSPHQWVDQGXQFHUWDLQW\VXUURXQGLQJ&29,'LWLVQRWSRVVLEOHWRSUHGLFWWKH
IXWXUH LPSDFW WKDW &29,' PD\ KDYH RQ WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ¶V ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRQ DQG RSHUDWLQJ
UHVXOWVLQWKHIXWXUH,WLVSRVVLEOHWKDWHVWLPDWHVZLOOFKDQJHDVDUHVXOWRI&29,'DQGWKH
LPSDFWRIFKDQJHVFRXOGEHPDWHULDOWRWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ0DQDJHPHQWLVFORVHO\PRQLWRULQJWKH
JOREDOSDQGHPLF¶VLPSDFWRQWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VRSHUDWLRQVDQGZLOOXSGDWHUHVXOWVDVQHFHVVDU\

6SHFLILFDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV
7RIDFLOLWDWHDEHWWHUXQGHUVWDQGLQJRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
VLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVDUHGLVFORVHGLQWKHQRWHVZKHUHDSSOLFDEOHRIWKHUHODWHG
DFFRXQWLQJWRSLFV$OLVWLQJRIWKHVHQRWHVLVDVIROORZV

1RWH
7RSLF
3DJH


3URSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQW





$VVHWUHWLUHPHQWREOLJDWLRQ





(PSOR\HHIXWXUHEHQHILWV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 5HFHLYDEOHV





  


7UDGH


 
 
6DOHVWD[QHW










 
 


 3URSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQW

$FFRXQWLQJSROLF\
3URSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQWDUHUHSRUWHGDWFRVWOHVVVXEVHTXHQWGHSUHFLDWLRQDQGLPSDLUPHQW
ORVVHV7KHFRVWRISURSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQWLQFOXGHVH[SHQGLWXUHVWKDWDUHGLUHFWO\DWWULEXWDEOH
WRWKHLUDFTXLVLWLRQRUFRQVWUXFWLRQLQFOXGLQJERUURZLQJFRVWVDQGDQ\RWKHUFRVWGLUHFWO\
DWWULEXWDEOHWRWKHLQVWDOODWLRQDQGGHFRPPLVVLRQLQJRIWKHDVVHW3URSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQWDUH
GHSUHFLDWHGRYHUWKHLUHVWLPDWHGOLYHVRQWKHGLPLQLVKLQJEDODQFHEDVLV:KHQSDUWVRIDQLWHP
RISURSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQWKDYHPDWHULDOO\GLIIHUHQWXVHIXOOLYHVRUSDWWHUQVRIEHQHILW
FRQVXPSWLRQWKH\DUHDFFRXQWHGIRUVHSDUDWHO\ LHDVPDMRUFRPSRQHQWV 7KHUDWHVXVHG
DUHDVIROORZV
  
  %XLOGLQJV
\UV VWUDLJKWOLQH

  0RWRUYHKLFOHV
\UV VWUDLJKWOLQH
  2IILFHHTXLSPHQW
\UV VWUDLJKWOLQH

  &RPSXWHUHTXLSPHQW
\UV VWUDLJKWOLQH


  &RPSXWHUVRIWZDUH
\UV VWUDLJKWOLQH

  /HDVHKROGLPSURYHPHQWV
\UV VWUDLJKWOLQH

  6LWHHTXLSPHQW
DQG\UV VWUDLJKWOLQH
  /HDFKDWHIDFLOLW\
DQG\UV VWUDLJKWOLQH

  &RPSRVWIDFLOLW\
DQG\UV VWUDLJKWOLQH
  :DVWH:DWFKGURSRIIFHQWHUV
\UV VWUDLJKWOLQH
  :DVWHDQGFRPSRVWFDUWV
DQG\UV VWUDLJKWOLQH
  :DVWHZDWHULQIUDVWUXFWXUH
\UV VWUDLJKWOLQH

/DQGILOOFHOOVDUHGHSUHFLDWHGEDVHGRQYROXPHXVHGWKURXJKRXWWKH\HDU

0DWHULDOUHVLGXDOYDOXHHVWLPDWHVDQGHVWLPDWHVRIXVHIXOOLIHDUHXSGDWHGDVUHTXLUHGEXWDW
OHDVWDQQXDOO\

,$6,PSDLUPHQWRI$VVHWVUHTXLUHVDQHQWLW\WRWHVWDVVHWVIRULPSDLUPHQWLILQGLFDWLRQVRI
LPSDLUPHQWH[LVW%DVHGRQDQDQDO\VLVRIFDVKIORZVWKH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVHVWDEOLVKHGWKDW
WKHDSSURSULDWHFDVKJHQHUDWLQJXQLWIRULPSDLUPHQWUHYLHZLVWKHHQWLUHHQWLW\$VWKH
&RUSRUDWLRQKDVWKHSRZHUWRLQFUHDVHGLVSRVDODQGVHZHUUDWHVWRHQVXUHIXOOIXQGLQJLQWR
WKHIRUHVHHDEOHIXWXUHLPSDLUPHQWDWWKHHQWLW\OHYHOLVUHPRWH$VDW0DUFK
PDQDJHPHQWFRQGXFWHGDQLPSDLUPHQWUHYLHZDWWKHHQWLW\OHYHOZKLFKFRQILUPHGWKDWWKHUH
ZHUHQRVLJQLILFDQWLQGLFDWRUVRILPSDLUPHQWZKLFKZRXOGKDYHDPDWHULDOLPSDFWRQWKH
&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VDELOLW\WRJHQHUDWHIXWXUHHFRQRPLFEHQHILWVIURPLWVRSHUDWLQJQRQILQDQFLDO
DVVHWV









*URVVFDUU\LQJ
%DODQFH$SU
$GGLWLRQV
'LVSRVLWLRQV
%DODQFH0DU

'HSUHFLDWLRQDQG
,PSDLUPHQW
%DODQFH$SU
'LVSRVDOV
'HSUHFLDWLRQ
%DODQFH0DU

&DUU\LQJDPRXQW

*URVVFDUU\LQJ
%DODQFH$SU
$GGLWLRQV
'LVSRVLWLRQV
%DODQFH0DU

'HSUHFLDWLRQDQG
,PSDLUPHQW
%DODQFH$SU
'LVSRVDOV
'HSUHFLDWLRQ
%DODQFH0DU

&DUU\LQJDPRXQW














   
  


  

   









   
  


 

   

 




 





      

     


  
 
 

      

 

 
 






 

 
 

 



 
 



           

              

   
 
 
 

                 
                 

   

  

   
   

      






           

              

       
 

                 
              

      

  



 
  


7RWDO
 



 
 

2IILFH 
(,6, 
HTXLS ,QIUDVWUXFW 

      
  
   

      
 

      

:DVWH 
6LWH 
0RWRU 
FDUWV  HTXLSPHQW  YHKLFOHV 



   

  

   
   

&RPSRVW :DVWH:DWFK 
IDFLOLW\  GURSRII 

 




 

/DQGILOO  /HDFKDWH 
FHOOV 
IDFLOLW\ 



            
 


 
 

          
 
            


















%XLOGLQJV  

  
    
 


 

         
        







/DQG

















0DUFK

 3URSHUW\DQGHTXLSPHQW FRQW¶G 


,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 /RQJWHUPGHEW

 


GHEHQWXUHDPRUWL]HGWRDQGPDWXULQJ
LQ'HFHPEHUSD\DEOHLQTXDUWHUO\
LQVWDOPHQWVRISULQFLSDODQGLQWHUHVWRI
7KHGHEHQWXUHLVXQFRQGLWLRQDOO\VHFXUHGE\WKH
3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG

    

GHEHQWXUHDPRUWL]HGWRDQGPDWXULQJLQ
-XQHSD\DEOHLQPRQWKO\LQVWDOPHQWVRI
SULQFLSDODQGLQWHUHVWRI

 
 


GHEHQWXUHDPRUWL]HGDQGPDWXULQJLQ-DQXDU\
SD\DEOHLQPRQWKO\LQVWDOPHQWVRISULQFLSDO
DQGLQWHUHVWRI

 
 


3ULPHSOXVGHPDQGORDQDGYDQFHGWR
(QYLURQPHQWDO,QGXVWULDO6HUYLFHV,QF$VVHFXULW\
IRUWKHORDQWKHERUURZHUKDVSURYLGHGD
SURPLVVRU\QRWHIRUWKHIXOODPRXQWRIWKHORDQ
7KHORDQZLOOQRWEHRXWVWDQGLQJIRUDSHULRG
JUHDWHUWKDQPRQWKV

 
 


3ULPHSOXVGHPDQGORDQDGYDQFHGWR
(QYLURQPHQWDO,QGXVWULDO6HUYLFHV,QF$VVHFXULW\
IRUWKHORDQWKHERUURZHUKDVSURYLGHGD
SURPLVVRU\QRWHIRUWKHIXOODPRXQWRIWKHORDQ
 
 


GHEHQWXUHDPRUWL]HGWRDQGPDWXULQJLQ
1RYHPEHUSD\DEOHLQPRQWKO\LQVWDOPHQWVRI
SULQFLSDODQGLQWHUHVWRI

 
 



    

/HVVFXUUHQWSRUWLRQ


 

GHEWGXHRQGHPDQG


  




    


%DVHGRQQRUPDOUHSD\PHQWWHUPVDQQXDOSULQFLSDOUHSD\PHQWVLQHDFKRIWKHQH[WILYH\HDUV
DUHGXHDVIROORZV
DQGEH\RQG
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 5HYHQXHIURPFRQWUDFWVZLWKFXVWRPHUV
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVUHFRJQL]HGWKHIROORZLQJDPRXQWVUHODWHGWRUHYHQXHLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK
,)56RQWKHVWDWHPHQWRIRSHUDWLRQVDQGFKDQJHVLQQHWDVVHWV

  

 

+RXVHKROGXVHUIHHV
   
'LVSRVDOIHHV

 

7LUHV

 

'HFRPPLVVLRQLQJDQGPRQLWRULQJ

 

(QYLURQPHQWDO,QGXVWULDO6HUYLFHV,QF

 

6WHZDUGVKLSVDQGRWKHU

 


  
   

7KHVHUHYHQXHVUHFRJQL]HGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK,)56ZHUHGHULYHGIURPKRXVHKROGXVHU
IHHVDQGZDVWHPDQDJHPHQWGLVSRVDOVLWHV7KH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVQRWUHFRJQL]HGDQ\DGGLWLRQDO
FRQWUDFWDVVHWVRUOLDELOLWLHVDVVRFLDWHGZLWKWKLVUHYHQXH


 'HIHUUHGJRYHUQPHQWDVVLVWDQFH

'HIHUUHGUHYHQXHUHSUHVHQWVJRYHUQPHQWDVVLVWDQFHUHFHLYHGE\(QYLURQPHQWDO,QGXVWULDO
6HUYLFHV,QFIRUZDWHUDQGVHZHULQIUDVWUXFWXUH7KHUHYHQXHZLOOEHUHFRJQL]HGRYHUWKHOLIHRI
WKHDVVRFLDWHGZDWHUDQGVHZHUDVVHWV
  

 

%DODQFHEHJLQQLQJRI\HDU
  

$PRXQWUHFHLYHGRUUHFHLYDEOHGXULQJWKH\HDU

 

$PRXQWUHFRJQL]HGDVUHYHQXHGXULQJWKH\HDU

   
 

%DODQFHHQGRI\HDU
   


 $VVHWUHWLUHPHQWREOLJDWLRQ

$FFRXQWLQJSROLF\
$QDVVHWUHWLUHPHQWREOLJDWLRQLVUHFRJQL]HGDVDOLDELOLW\IRUREOLJDWLRQVDVVRFLDWHGZLWKWKH
FORVXUHRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VODQGILOOVLWHDQGUHWXUQLQJVXFKODQGWRLWVRULJLQDOFRQGLWLRQDVVHW
E\VWDQGDUGVRIHQYLURQPHQWDOUHJXODWLRQV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 $VVHWUHWLUHPHQWREOLJDWLRQ FRQW¶G 

$VVHWUHWLUHPHQWREOLJDWLRQVDUHPHDVXUHGDWWKHSUHVHQWYDOXHRIPDQDJHPHQW¶VEHVW
HVWLPDWHRIWKHH[SHQGLWXUHUHTXLUHGWRVHWWOHWKHSUHVHQWREOLJDWLRQDWWKHGDWHRIWKH
VWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQ3URYLVLRQVDUHGHWHUPLQHGE\GLVFRXQWLQJWKHH[SHFWHGIXWXUH
FDVKIORZVDWDULVNIUHHUDWH7KHH[SHFWHGFDVKIORZVUHIOHFWFXUUHQWPDUNHWDVVHVVPHQWV
DQGWKHULVNVVSHFLILFWRWKHOLDELOLW\

7KHREOLJDWLRQLVUHYLHZHGUHJXODUO\E\WKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VPDQDJHPHQWEDVHGRQFXUUHQW
UHJXODWLRQVFRVWWHFKQRORJLHVDQGLQGXVWU\VWDQGDUGV7KHGLVFRXQWHGREOLJDWLRQLVLQLWLDOO\
FDSLWDOL]HGDVSDUWRIWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIWKHUHODWHGODQGILOODQGDFRUUHVSRQGLQJOLDELOLW\LV
UHFRJQL]HG7KHLQFUHDVHLQWKHODQGILOOVLWHDVVHWLVGHSUHFLDWHGRYHUWKHHVWLPDWHGOLIHRIWKH
FRUUHVSRQGLQJODQGILOOZKLOHWKHOLDELOLW\LVDFFUHWHGDVILQDQFHH[SHQVHLQHDUQLQJVXQWLO
VHWWOHGRUVROG6XEVHTXHQWWRWKHLQLWLDOPHDVXUHPHQWWKHREOLJDWLRQLVDGMXVWHGDWWKHHQGRI
HDFKSHULRGWRUHIOHFWWKHSDVVDJHRIWLPHFKDQJHVLQWKHHVWLPDWHGIXWXUHFDVKIORZV
XQGHUO\LQJWKHREOLJDWLRQDQGFKDQJHVLQWKHULVNIUHHUDWH(VWLPDWHGIXWXUHFDVKIORZVDUH
EDVHGRQHVWLPDWHGFXUUHQWFRVWVDGMXVWHGWRWKHIXWXUHH[SHFWHGFORVXUHGDWHE\DSSO\LQJDQ
HVWLPDWHRILQIODWLRQ7KHLQFUHDVHLQWKHREOLJDWLRQGXHWRWKHSDVVDJHRIWLPHLVUHFRJQL]HG
DVILQDQFHH[SHQVHVZKHUHDVLQFUHDVHVDQGRUGHFUHDVHVGXHWRFKDQJHVLQWKHHVWLPDWHG
IXWXUHFDVKIORZVRUFKDQJHVLQWKHULVNIUHHUDWHDUHFDSLWDOL]HG$FWXDOFRVWVLQFXUUHGXSRQ
VHWWOHPHQWRIWKHREOLJDWLRQDUHFKDUJHGDJDLQVWWKHREOLJDWLRQWRWKHH[WHQWWKHREOLJDWLRQ
ZDVHVWDEOLVKHG

$Q\UHGXFWLRQRQWKHREOLJDWLRQDQGWKHUHIRUHDQ\GHGXFWLRQIURPWKHDVVHWWRZKLFKLW
UHODWHVPD\QRWH[FHHGWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIWKDWDVVHW,ILWGRHVDQ\H[FHVVRYHUWKH
FDUU\LQJYDOXHLVWDNHQLPPHGLDWHO\WRSURILWRUORVV

,IWKHFKDQJHLQHVWLPDWHUHVXOWVLQDQLQFUHDVHLQWKHREOLJDWLRQDQGWKHUHIRUHDQDGGLWLRQWR
WKHFDUU\LQJYDOXHRIWKHDVVHWWKH&RUSRUDWLRQFRQVLGHUVZKHWKHUWKLVLVDQLQGLFDWLRQRI
LPSDLUPHQWRIWKHDVVHWDVDZKROHDQGLIVRWHVWVIRULPSDLUPHQWLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK,$6
,IWKHUHYLVHGDVVHWVQHWRIREOLJDWLRQH[FHHGVWKHUHFRYHUDEOHYDOXHWKDWSRUWLRQRIWKH
LQFUHDVHLVFKDUJHGGLUHFWO\WRH[SHQVHV

7KHIROORZLQJSUHVHQWVWKHUHFRQFLOLDWLRQRIWKHEHJLQQLQJDQGHQGLQJDJJUHJDWHFDUU\LQJ
DPRXQWRIWKHREOLJDWLRQ
  





$VVHWUHWLUHPHQWREOLJDWLRQEHJLQQLQJRI\HDU
   
/LDELOLWLHVLQFXUUHG
   

$FFUHWLRQH[SHQVH

 


$VVHWUHWLUHPHQWREOLJDWLRQHQGRI\HDU
   

7KHNH\DVVXPSWLRQVRQZKLFKWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIWKHREOLJDWLRQLVEDVHGLQFOXGHDULVN
IUHHUDWHRI ± DQGLQIODWLRQUDWHRI7KHWRWDOXQGLVFRXQWHGDPRXQWRI
WKHHVWLPDWHGFDVKIORZVUHTXLUHGWRVHWWOHWKHUHPDLQLQJREOLJDWLRQLV 
 ZKLFKLVQHWRIDPRXQWVSDLGLQSUHYLRXV\HDUVWRWDOOLQJ7KHH[SHFWHG
WLPLQJRISD\PHQWRIWKHFDVKIORZUHTXLUHGIRUVHWWOLQJWKHREOLJDWLRQLVWR\HDUV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 &RPPLWPHQWV

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQFRQGXFWVDSRUWLRQRILWVRSHUDWLRQVWKHFRPSRVWIDFLOLW\SXUVXDQWWRDQ
RSHUDWLQJDJUHHPHQWZLWKDWKLUGSDUW\RSHUDWRU(IIHFWLYH$SULOWKHDJUHHPHQWSURYLGHV
IRUWKHSD\PHQWE\WKH&RUSRUDWLRQWRWKHRSHUDWRURIWKHIDFLOLW\DPLQLPXPDQQXDOIHHSOXVDQ
H[FHVVWRQQDJHIHH7KHPLQLPXPDQQXDOIHHFRPPLWPHQWXQGHUWKHRSHUDWLQJDJUHHPHQWLV
DVIROORZV




  

  

  


7KH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVHQWHUHGLQWRYDULRXVDJUHHPHQWVIRUWKHFROOHFWLRQRIUHF\FODEOHVZDVWH
DQGFRPSRVWPDWHULDOV(IIHFWLYH-XO\WKH&RUSRUDWLRQHQWHUHGLQWRLWVQHZFRQWUDFWIRU
UHF\FODEOHVZKLFKFDUULHVLQWR0LQLPXPSD\PHQWVIRUWKHFRQWUDFWVFXUUHQWO\LQSODFHDUH
DVIROORZV










  

  

  

  

  


7KH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVHQWHUHGLQWRDZDVWHSURFHVVLQJDJUHHPHQWGDWHG$XJXVWWR
VXSSO\3(,(QHUJ\6\VWHPVZLWKDPLQLPXPDQQXDOJXDUDQWHHGDPRXQWRIPHWULF
WRQQHVRIZDVWH7KH\HDUDJUHHPHQWH[SLULQJLQ$XJXVWSURYLGHVIRUWKHSD\PHQWE\
WKH&RUSRUDWLRQRIDSHUPHWULFWRQQHTXDUWHUO\IHHDGMXVWHGIRUFRQVXPHUSULFHLQGH[
IOXFWXDWLRQV$Q\VKRUWDJHLVWKHUHVSRQVLELOLW\RIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ&XUUHQWDQQXDOFRVWVIRUWKH
ZDVWHSURFHVVLQJDUHHVWLPDWHGDW  


 )LQDQFLDOULVNPDQDJHPHQW

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVFRQVLVWRIFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVUHFHLYDEOHV
DFFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQGDFFUXHGOLDELOLWLHVDQGORQJWHUPGHEW

)LQDQFLDOULVNIDFWRUV
7KHIROORZLQJVHFWLRQVGHVFULEHWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VILQDQFLDOULVNH[SRVXUHDQGUHODWHGPLWLJDWLRQ
VWUDWHJLHV

&UHGLWULVN
&UHGLWULVNLVWKHULVNRIDQXQH[SHFWHGORVVLIDFXVWRPHURUFRXQWHUSDUW\WRDILQDQFLDO
LQVWUXPHQWIDLOVWRPHHWLWVFRQWUDFWXDOREOLJDWLRQV7KH&RUSRUDWLRQLVVXEMHFWWRFUHGLWULVN
WKURXJKWUDGHUHFHLYDEOHV7KH&RUSRUDWLRQPLWLJDWHVFUHGLWULVNDVVRFLDWHGZLWKLWVWUDGH
UHFHLYDEOHVWKURXJKHVWDEOLVKLQJFUHGLWDSSURYDOOLPLWVDQGDUHJXODUPRQLWRULQJSURFHVV7KH
&RUSRUDWLRQJHQHUDOO\FRQVLGHUVWKHFUHGLWTXDOLW\RILWVILQDQFLDODVVHWVWKDWDUHQHLWKHUSDVW
GXHRULPSDLUHGWREHVROLG&UHGLWULVNLVPLWLJDWHGGXHWRWKHODUJHQXPEHURIFXVWRPHUV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 )LQDQFLDOULVNPDQDJHPHQW FRQW¶G 

$OORZDQFHIRUGRXEWIXODFFRXQWVLVUHYLHZHGDWHDFKEDODQFHVKHHWGDWH7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ
XSGDWHVLWVHVWLPDWHVRIDOORZDQFHVIRUGRXEWIXODFFRXQWVEDVHGRQFXVWRPHUKLVWRU\

+RXVHKROGXVHUIHHVDUHFROOHFWHGE\WKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGWKURXJKLWV
SURYLQFLDOWD[V\VWHP

,QWHUHVWUDWHULVN
,QWHUHVWUDWHULVNLVWKHSRWHQWLDOIRUILQDQFLDOORVVDULVLQJIURPFKDQJHVLQLQWHUHVWUDWHV
)LQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVWKDWSRWHQWLDOO\VXEMHFWWKH&RUSRUDWLRQWRLQWHUHVWUDWHULVNLQFOXGH
ILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVZLWKIORDWLQJLQWHUHVWUDWHV7KH&RUSRUDWLRQFXUUHQWO\KDVQRVLJQLILFDQW
ILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVZKLFKDUHH[SRVHGWRLQWHUHVWUDWHULVNGXHWRIORDWLQJUDWHVEXWLV
H[SRVHGWRULVNDVVRFLDWHGZLWKIL[HGWHUPGHEWWKDWPDWXUHVDVQRWHGLQ1RWH

/LTXLGLW\ULVN
/LTXLGLW\ULVNLVWKHULVNWKDWWKH&RUSRUDWLRQPD\QRWKDYHFDVKDYDLODEOHWRVDWLVI\ILQDQFLDO
OLDELOLWLHVDVWKH\FRPHGXH7KH&RUSRUDWLRQSUHSDUHVDQDQQXDOFDVKIORZEXGJHWZKLFKLW
PRQLWRUVRQDPRQWKO\EDVLVWRHQVXUHWKDWLWKDVVXIILFLHQWDYDLODEOHIXQGVWRPHHWFXUUHQW
DQGIRUHVHHDEOHIXWXUHILQDQFLDOUHTXLUHPHQWV

0DUNHWULVN
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQLVVXEMHFWWRPDUNHWULVNUHODWHGWRWKHSULFHRIGLHVHOIXHO7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ
KDVHQWHUHGLQWRYDULRXVDJUHHPHQWVIRUWKHFROOHFWLRQRIUHF\FODEOHVZDVWHDQGFRPSRVW
PDWHULDOV7KHVHFRQWUDFWVLQFOXGHDSURYLVLRQWKDWUHTXLUHVWKH&RUSRUDWLRQWRSD\DQDQQXDO
IXHODGMXVWPHQWEDVHGRQWKHDQQXDODYHUDJHSULFHRIGLHVHOIXHODVFRPSDUHGWRWKHEDVH
UDWHSHUWKHFRQWUDFW)RUWKH\HDUHQG0DUFKKDGWKHDYHUDJHSULFHRIGLHVHOIXHO
LQFUHDVHGRUGHFUHDVHGE\GXULQJWKH\HDUWKHHDUQLQJVRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQZRXOGKDYH
LQFUHDVHGRUGHFUHDVHGE\DSSUR[LPDWHO\  7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ
FXUUHQWO\KDVQRVWUDWHJ\LQSODFHWRPLWLJDWHWKLVULVN0DQDJHPHQWGRHVPRQLWRUWKHFXUUHQW
SULFHRIIXHORQDUHJXODUEDVLV

)DLUYDOXHV
7KHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWVIRUFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVUHFHLYDEOHVDFFRXQWVSD\DEOHDQG
DFFUXHGOLDELOLWLHVDSSUR[LPDWHIDLUYDOXHGXHWRWKHVKRUWWHUPPDWXULW\RIWKHVHLQVWUXPHQWV
RUWHUPVRIWKHLQVWUXPHQW7KHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWIRUWKHORQJWHUPGHEWDSSUR[LPDWHGIDLU
YDOXHDVWKHLQWHUHVWUDWHZDVUHIOHFWLYHRIUDWHVDYDLODEOHIRUVLPLODUGHEW
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 )LQDQFLDOULVNPDQDJHPHQW FRQW¶G 

,)56³)LQDQFLDO,QVWUXPHQWV±'LVFORVXUHV´SUHVFULEHVWKHIROORZLQJWKUHHOHYHOIDLUYDOXH
KLHUDUFK\IRUGLVFORVXUHSXUSRVHVEDVHGRQWKHWUDQVSDUHQF\RIWKHLQSXWVXVHGWRPHDVXUH
WKHIDLUYDOXHVRIWKHDVVHWDQGOLDELOLWLHV

D  /HYHO±TXRWHGSULFH XQDGMXVWHG RILGHQWLFDOLQVWUXPHQWVLQDFWLYHPDUNHWVWKDWWKH
UHSRUWLQJHQWLW\KDVWKHDELOLW\WRDFFHVVDWWKHPHDVXUHPHQWGDWH
E  /HYHO±LQSXWVDUHTXRWHGSULFHVRIVLPLODULQVWUXPHQWVLQDFWLYHPDUNHWVTXRWHG
SULFHVIRULGHQWLFDORUVLPLODULQVWUXPHQWVLQPDUNHWVWKDWDUHQRWDFWLYHLQSXWVRWKHU
WKDQTXRWHGSULFHVXVHGLQDYDOXDWLRQPRGHOWKDWDUHREVHUYDEOHIRUWKDWLQVWUXPHQW
DQGLQSXWVWKDWDUHGHULYHGSULQFLSDOO\IURPRUFRUURERUDWHGE\REVHUYDEOHPDUNHW
GDWDE\FRUUHODWLRQRURWKHUPHDQV
F  /HYHO±RQHRUPRUHVLJQLILFDQWLQSXWVXVHGLQDYDOXDWLRQWHFKQLTXHDUH
XQREVHUYDEOHIRUWKHLQVWUXPHQWV

'HWHUPLQDWLRQRIIDLUYDOXHDQGWKHUHVXOWLQJKLHUDUFK\UHTXLUHVWKHXVHRIREVHUYDEOHPDUNHW
GDWDZKHQHYHUDYDLODEOH7KHFODVVLILFDWLRQRIDILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWLQWKHKLHUDUFK\LVEDVHG
XSRQWKHORZHVWOHYHORILQSXWWKDWLVVLJQLILFDQWWRWKHPHDVXUHPHQWRIIDLUYDOXH

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQGRHVQRWKDYHDQ\ILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVPHDVXUHGDWIDLUYDOXH


 (PSOR\HHIXWXUHEHQHILWV

6KRUWWHUPEHQHILWV
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VVKRUWWHUPEHQHILWVIRUTXDOLILHGDFWLYHHPSOR\HHVLQFOXGHEDVHVDODU\
FRPSHQVDWHGDEVHQFHVJURXSOLIHLQVXUDQFHGHQWDODQGPHGLFDOFRYHUDJH

3HQVLRQSODQ
7KHSHUPDQHQWHPSOR\HHVRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQSDUWLFLSDWHLQWKHPXOWLHPSOR\HUFRQWULEXWRU\
GHILQHGEHQHILWSHQVLRQSODQDGPLQLVWHUHGE\WKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGXQGHUWKH
&LYLO6HUYLFH6XSHUDQQXDWLRQ$FW7KH&LYLO6HUYLFH6XSHUDQQXDWLRQ)XQGSURYLGHVSHQVLRQV
WRHPSOR\HHVRIWKH3URYLQFLDO*RYHUQPHQWDQGFHUWDLQFURZQFRUSRUDWLRQVDQGDJHQFLHV
EDVHGRQWKHOHQJWKRIVHUYLFHDQGDYHUDJHVDODU\6LQFHVXIILFLHQWLQIRUPDWLRQLVQRWUHDGLO\
DYDLODEOHWRDFFRXQWIRUWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VSDUWLFLSDWLRQLQWKHSODQXVLQJGHILQHGEHQHILW
SHQVLRQSODQDFFRXQWLQJWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVKDYHEHHQSUHSDUHGXVLQJDFFRXQWLQJ
UXOHVIRUGHILQHGFRQWULEXWLRQSHQVLRQSODQV7KHFXUUHQW\HDUH[SHQVHIRUWKLVSHQVLRQSODQLV
  

$W0DUFKWKH3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG3XEOLF6HFWRU3HQVLRQ3ODQUHSRUWHGWKDWWKH
SHQVLRQSODQZDVIXOO\IXQGHG
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 (PSOR\HHIXWXUHEHQHILWV FRQW¶G 

5HWLUHPHQWSD\EHQHILWV
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQVFXUUHQWO\SURYLGHVDUHWLUHPHQWSD\EHQHILWHTXDOWRRQHZHHNV¶SD\IRUHDFK
\HDURIVHUYLFHVXEMHFWWRDPD[LPXPEHQHILWHTXDOWRZHHNV¶SD\7KHUHWLUHPHQWSD\
EHQHILWLVSD\DEOHXSRQUHWLUHPHQW(PSOR\HHVTXDOLI\DWUHWLUHPHQWLIWKH\KDYHDFFUXHG
\HDUVRIVHUYLFHDWWDLQHGDJHDQGDUHHOLJLEOHWRUHFHLYHDSHQVLRQIURPWKH&LYLO6HUYLFH
6XSHUDQQXDWLRQ)XQG5HWLUHPHQWSD\EHQHILWVDUHDFFUXHGRQDQDQQXDOEDVLVEDVHGRQ
HOLJLELOLW\DQGDUHUHIOHFWHGLQWKHDFFRXQWVSD\DEOHDW\HDUHQG

(PSOR\HHEHQHILWVULVNV
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VGHILQHGEHQHILWSODQLVLQGLUHFWO\H[SRVHGWRHFRQRPLFULVNVZLWKUHVSHFWWR
PHDVXUHPHQWULVNIURPDVVXPSWLRQVEDVHGRQHFRQRPLFIDFWRUVVXFKDVGLVFRXQWUDWHV
DIIHFWHGE\YRODWLOHERQGPDUNHWV%HQHILWREOLJDWLRQVDUHH[SRVHGWRXQFHUWDLQW\RIIXWXUH
HFRQRPLFFRQGLWLRQVSULPDULO\LQIODWLRQULVNGXHWRXQFHUWDLQW\RIWKHWLPLQJRIWKHSD\PHQWV


'HPRJUDSKLFIDFWRUVDIIHFWFXUUHQWDQGIXWXUHEHQHILWFRVWVZLWKUHVSHFWWRWKHDPRXQWDQG
WLPHKRUL]RQRIH[SHFWHGSD\PHQWVGXHWRVXFKIDFWRUVDVZRUNIRUFHDYHUDJHDJHDQG
HDUQLQJVOHYHOVDWWULWLRQDQGUHWLUHPHQWUDWHV

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQLVDOVRH[SRVHGWRIXQGLQJULVNLQWKHPXOWLHPSOR\HUSODQVDULVLQJIURP
OHJLVODWLYHFKDQJHVDIIHFWLQJHOLJLELOLW\IRUDQGDPRXQWRISHQVLRQDQGUHODWHGEHQHILWVDQG
SHUIRUPDQFHRISODQDVVHWVDIIHFWHGE\LQYHVWPHQWSROLFLHVVHWE\WKHJRYHUQPHQW%HFDXVH
WKHVHSODQVDUHJRYHUQHGE\OHJLVODWLRQUDWKHUWKDQFRQWUDFWWKHUHLVOLWWOHIOH[LELOLW\IRU
SDUWLFLSDQWVZLWKUHVSHFWWRZLWKGUDZDOIURPWKHSODQSODQZLQGXSRUDPHQGPHQWVDQG
IXQGLQJUHTXLUHPHQWV


 5HODWHGSDUW\WUDQVDFWLRQV


,QFOXGHGLQWKHVHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDUHWUDQVDFWLRQVZLWKYDULRXV3ULQFH(GZDUG
,VODQGFURZQFRUSRUDWLRQVGHSDUWPHQWVDJHQFLHVDQGERDUGVUHODWHGWRWKH&RUSRUDWLRQE\
YLUWXHRIFRPPRQLQIOXHQFHE\WKH*RYHUQPHQWRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG5RXWLQHRSHUDWLQJ
WUDQVDFWLRQVLQWKHRUGLQDU\FRXUVHRIEXVLQHVVZLWKUHODWHGSDUWLHVDUHVHWWOHGDWSUHYDLOLQJ
PDUNHWSULFHVXQGHUQRUPDOWUDGHWHUPV

7KHWDEOHEHORZSUHVHQWVWRWDOFRPSHQVDWLRQRIWKHNH\PDQDJHPHQWSHUVRQQHOZKLFK
LQFOXGHVWKH%RDUGRI'LUHFWRUVDQGVHQLRUH[HFXWLYHPDQDJHPHQW%RDUGRI'LUHFWRU
+RQRUDULXPVDUHSDLGEDVHGRQVWDQGDUGVVHWDQGDSSURYHGE\WKH7UHDVXU\%RDUG




6KRUWWHUPHPSOR\HHEHQHILWV
3RVWHPSOR\PHQWEHQHILWV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 5DWHUHJXODWLRQ

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQLVVXEMHFWWRUDWHUHJXODWLRQRQWKHKRXVHKROGXVHUIHHVDQGGLVSRVDOIHHV
FKDUJHGWRUHVLGHQWVRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGXQGHUWKHIsland Regulatory Appeals
Commission Act7KHSXUSRVHRIWKLV$FWZKLFKLVDGPLQLVWHUHGE\WKH,VODQG5HJXODWRU\DQG
$SSHDO&RPPLVVLRQ ,5$& LVWRUHJXODWHWKHUDWHWKH&RUSRUDWLRQPD\FKDUJHIRUFROOHFWLRQ
DQGGLVSRVDORIVROLGZDVWHZLWKLQ3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGDQGWRHQVXUHDWDOOWLPHVDMXVWDQG
UHDVRQDEOHSULFHIRUWKLVVHUYLFH&KDQJHVLQKRXVHKROGXVHUIHHVDQGGLVSRVDOIHHVFDQRQO\
EHLPSOHPHQWHGZLWKWKHDSSURYDORI,5$&


 &DSLWDOPDQDJHPHQW

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VREMHFWLYHVZKHQPDQDJLQJFDSLWDOLVWRVDIHJXDUGWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VDELOLW\WR
VXSSRUWWKHQRUPDORSHUDWLQJUHTXLUHPHQWVRQDQRQJRLQJEDVLVVXSSRUWDQ\FDSLWDO
H[SHQGLWXUHVWKDWPD\EHUHTXLUHGLQWKHQRUPDORSHUDWLRQVRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQDQGJHQHUDWH
VXIILFLHQWFDVKIORZWRPDQDJHLWVH[LVWLQJGHEW

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VFDSLWDOFRQVLVWVRIFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVORQJWHUPGHEWDQGQHWDVVHWV
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VSULPDU\XVHVRIWKHVHIXQGVDUHWRILQDQFHFDSLWDOH[SHQGLWXUHVUHSD\GHEW
REOLJDWLRQVDQGIXQGQRUPDORSHUDWLRQV,QRUGHUWRIDFLOLWDWHWKHPDQDJHPHQWRILWVFDSLWDO
UHTXLUHPHQWVWKH&RUSRUDWLRQSUHSDUHVDQQXDORSHUDWLQJEXGJHWVDQGDFWXDOWREXGJHW
IRUHFDVWVRQDTXDUWHUO\EDVLV7RPDLQWDLQRUREWDLQDGGLWLRQDOFDSLWDOWKH&RUSRUDWLRQPD\
LVVXHQHZGHEWUHGXFHRSHUDWLQJFRVWVXWLOL]HWKHFHQWUDOEDQNLQJFUHGLWDJUHHPHQWRUPDNHD
UHTXHVWWR,5$&WRLQFUHDVHKRXVHKROGXVHUDQGGLVSRVDOIHHV

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQLVQRWVXEMHFWWRH[WHUQDOO\LPSRVHGFDSLWDOUHTXLUHPHQWVDQGWKHUHKDYHEHHQ
QRFKDQJHVZLWKUHVSHFWWRWKHRYHUDOOFDSLWDOULVNPDQDJHPHQWVWUDWHJ\GXULQJWKH\HDU


 %DQNLQGHEWHGQHVV

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVDQDXWKRUL]HGRSHUDWLQJRYHUGUDIWRI7KHRSHUDWLQJRYHUGUDIW
EHDUVLQWHUHVWDWSULPHOHVVIRUXSWR3ULPHDW0DUFKZDV$V
VHFXULW\WKH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVSURYLGHGDJHQHUDOVHFXULW\DJUHHPHQWRQLWVLQYHVWPHQWV WHUP
GHSRVLWV KHOGZLWK7RURQWR'RPLQLRQ%DQN7KHRYHUGUDIWSURWHFWLRQGRHVQRWUHTXLUHILQDQFLDO
JXDUDQWHH


 2WKHUPDWWHUV

&RVWVDVVRFLDWHGZLWKWKHFORVXUHDQGGHFRPPLVVLRQLQJRISURYLQFLDOGXPSVLWHVDUHWKH
UHVSRQVLELOLW\RIWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
&RQVROLGDWHG6FKHGXOHRI5HYHQXHV
<HDUHQGHG0DUFK








 



 



 



 



 

 















 
 











 

 

 

+RXVHKROG8VHU)HHV

%LOOHGE\,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
%LOOHGWKURXJKSURSHUW\WD[HV
&DUWUHYHQXHV
5HIXQGVDQGDGMXVWPHQWV

  



'LVSRVDO)HHV

(DVW3ULQFH:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW)DFLOLW\
(QHUJ\IURP:DVWH
&HQWUDO&RPSRVW)DFLOLW\
%URFNWRQ
'LQJZHOOV0LOOV
0XUUD\5LYHU
1HZ/RQGRQ
2WKHU
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
&RQVROLGDWHG6FKHGXOHRI([SHQGLWXUHV
<HDUHQGHG0DUFK
























 



























 









 


 

$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ

'XHVDQGPHPEHUVKLSV
,QVXUDQFH
,QWHUHVWDQGEDQNFKDUJHV
0LVFHOODQHRXV
2IILFHHTXLSPHQW
2IILFHVXSSOLHV
3URIHVVLRQDOIHHV
5HQW
5HSDLUVDQGPDLQWHQDQFH
6DODULHVDQGEHQHILWV
6XSSOLHV
7HOHSKRQH
7UDYHO
8WLOLWLHV





$GYHUWLVLQJ(GXFDWLRQDQG3XEOLF5HODWLRQV

$GYHUWLVLQJ
(GXFDWLRQ
3XEOLFUHODWLRQV
:DJHVDQGEHQHILWV




















 






 

5HVLGHQWLDO&ROOHFWLRQ

&DUWSXUFKDVHVDQGZULWHRIIV
&ROOHFWLRQFRQWUDFWV
 &RPSRVWDQGZDVWH
 5HF\FODEOHV
2SHUDWLRQVVXSSRUWWHFKQLFLDQV
 :DJHVDQGEHQHILWV
 9HKLFOHDQGVXSSOLHV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
&RQVROLGDWHG6FKHGXOHRI([SHQGLWXUHV
<HDUHQGHG0DUFK
   

'LVSRVDO

(DVW3ULQFH:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW)DFLOLW\

 $FFUHWLRQ
(TXLSPHQWUHQWDO
*DVDQGRLO
+RXVHKROGKD]DUGRXVZDVWH
/HDFKDWHGLVSRVDO
2IILFHDQGPLVFHOODQHRXV
5HSDLUVDQGPDLQWHQDQFH
6DODULHVZDJHVDQGEHQHILWV
6HFXULW\
6XSSOLHVDQGPDWHULDOV
7HOHSKRQH
7UDYHODQGFRQIHUHQFHV
8WLOLWLHV




4XHHQV&RXQW\5HJLRQDO/DQGILOO

5HSDLUVDQGPDLQWHQDQFH
 8WLOLWLHV



(QHUJ\IURP:DVWH

)O\DVKGLVSRVDO
3(,(QHUJ\6\VWHPV
5HSDLUVDQGPDLQWHQDQFH±VFDOH
6FDOHKRXVHVXSSOLHV
:DJHVDQGEHQHILWV±VFDOHRSHUDWRUDQGLQVSHFWRU



&HQWUDO&RPSRVWLQJ)DFLOLW\

&RQWUDFW
,QVXUDQFH
3URSHUW\WD[
5HSDLUVDQGPDLQWHQDQFH
:DJHVDQGEHQHILWV
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,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
&RQVROLGDWHG6FKHGXOHRI([SHQGLWXUHV
<HDUHQGHG0DUFK
   









'LVSRVDO FRQW¶G 

:DVWH:DWFK'URS2II&HQWHUV

%OXHEDJGLVSRVDO
*UHHQ,VOH(QYLURQPHQWDOFRQWUDFW
+RXVHKROGKD]DUGRXVZDVWH
0DWHULDODQGVXSSOLHV
0LVFHOODQHRXVDQGDVSKDOWVKLQJOHV
5HSDLUVDQGPDLQWHQDQFH
6HFXULW\
6LJQDJH
7HOHSKRQH
7UDYHO
8WLOLWLHV
:DJHVDQGEHQHILWV



7UDQVSRUWDWLRQRI0DWHULDO

0RWRUYHKLFOH
6XSSOLHV
:DJHVDQGEHQHILWV




























































 

 

























 

 







7LUH&ROOHFWLRQDQG'LVSRVDO

&ROOHFWLRQ
'LVSRVDO











 


,:0&PDQDJHGWKHFROOHFWLRQDQGVWRUDJH RI XVHG WLUHVLQ3(,XQWLO-DQXDU\ 2Q
)HEUXDU\WKH3URYLQFLDO'HSDUWPHQWRI7UDQVSRUWDWLRQDQG,QIUDVWUXFWXUH 7, WRRNRYHU
WKHPDQDJHPHQWRIXVHGWLUHV7,KDVDFRQWUDFWZLWK2¶%ULHQ¶V5HF\FOLQJIRUWKHFROOHFWLRQ
VWRUDJHDQGSURFHVVLQJRIXVHGWLUHVZLWKLQWKH3URYLQFH





PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III - PART B 2020-2021

105



,VODQG:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ
&RQVROLGDWHG6FKHGXOHRI8WLOLW\2SHUDWLRQV
<HDUHQGHG0DUFK



















 2SHUDWLQJ


 2SHUDWLQJ



 5HYHQXHV
 FRVWV
 5HYHQXHV

FRVWV


$GGLFWLRQV










$OEDQ\


 
 
 
 
%ORRPILHOG










%UXGHQHOO


 
 
 
 
&RUUHFWLRQV










&URZEXVK






 
 
(DVWHUQ6FKRRO 









)LQDQFH3(,










*HRUJHWRZQ


 
 
 
 
0LOO5LYHU






 
 
1RUWKSRUW$OEHUWRQ









2WKHU










3DUNV










:HVWHUQ6FKRRO 




















,QFOXGHGLQWKHFRVWVDERYHDUHZDJHVRI  FDSLWDODVVHW
GHSUHFLDWLRQRI  DPRUWL]DWLRQRIGHIHUUHGJRYHUQPHQWDVVLVWDQFHRI
 ± DQGLQWHUHVWRI  
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG

(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ
&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV


<HDUHQGHG0DUFK


&DQDGLDQ'ROODUV 
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ

&RQWHQWV


,QGHSHQGHQW$XGLWRU¶V5HSRUW

&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWRI)LQDQFLDO3RVLWLRQ

&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWRI3URILW

&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWRI&RPSUHKHQVLYH,QFRPH

&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWRI&KDQJHVLQ(TXLW\

&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWRI&DVK)ORZV

1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV




3DJH
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Grant Thornton LLP
Suite 410
98 Fitzroy Street, PO Box 187
Charlottetown, PE
C1A 7K4

,QGHSHQGHQW$XGLWRU¶V5HSRUW

T +1 902 892 6547
F +1 902 566 5358






7RWKH0HPEHUVRIWKH%RDUGRI
3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ
2SLQLRQ
:HKDYHDXGLWHGWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ WKH³&RUSRUDWLRQ´ 
ZKLFKFRPSULVHWKHFRQVROLGDWHGVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDVDW0DUFKDQGWKHFRQVROLGDWHGVWDWHPHQW
RISURILWFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPHFKDQJHVLQHTXLW\DQGFDVKIORZVIRUWKH\HDUWKHQHQGHGDQGQRWHVWRWKHFRQVROLGDWHG
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQFOXGLQJDVXPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV
,QRXURSLQLRQWKHDFFRPSDQ\LQJFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVSUHVHQWIDLUO\LQDOOPDWHULDOUHVSHFWVWKHILQDQFLDO
SRVLWLRQRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQDVDW0DUFKDQGLWVILQDQFLDOSHUIRUPDQFHDQGLWVFDVK
IORZVIRUWKH\HDUWKHQHQGHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK,QWHUQDWLRQDO)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ6WDQGDUGV
%DVLVIRURSLQLRQ
:HFRQGXFWHGRXUDXGLWLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGDXGLWLQJVWDQGDUGV2XUUHVSRQVLELOLWLHVXQGHU
WKRVHVWDQGDUGVDUHIXUWKHUGHVFULEHGLQWKH$XGLWRU VUHVSRQVLELOLWLHVIRUWKHDXGLWRIWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
VHFWLRQRIRXUUHSRUW:HDUHLQGHSHQGHQWRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHHWKLFDOUHTXLUHPHQWVWKDWDUHUHOHYDQW
WRRXUDXGLWRIWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQ&DQDGDDQGZHKDYHIXOILOOHGRXURWKHUHWKLFDOUHVSRQVLELOLWLHVLQ
DFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHVHUHTXLUHPHQWV:HEHOLHYHWKDWWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHZHKDYHREWDLQHGLVVXIILFLHQWDQGDSSURSULDWH
WRSURYLGHDEDVLVIRURXURSLQLRQ
5HVSRQVLELOLWLHVRIPDQDJHPHQWDQGWKRVHFKDUJHGZLWKJRYHUQDQFHIRUWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
0DQDJHPHQW LV UHVSRQVLEOH IRU WKH SUHSDUDWLRQ DQG IDLU SUHVHQWDWLRQ RI WKHVH FRQVROLGDWHG ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV LQ
DFFRUGDQFHZLWK,QWHUQDWLRQDO)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ6WDQGDUGVDQGIRUVXFKLQWHUQDOFRQWURODVPDQDJHPHQWGHWHUPLQHV
LVQHFHVVDU\WRHQDEOHWKHSUHSDUDWLRQRIFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVWKDWDUHIUHHIURPPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQW
ZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRUHUURU
,QSUHSDULQJWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVPDQDJHPHQWLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUDVVHVVLQJWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VDELOLW\WR
FRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJFRQFHUQGLVFORVLQJDVDSSOLFDEOHPDWWHUVUHODWHGWRDJRLQJFRQFHUQDQGXVLQJWKHJRLQJFRQFHUQ
EDVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJXQOHVVPDQDJHPHQWHLWKHULQWHQGVWROLTXLGDWHWKH&RUSRUDWLRQRUWRFHDVHRSHUDWLRQVRUKDVQR
UHDOLVWLFDOWHUQDWLYHWRGRVR
7KRVHFKDUJHGZLWKJRYHUQDQFHDUHUHVSRQVLEOHIRURYHUVHHLQJWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJSURFHVV

$XGLW_7D[_$GYLVRU\
*UDQW7KRUQWRQ//3$&DQDGLDQ0HPEHURI*UDQW7KRUQWRQ,QWHUQDWLRQDO/WG 
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$XGLWRU¶VUHVSRQVLELOLWLHVIRUWKHDXGLWRIWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
2XUREMHFWLYHVDUHWRREWDLQUHDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHDERXWZKHWKHUWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDVDZKROHDUH
IUHHIURPPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRUHUURUDQGWRLVVXHDQDXGLWRU¶VUHSRUWWKDWLQFOXGHVRXURSLQLRQ
5HDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHLVDKLJKOHYHORIDVVXUDQFHEXWLVQRWDJXDUDQWHHWKDWDQDXGLWFRQGXFWHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK
&DQDGLDQ JHQHUDOO\ DFFHSWHG DXGLWLQJ VWDQGDUGV ZLOO DOZD\V GHWHFW D PDWHULDO PLVVWDWHPHQW ZKHQ LW H[LVWV
0LVVWDWHPHQWVFDQDULVHIURPIUDXGRUHUURUDQGDUHFRQVLGHUHGPDWHULDOLILQGLYLGXDOO\RULQWKHDJJUHJDWHWKH\FRXOG
UHDVRQDEO\EHH[SHFWHGWRLQIOXHQFHWKHHFRQRPLFGHFLVLRQVRIXVHUVWDNHQRQWKHEDVLVRIWKHVHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV
$V SDUW RI DQ DXGLW LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK &DQDGLDQ JHQHUDOO\ DFFHSWHG DXGLWLQJ VWDQGDUGV ZH H[HUFLVH SURIHVVLRQDO
MXGJPHQWDQGPDLQWDLQSURIHVVLRQDOVNHSWLFLVPWKURXJKRXWWKHDXGLW:HDOVR
x ,GHQWLI\DQGDVVHVVWKHULVNVRIPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWRIWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVZKHWKHUGXHWR
IUDXGRUHUURUGHVLJQDQGSHUIRUPDXGLWSURFHGXUHVUHVSRQVLYHWRWKRVHULVNVDQGREWDLQDXGLWHYLGHQFHWKDWLV
VXIILFLHQWDQGDSSURSULDWH WRSURYLGHDEDVLVIRURXURSLQLRQ 7KH ULVNRIQRW GHWHFWLQJD PDWHULDO PLVVWDWHPHQW
UHVXOWLQJIURPIUDXGLVKLJKHUWKDQIRURQHUHVXOWLQJIURPHUURUDVIUDXGPD\LQYROYHFROOXVLRQIRUJHU\LQWHQWLRQDO
RPLVVLRQVPLVUHSUHVHQWDWLRQVRUWKHRYHUULGHRILQWHUQDOFRQWURO
x 2EWDLQ DQ XQGHUVWDQGLQJ RI LQWHUQDO FRQWURO UHOHYDQW WR WKH DXGLW LQ RUGHU WR GHVLJQ DXGLW SURFHGXUHV WKDW DUH
DSSURSULDWHLQ WKHFLUFXPVWDQFHV EXW QRWIRUWKH SXUSRVH RIH[SUHVVLQJDQRSLQLRQRQWKHHIIHFWLYHQHVV RI WKH
&RUSRUDWLRQ VLQWHUQDOFRQWURO
x (YDOXDWHWKHDSSURSULDWHQHVVRIDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVXVHGDQGWKHUHDVRQDEOHQHVVRIDFFRXQWLQJHVWLPDWHVDQG
UHODWHGGLVFORVXUHVPDGHE\PDQDJHPHQW
x &RQFOXGHRQWKHDSSURSULDWHQHVVRIPDQDJHPHQW VXVHRIWKHJRLQJFRQFHUQEDVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJDQGEDVHGRQ
WKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHREWDLQHGZKHWKHUDPDWHULDOXQFHUWDLQW\H[LVWVUHODWHGWRHYHQWVRUFRQGLWLRQVWKDWPD\FDVW
VLJQLILFDQW GRXEW RQ WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ V DELOLW\ WR FRQWLQXH DV D JRLQJ FRQFHUQ ,I ZH FRQFOXGH WKDW D PDWHULDO
XQFHUWDLQW\ H[LVWV ZH DUH UHTXLUHG WR GUDZ DWWHQWLRQ LQ RXU DXGLWRU V UHSRUW WR WKH UHODWHG GLVFORVXUHV LQ WKH
FRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRULIVXFKGLVFORVXUHVDUHLQDGHTXDWHWRPRGLI\RXURSLQLRQ2XUFRQFOXVLRQV
DUHEDVHGRQWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHREWDLQHGXSWRWKHGDWHRIRXUDXGLWRU VUHSRUW+RZHYHUIXWXUHHYHQWVRUFRQGLWLRQV
PD\FDXVHWKH&RUSRUDWLRQWRFHDVHWRFRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJFRQFHUQ
x (YDOXDWH WKH RYHUDOO SUHVHQWDWLRQ VWUXFWXUH DQGFRQWHQW RI WKH FRQVROLGDWHG ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV LQFOXGLQJ WKH
GLVFORVXUHVDQGZKHWKHUWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVUHSUHVHQWWKHXQGHUO\LQJWUDQVDFWLRQVDQGHYHQWV
LQDPDQQHUWKDWDFKLHYHVIDLUSUHVHQWDWLRQ
x 2EWDLQVXIILFLHQWDSSURSULDWHDXGLWHYLGHQFHUHJDUGLQJWKHILQDQFLDOLQIRUPDWLRQRIWKHHQWLWLHVRUEXVLQHVVDFWLYLWLHV
ZLWKLQ WKH *URXS WR H[SUHVV DQ RSLQLRQ RQ WKH FRQVROLGDWHG ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV :H DUH UHVSRQVLEOH IRU WKH
GLUHFWLRQVXSHUYLVLRQDQGSHUIRUPDQFHRIWKHJURXSDXGLW:HUHPDLQVROHO\UHVSRQVLEOHIRURXUDXGLWRSLQLRQ
:HFRPPXQLFDWHZLWKWKRVHFKDUJHGZLWKJRYHUQDQFHUHJDUGLQJDPRQJRWKHUPDWWHUVWKHSODQQHGVFRSHDQGWLPLQJ
RIWKHDXGLWDQGVLJQLILFDQWDXGLWILQGLQJVLQFOXGLQJDQ\VLJQLILFDQWGHILFLHQFLHVLQLQWHUQDOFRQWUROWKDWZHLGHQWLI\GXULQJ
RXUDXGLW

&KDUORWWHWRZQ&DQDGD



-XQH








&KDUWHUHG3URIHVVLRQDO$FFRXQWDQWV
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ
&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWRI)LQDQFLDO3RVLWLRQ
$VDW
0DUFK


0DUFK


$VVHWV
&XUUHQWDVVHWV
8QUHVWULFWHGFDVK 1RWH 
7UDGHUHFHLYDEOHVQHW 1RWH 
,QYHVWPHQWV 1RWH 
&XUUHQWSRUWLRQRIRWKHUILQDQFLDODVVHWV 1RWH 
3UHSDLGH[SHQVHV

1RQFXUUHQWDVVHWV
5HVWULFWHGFDVK 1RWH 
1RQFXUUHQWRWKHUILQDQFLDODVVHWV 1RWH 
'HULYDWLYHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWV
3URSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQW 1RWH 
7RWDO$VVHWV

 






 









 
 




 






/LDELOLWLHVDQG(TXLW\
&XUUHQWOLDELOLWLHV
7UDGHSD\DEOHVDQGDFFUXHGOLDELOLWLHV 1RWH 
&XUUHQWLQGHEWHGQHVV 1RWH 
&RQWUDFWOLDELOLWLHV 1RWH 

1RQFXUUHQWOLDELOLWLHV
'HULYDWLYHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWV
3URYLVLRQV
/RQJWHUPLQGHEWHGQHVV 1RWH 
7RWDO/LDELOLWLHV
(TXLW\
&DVKIORZKHGJHUHVHUYH
 5HWDLQHGHDUQLQJV
7RWDO(TXLW\
7RWDO/LDELOLWLHVDQG(TXLW\











 


 











 






134

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III - PART B 2020-2021

3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ
&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWRI3URILW
)RUWKH\HDUVHQGHG0DUFK

5HYHQXHIURP&RQWUDFWVZLWK&XVWRPHUV
:LQGHQHUJ\VDOHV
5DWHSD\HUUHFRYHULHV
*UDQWV
7RWDO5HYHQXHIURP&RQWUDFWVZLWK&XVWRPHUV
2WKHU5HYHQXH
2WKHUZLQGUHYHQXH
 )LQDQFHLQFRPH
7RWDO2WKHU5HYHQXH



   















7RWDO5HYHQXH





2SHUDWLQJ([SHQVHV
&RQVXOWDQWV
'HSUHFLDWLRQ 1RWH 
(OHFWULFLW\
,QVXUDQFH
)LQDQFHFRVWV
/DQGRZQHUIHHVDQGFRPPXQLW\VXSSRUW
5HSDLUVDQGPDLQWHQDQFH
6HUYLFHDQGZDUUDQW\IHHV
2WKHUZLQGH[SHQVHV
7RWDO2SHUDWLQJ([SHQVHV


































 




2SHUDWLQJ3URILW
*HQHUDODQG$GPLQLVWUDWLYH([SHQVHV
&RQVXOWLQJDQGSURIHVVLRQDOVHUYLFHV
1HW JDLQ ORVVRQGLVSRVDORIDVVHWV
:DJHVDQGHPSOR\HHEHQHILWV
2WKHUJHQHUDOH[SHQVHV
7RWDO*HQHUDODQG$GPLQLVWUDWLYH([SHQVHV
7RWDO3URILWIRUWKH<HDU

  



7KHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVDUHDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKHVHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ
&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWRI&RPSUHKHQVLYH,QFRPH
)RUWKH\HDUVHQGHG0DUFK







3URILWIRUWKH3HULRG
   


2WKHU&RPSUHKHQVLYH,QFRPH

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss

 1HWJDLQ ORVV RQFDVKIORZKHGJHV
    
7RWDO2WKHU&RPSUHKHQVLYH,QFRPH /RVV IRUWKH<HDU
    


7RWDO&RPSUHKHQVLYH,QFRPH /RVV IRUWKH<HDU
    


7KHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVDUHDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKHVHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ
&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWRI&KDQJHVLQ(TXLW\
)RUWKH\HDUVHQGHG0DUFK



&DVKIORZ
5HWDLQHG
7RWDO


KHGJHUHVHUYH
(DUQLQJV
(TXLW\


%DODQFHDW$SULO
      



7RWDO&RPSUHKHQVLYH,QFRPHIRUWKH<HDU


 3URILWIRUWKH\HDU

    
 2WKHUFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPH
   
   
   
   
7RWDO&RPSUHKHQVLYH,QFRPHIRUWKH<HDU



%DODQFHDW0DUFK
      



7RWDO&RPSUHKHQVLYH,QFRPHIRUWKH<HDU


 3URILWIRUWKH\HDU

    
 2WKHUFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPH
   
  
   
  
7RWDO&RPSUHKHQVLYH,QFRPHIRUWKH<HDU



%DODQFHDW0DUFK

     


7KHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVDUHDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKHVHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ
&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWRI&DVK)ORZV
)RUWKH\HDUVHQGHG0DUFK






&DVKIORZVIURPRSHUDWLQJDFWLYLWLHV


 &DVKUHFHLSWVIURPFXVWRPHUVDQGRWKHU
  
 &DVKSDLGWRVXSSOLHUVDQGHPSOR\HHV
   

  


&DVKIORZVIURPLQYHVWLQJDFWLYLWLHV

 ,QFUHDVHLQLQYHVWPHQWV

  
 ,QFUHDVHLQRWKHUILQDQFLDODVVHWV

 
 'HFUHDVHLQRWKHUILQDQFLDODVVHWV

 
 ,QFUHDVHLQSURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQW
 
  
 3URFHHGVIURPVHWWOHPHQWRIDQLQVXUDQFHFODLP

 
 ,QWHUHVWUHFHLYHG
 
 
 2WKHUILQDQFHLQFRPHUHFHLYHG

 


 


&DVKIORZVIURPILQDQFLQJDFWLYLWLHV

 3URFHHGVIURPGHEW

 
 5HSD\PHQWRIGHEWDQGOHDVHOLDELOLWLHV

  
 5HFHLSWRIJRYHUQPHQWJUDQWV

 
 ,QWHUHVWSDLG

  
 2WKHUILQDQFHFRVWVSDLG

 


  


1HWLQFUHDVH GHFUHDVH LQFDVK
  


&DVKEHJLQQLQJRI\HDU
  


&DVKHQGRI\HDU 1RWH 
  


7KHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVDUHDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKHVHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV





 



 

 






 

 

 







138

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III - PART B 2020-2021

3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK

&RUSRUDWH,QIRUPDWLRQDQG1DWXUHRI2SHUDWLRQV

7KH3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQLVD&URZQFRUSRUDWLRQHVWDEOLVKHGE\WKH(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ$FW
DQG WKHUHIRUH LV H[HPSW IURP LQFRPH WD[HV XQGHU 6HFWLRQ   G  RI WKH &DQDGLDQ ,QFRPH 7D[ $FW 7KH
&RUSRUDWLRQ V SULQFLSDO EXVLQHVV DFWLYLWLHV LQFOXGH WKH GHYHORSPHQW DQG SURPRWLRQ RI HQHUJ\ V\VWHPV LQ 3ULQFH
(GZDUG,VODQG
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VUHJLVWHUHGRIILFHLVORFDWHGDW)LW]UR\6WUHHWLQ&KDUORWWHWRZQ3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG&$1
,QWKHVH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWVDOOGROODUVDUHH[SUHVVHGLQ&DQDGLDQGROODUV
7KHVH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWVZHUHDXWKRUL]HGIRULVVXHE\WKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶V%RDUGRI'LUHFWRUVRQ
-XQH

6LJQLILFDQW$FFRXQWLQJ3ROLFLHV
6WDWHPHQWRI&RPSOLDQFH
7KHVH &RQVROLGDWHG )LQDQFLDO 6WDWHPHQWV ZHUH SUHSDUHG LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK ,QWHUQDWLRQDO )LQDQFLDO 5HSRUWLQJ
6WDQGDUGV ,)56 DVLVVXHGE\WKH,QWHUQDWLRQDO$FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUGV%RDUG ,$6% 7KH\KDYHEHHQSUHSDUHGRQ
DJRLQJFRQFHUQEDVLVXQGHUWKHKLVWRULFDOFRVWFRQYHQWLRQH[FHSWIRUDVVHWVUHTXLUHGWREHPHDVXUHGDWIDLUYDOXHLQ
DFFRUGDQFHZLWK,)56
7KHSUHSDUDWLRQRI&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWVLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK,)56UHTXLUHVWKHXVHRIFHUWDLQFULWLFDO
DFFRXQWLQJHVWLPDWHV,WDOVRUHTXLUHVPDQDJHPHQWWRH[HUFLVHMXGJPHQWLQDSSO\LQJWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VDFFRXQWLQJ
SROLFLHV7KHDUHDVLQYROYLQJDKLJKHUGHJUHHRIMXGJPHQWRUFRPSOH[LW\RUDUHDVZKHUHDVVXPSWLRQVDQGHVWLPDWHV
DUHVLJQLILFDQWWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWVDUHGLVFORVHGLQQRWH
%DVLVRI&RQVROLGDWLRQ
7KHVH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWVDUHWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWVRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ
DQGLWVZKROO\RZQHGVXEVLGLDU\3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG5HQHZDEOH(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQZKLFKZDVGLVVROYHGGXULQJ
WKHILVFDO\HDU$OOLQWHUFRPSDQ\EDODQFHVDQGWUDQVDFWLRQVDUHHOLPLQDWHGXSRQFRQVROLGDWLRQ

5HYHQXHIURP&RQWUDFWVZLWK&XVWRPHUV

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQLVLQWKHEXVLQHVVRISURYLGLQJZLQGHQHUJ\DQGDFFHVVWRHOHFWULFLW\JULGLQIUDVWUXFWXUH5HYHQXH
IURPFRQWUDFWVZLWKFXVWRPHUVLVUHFRJQL]HGZKHQFRQWURORIWKHJRRGRUVHUYLFHVDUHWUDQVIHUUHGWRWKHFXVWRPHUDW
DQDPRXQWWKDWUHIOHFWVWKHFRQVLGHUDWLRQWRZKLFKWKH&RUSRUDWLRQH[SHFWVWREHHQWLWOHGLQH[FKDQJHIRUWKRVHJRRGV
RUVHUYLFHV7KH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVJHQHUDOO\FRQFOXGHGWKDWLWLVWKHSULQFLSDOLQLWVUHYHQXHDUUDQJHPHQWVH[FHSWIRU
WKHDJHQF\VHUYLFHVEHORZEHFDXVHLWW\SLFDOO\FRQWUROVWKHJRRGRUVHUYLFHVEHIRUHWUDQVIHUULQJWKHPWRWKHFXVWRPHU

7KHGLVFORVXUHVRIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJMXGJHPHQWVHVWLPDWHVDQGDVVXPSWLRQVUHODWLQJWRUHYHQXHIURPFRQWUDFWV
ZLWKFXVWRPHUVDUHSURYLGHGLQQRWH

Sale of wind energy:

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQVHOOVZLQGSRZHUWKURXJKDQXPEHURI3RZHU3XUFKDVH$JUHHPHQWV 33$V ZLWK0DULWLPH(OHFWULF
&RPSDQ\/LPLWHG:LWKWKHH[FHSWLRQRIDJHQF\VHUYLFHVGHVFULEHGEHORZUHYHQXHIURPWKHVDOHRIZLQGHQHUJ\LV
UHFRJQL]HGEDVHGRQWKHNLORZDWWKRXUVRIZLQGHQHUJ\GHOLYHUHGDQGWKHDSSOLFDEOHSHUNLORZDWWKRXUVHOOLQJSULFH

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQDOVRSXUFKDVHVDQGUHVHOOVZLQGSRZHURQEHKDOIRIRWKHUHQWLWLHV7KH&RUSRUDWLRQLVDFWLQJDVDQ
DJHQWLQWKHVHDUUDQJHPHQWVDQGDVDUHVXOWUHFRUGVUHYHQXHDWWKHQHWDPRXQWWKDWLWUHWDLQVIRULWVDJHQF\VHUYLFHV
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK

6LJQLILFDQW$FFRXQWLQJ3ROLFLHV FRQWLQXHG 
Ratepayer recoveries:

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQSURYLGHVHOHFWULFLW\UDWHSD\HUVZLWKFRQQHFWLRQWRWKHPDLQODQGHOHFWULFLW\JULGDQGRQJRLQJDFFHVV
WRDVXSSO\RIHOHFWULFLW\WKURXJKWKH3(,1%&DEOH,QWHUFRQQHFWLRQ$VVRFLDWHGUDWHSD\HUUHFRYHU\UHYHQXHHTXDOWR
WKHFDSLWDOFRVWRIWKH,QWHUFRQQHFWLRQLVUHFRJQL]HGRYHUWKHSHULRGRIWKHFRQWUDFWZKLFKFRLQFLGHVZLWKWKHHVWLPDWHG
XVHIXOOLIHRIWKHSURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWEDVHGRQWKHWLPHHODSVHG5DWHSD\HUUHFRYHULHVUHFHLYHGLQH[FHVV
RIUHYHQXHUHFRJQL]HGDUHUHFRUGHGDVFRQWUDFWOLDELOLWLHV

7KHDPRXQWVUHFRYHUHGIURPUDWHSD\HUVH[SOLFLWO\LQFOXGHDVLJQLILFDQWILQDQFLQJFRPSRQHQWHTXDOWRWKHILQDQFLQJ
FRVWVRIWKH3(,1%&DEOH,QWHUFRQQHFWLRQ3URMHFW7KHSRUWLRQRIWKHUHFRYHULHVSHUWDLQLQJWRWKHVLJQLILFDQWILQDQFLQJ
FRPSRQHQWDUHUHFRJQL]HGVHSDUDWHO\DVILQDQFHLQFRPH

Sale of Renewable Energy Certificates (RECs):

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQDFWVDVDQDJHQWLQVHOOLQJ5(&VWRWKLUGSDUWLHVRQEHKDOIRIWKH3URYLQFHRI3(,7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ
UHFRUGVUHYHQXHDWWKHQHWDPRXQWWKDWLWUHWDLQVIRULWVDJHQF\VHUYLFHVZKLFKLVHTXDOWRDQDQQXDOJUDQWSURYLGHG
E\WKH3URYLQFH

2WKHU:LQG5HYHQXH

2WKHUZLQGUHYHQXHFRQVLVWVSULPDULO\RIOLTXLGDWHGGDPDJHVUHFHLYDEOHXQGHUVHUYLFHDQGZDUUDQW\FRQWUDFWVDQG
UHQWUHYHQXH

Liquidated damages:

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQHQWHUVLQWRVHUYLFHDQGZDUUDQW\DJUHHPHQWVZKLFKSURYLGHIRUVFKHGXOHGDQGXQVFKHGXOHGZLQG
WXUELQH PDLQWHQDQFH  7KHVH FRQWUDFWV UHTXLUH WKDW WKH WXUELQHV EH DYDLODEOH IRU HQHUJ\ JHQHUDWLRQ D FHUWDLQ
SHUFHQWDJHRIWLPHSHUFRQWUDFW\HDU6KRXOGDFWXDOWXUELQHDYDLODELOLW\EHOHVVWKDQWKHVSHFLILHGSHUFHQWDJHWKH
&RUSRUDWLRQLVHQWLWOHGWRUHFHLYHOLTXLGDWHGGDPDJHVIURPWKHVHUYLFHDQGZDUUDQW\SURYLGHU/LTXLGDWHGGDPDJHV
DUHUHFRJQL]HGDQQXDOO\DWWKHHQGRIHDFKFRQWUDFW\HDUIRUWKHDPRXQWFDOFXODWHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHVHUYLFH
DQGZDUUDQW\FRQWUDFWSURYLVLRQV

Rent revenue:

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQHDUQVUHYHQXHIURPWKHUHQWDORIODQGDQGEXLOGLQJV5HQWUHYHQXHLVUHFRJQL]HGRYHUWKHSHULRGRI
HDFKOHDVHDJUHHPHQWDWWKHDPRXQWVVSHFLILHGLQRUFDOFXODWHGSHUWKHUHOHYDQWDJUHHPHQWSURYLVLRQV
/HDVHV
The Corporation as lessee
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQDVVHVVHVZKHWKHUDFRQWUDFWLVRUFRQWDLQVDOHDVHDWLQFHSWLRQRIWKHFRQWUDFW7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ
UHFRJQL]HVDULJKWRIXVHDVVHWDQGDFRUUHVSRQGLQJOHDVHOLDELOLW\ZLWKUHVSHFWWRDOOOHDVHDUUDQJHPHQWVLQZKLFKLW
LVWKHOHVVHHH[FHSWIRUVKRUWWHUPOHDVHV GHILQHGDVOHDVHVZLWKDOHDVHWHUPRIPRQWKVRUOHVV DQGOHDVHVRI
ORZYDOXHDVVHWV VXFKDVWDEOHWVDQGSHUVRQDOFRPSXWHUVVPDOOLWHPVRIRIILFHIXUQLWXUHDQGWHOHSKRQHV )RUWKHVH
OHDVHVWKH&RUSRUDWLRQUHFRJQL]HVWKHOHDVH SD\PHQWVDVDQRSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHRQDVWUDLJKWOLQHEDVLVRYHUWKH
WHUP RI WKH OHDVH XQOHVV DQRWKHU V\VWHPDWLF EDVLV LV PRUH UHSUHVHQWDWLYH RI WKH WLPH SDWWHUQ LQ ZKLFK HFRQRPLF
EHQHILWVIURPWKHOHDVHGDVVHWVDUHFRQVXPHG
7KH OHDVH OLDELOLW\ LV LQLWLDOO\ PHDVXUHG DW WKH SUHVHQW YDOXH RI WKH OHDVH SD\PHQWV WKDW DUH QRW SDLG DW WKH
FRPPHQFHPHQWGDWHGLVFRXQWHGE\XVLQJWKHUDWHLPSOLFLWLQWKHOHDVH,IWKLVUDWHFDQQRWEHUHDGLO\GHWHUPLQHGWKH
&RUSRUDWLRQXVHVLWVLQFUHPHQWDOERUURZLQJUDWH
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK

6LJQLILFDQW$FFRXQWLQJ3ROLFLHV FRQWLQXHG 
/HDVHSD\PHQWVLQFOXGHGLQWKHPHDVXUHPHQWRIWKHOHDVHOLDELOLW\FRPSULVH


)L[HGOHDVHSD\PHQWV LQFOXGLQJLQVXEVWDQFHIL[HGSD\PHQWV OHVVDQ\OHDVHLQFHQWLYHVUHFHLYDEOH



9DULDEOHOHDVHSD\PHQWVWKDWGHSHQGRQDQLQGH[RUUDWHLQLWLDOO\PHDVXUHGXVLQJWKHLQGH[RUUDWHDWWKH
FRPPHQFHPHQWGDWH



7KHDPRXQWH[SHFWHGWREHSD\DEOHE\WKHOHVVHHXQGHUUHVLGXDOYDOXHJXDUDQWHHV



7KHH[HUFLVHSULFHRISXUFKDVHRSWLRQVLIWKHOHVVHHLVUHDVRQDEO\FHUWDLQWRH[HUFLVHWKHRSWLRQVDQG



3D\PHQWVRISHQDOWLHVIRUWHUPLQDWLQJWKHOHDVHLIWKHOHDVHWHUPUHIOHFWVWKHH[HUFLVHRIDQRSWLRQWRWHUPLQDWH
WKHOHDVH

7KHOHDVHOLDELOLW\LVSUHVHQWHGWRJHWKHUZLWKLQGHEWHGQHVVLQWKH&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWRI)LQDQFLDO3RVLWLRQ
7KHOHDVHOLDELOLW\LVVXEVHTXHQWO\PHDVXUHGE\LQFUHDVLQJWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWWRUHIOHFWLQWHUHVWRQWKHOHDVHOLDELOLW\
XVLQJWKHHIIHFWLYHLQWHUHVWPHWKRG DQGE\UHGXFLQJWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWWRUHIOHFWWKHOHDVHSD\PHQWVPDGH7KH
&RUSRUDWLRQUHPHDVXUHVWKHOHDVHOLDELOLW\ DQGPDNHVDFRUUHVSRQGLQJDGMXVWPHQWWRWKHUHODWHGULJKWRIXVHDVVHW 
ZKHQHYHU


7KHOHDVHWHUPKDVFKDQJHGRUWKHUHLVDVLJQLILFDQWHYHQWRUFKDQJHLQFLUFXPVWDQFHVUHVXOWLQJLQDFKDQJH
LQ WKH DVVHVVPHQW RI H[HUFLVH RI D SXUFKDVH RSWLRQ LQ ZKLFK FDVH WKH OHDVH OLDELOLW\ LV UHPHDVXUHG E\
GLVFRXQWLQJWKHUHYLVHGOHDVHSD\PHQWVXVLQJDUHYLVHGGLVFRXQWUDWH



7KHOHDVHSD\PHQWVFKDQJHGXHWRFKDQJHVLQDQLQGH[RUUDWHRUDFKDQJHLQH[SHFWHGSD\PHQWXQGHUD
JXDUDQWHHGUHVLGXDOYDOXHLQZKLFKFDVHVWKHOHDVHOLDELOLW\LVUHPHDVXUHGE\GLVFRXQWLQJWKHUHYLVHGOHDVH
SD\PHQWV XVLQJDQXQFKDQJHG GLVFRXQWUDWH XQOHVVWKH OHDVH SD\PHQWVFKDQJHLV GXHWRD FKDQJHLQ D
IORDWLQJLQWHUHVWUDWHLQZKLFKFDVHDUHYLVHGGLVFRXQWUDWHLVXVHG 



$OHDVHFRQWUDFWLVPRGLILHGDQGWKHOHDVHPRGLILFDWLRQLVQRWDFFRXQWHGIRUDVDVHSDUDWHOHDVHLQZKLFK
FDVHWKHOHDVHOLDELOLW\LVUHPHDVXUHGEDVHGRQWKHOHDVHWHUPRIWKHPRGLILHGOHDVHE\GLVFRXQWLQJWKHUHYLVHG
OHDVHSD\PHQWVXVLQJDUHYLVHGGLVFRXQWUDWHDWWKHHIIHFWLYHGDWHRIWKHPRGLILFDWLRQ

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQGLGQRWPDNHDQ\VXFKDGMXVWPHQWVGXULQJWKHSHULRGVSUHVHQWHG
7KHULJKWRIXVHDVVHWVFRPSULVHWKHLQLWLDOPHDVXUHPHQWRIWKHFRUUHVSRQGLQJOHDVHOLDELOLW\OHDVHSD\PHQWVPDGH
DW RU EHIRUH WKH FRPPHQFHPHQW GD\ OHVV DQ\ OHDVH LQFHQWLYHV UHFHLYHG DQG DQ\ LQLWLDO GLUHFW FRVWV 7KH\ DUH
VXEVHTXHQWO\PHDVXUHGDWFRVWOHVVDFFXPXODWHGGHSUHFLDWLRQDQGLPSDLUPHQWORVVHV
:KHQHYHUWKH&RUSRUDWLRQLQFXUVDQREOLJDWLRQIRUFRVWVWRGLVPDQWOHDQGUHPRYHDOHDVHGDVVHWUHVWRUHWKHVLWHRQ
ZKLFKLWLVORFDWHGRUUHVWRUHWKHXQGHUO\LQJDVVHWWRWKHFRQGLWLRQUHTXLUHGE\WKHWHUPVDQGFRQGLWLRQVRIWKHOHDVH
DSURYLVLRQLVUHFRJQL]HGDQGPHDVXUHGXQGHU,$67RWKHH[WHQWWKDWWKHFRVWVUHODWHWRDULJKWRIXVHDVVHWWKH
FRVWVDUHLQFOXGHGLQWKHUHODWHGULJKWRIXVHDVVHWXQOHVVWKRVHFRVWVDUHLQFXUUHGWRSURGXFHLQYHQWRULHV
5LJKWRIXVHDVVHWVDUHGHSUHFLDWHGRYHUWKHVKRUWHUSHULRGRIOHDVHWHUPDQGXVHIXOOLIHRIWKHULJKWRIXVHDVVHW,I
DOHDVHWUDQVIHUVRZQHUVKLSRIWKHXQGHUO\LQJDVVHWRUWKHFRVWRIWKHULJKWRIXVHDVVHWUHIOHFWVWKDWWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ
H[SHFWV WR H[HUFLVH D SXUFKDVH RSWLRQ WKH UHODWHG ULJKWRIXVH DVVHW LV GHSUHFLDWHG RYHU WKH XVHIXO OLIH RI WKH
XQGHUO\LQJDVVHW7KHGHSUHFLDWLRQVWDUWVDWWKHFRPPHQFHPHQWGDWHRIWKHOHDVH
7KHULJKWRIXVHDVVHWVDUHLQFOXGHGZLWKLQSURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWLQWKHFRQVROLGDWHGVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDO
SRVLWLRQ
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQDSSOLHV,$6WRGHWHUPLQHZKHWKHUDULJKWRIXVHDVVHWLVLPSDLUHGDQGDFFRXQWVIRUDQ\LGHQWLILHG
LPSDLUPHQWORVVDVGHVFULEHGLQWKHµ,PSDLUPHQWRI/RQJ/LYHG$VVHWV¶SROLF\
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK

6LJQLILFDQW$FFRXQWLQJ3ROLFLHV FRQWLQXHG 
9DULDEOHUHQWVWKDWGRQRWGHSHQGRQDQLQGH[RUUDWHDUHQRWLQFOXGHGLQWKHPHDVXUHPHQWRIWKHOHDVHOLDELOLW\DQG
WKH ULJKWRIXVH DVVHW 7KH UHODWHG SD\PHQWV DUH UHFRJQL]HG DV DQ H[SHQVH LQ WKH SHULRG LQ ZKLFK WKH HYHQW RU
FRQGLWLRQWKDWWULJJHUVWKRVHSD\PHQWVRFFXUV
(b) The Corporation as lessor
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQHQWHUVLQWROHDVHDJUHHPHQWVDVDOHVVRUZLWKUHVSHFWWRVRPHRILWVODQG7KH&RUSRUDWLRQDOVRUHQWV
HTXLSPHQWIRUWKHSXUSRVHRIZLQGPRQLWRULQJ
/HDVHVIRUZKLFKWKH&RUSRUDWLRQLVDOHVVRUDUHFODVVLILHGDVILQDQFHRURSHUDWLQJOHDVHV:KHQHYHUWKHWHUPVRIWKH
OHDVHWUDQVIHUVXEVWDQWLDOO\DOOWKHULVNVDQGUHZDUGVRIRZQHUVKLSWRWKHOHVVHHWKHFRQWUDFWLVFODVVLILHGDVDILQDQFH
OHDVH$OORWKHUOHDVHVDUHFODVVLILHGDVRSHUDWLQJOHDVHV
5HQWDOLQFRPHIURPRSHUDWLQJOHDVHVLVUHFRJQL]HGRQDVWUDLJKWOLQHEDVLVRYHUWKHWHUPRIWKHUHOHYDQWOHDVH,QLWLDO
GLUHFWFRVWVLQFXUUHGLQQHJRWLDWLQJDQGDUUDQJLQJDQRSHUDWLQJOHDVHDUHDGGHGWRWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIWKHOHDVHG
DVVHWDQGUHFRJQL]HGRQDVWUDLJKWOLQHEDVLVRYHUWKHOHDVHWHUP
$PRXQWVGXHIURPOHVVHHVXQGHUILQDQFHOHDVHVDUHUHFRJQL]HGDVUHFHLYDEOHVDWWKHDPRXQWRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶V
QHW LQYHVWPHQWLQ WKH OHDVHV )LQDQFH OHDVH LQFRPH LV DOORFDWHG WR DFFRXQWLQJ SHULRGVVR DVWR UHIOHFWD FRQVWDQW
SHULRGLFUDWHRIUHWXUQRQWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VQHWLQYHVWPHQWRXWVWDQGLQJLQUHVSHFWRIWKHOHDVHV
6XEVHTXHQWWRLQLWLDOUHFRJQLWLRQWKH&RUSRUDWLRQUHJXODUO\UHYLHZVWKHHVWLPDWHGXQJXDUDQWHHGUHVLGXDOYDOXHDQG
DSSOLHVWKHLPSDLUPHQWUHTXLUHPHQWVRI,)56UHFRJQL]LQJDQDOORZDQFHIRUH[SHFWHGFUHGLWORVVHVRQWKHOHDVH
UHFHLYDEOHV)LQDQFHOHDVHLQFRPHLVFDOFXODWHGZLWKUHIHUHQFHWRWKHJURVVFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIWKHOHDVHUHFHLYDEOHV
H[FHSWIRUFUHGLWLPSDLUHGILQDQFLDODVVHWVIRUZKLFKLQWHUHVWLQFRPHLVFDOFXODWHGZLWKUHIHUHQFHWRWKHLUDPRUWL]HG
FRVW LHDIWHUDGHGXFWLRQRIWKHORVVDOORZDQFH 
&DVK
8QUHVWULFWHGFDVKLQWKH&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWRI)LQDQFLDO3RVLWLRQFRQVLVWVRIXQUHVWULFWHGEDQNEDODQFHVKHOGLQ
&DQDGLDQFXUUHQF\
5HVWULFWHG FDVK LQ WKH &RQVROLGDWHG 6WDWHPHQW RI )LQDQFLDO 3RVLWLRQ FRQVLVWV RI EDQN EDODQFHV KHOG LQ &DQDGLDQ
FXUUHQF\ZKLFKSHUWKHWHUPVRIDORDQDJUHHPHQWDQGDUDWHSD\HUUHFRYHU\DJUHHPHQWDUHUHVWULFWHGIRUVHWWOHPHQW
RIORQJWHUPLQGHEWHGQHVVWKDWLVH[SHFWHGWRRFFXUPRUHWKDQWZHOYHPRQWKVDIWHUWKHILQDQFLDO\HDUHQG
)RUWKHSXUSRVHRIWKH&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWRI&DVK)ORZVFDVKFRQVLVWVRIXQUHVWULFWHGDQGUHVWULFWHGFDVKDV
GHILQHGDERYH
)LQDQFLDO,QVWUXPHQWV
Trade Receivables:
7UDGHUHFHLYDEOHVDUH DPRXQWVGXHIURPFXVWRPHUVIRUWKHUHQGHULQJRIVHUYLFHVRUVDOH RIJRRGVLQWKHRUGLQDU\
FRXUVHRIEXVLQHVV 

Financial Assets:

)LQDQFLDO DVVHWV ZLWKLQ WKH VFRSH RI ,)56  Financial Instruments DUH FODVVLILHG DV ILQDQFLDO DVVHWV DW IDLU YDOXH
WKURXJKSURILWDQGORVVDPRUWL]HGFRVWRUGHVLJQDWHGDVKHGJLQJLQVWUXPHQWVDVDSSURSULDWH:KHQILQDQFLDODVVHWV
DUHLQLWLDOO\UHFRJQL]HGWKH\DUHPHDVXUHGDWIDLUYDOXHSOXVLQWKHFDVHRIILQDQFLDODVVHWVPHDVXUHGDWDPRUWL]HG
FRVWGLUHFWO\ DWWULEXWDEOH ILQDQFLQJFRVWV 7KH&RUSRUDWLRQGHWHUPLQHVWKHFODVVLILFDWLRQ RI WKHILQDQFLDO DVVHWVDW
LQLWLDOUHFRJQLWLRQDQGZKHUHDSSURSULDWHHYDOXDWHVWKLVGHVLJQDWLRQDWHDFKILQDQFLDO\HDUHQG
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK

6LJQLILFDQW$FFRXQWLQJ3ROLFLHV FRQWLQXHG 

Financial Assets: (continued)

,QYHVWPHQWVORDQVDQGUHFHLYDEOHVIRUZKLFKWKHREMHFWLYHRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VEXVLQHVVPRGHOLVWRKROGWKHILQDQFLDO
DVVHWWRFROOHFWWKHFRQWUDFWXDOFDVKIORZV UDWKHUWKDQWRVHOOWKHLQVWUXPHQWSULRUWRLWVFRQWUDFWXDOPDWXULW\WRUHDOL]H
LWVIDLUYDOXHFKDQJHV DQGIRUZKLFKWKHFRQWUDFWXDOWHUPVRIWKHILQDQFLDODVVHWJLYHULVHRQVSHFLILHGGDWHVWRFDVK
IORZVWKDWDUHVROHO\SD\PHQWVRISULQFLSDODQGLQWHUHVWRQWKHSULQFLSDORXWVWDQGLQJDUHUHFRJQL]HGDWDPRUWL]HGFRVW

$OORWKHUILQDQFLDODVVHWVH[FHSWGHULYDWLYHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVGHVLJQDWHGDVKHGJLQJLQVWUXPHQWVDUHPHDVXUHG
DWIDLUYDOXHWKURXJKSURILWRUORVV
Impairment of Financial Assets:
$ILQDQFLDODVVHWLVFRQVLGHUHGWREHLPSDLUHGLIREMHFWLYHHYLGHQFHLQGLFDWHVWKDWHYHQWVKDYHKDGDQHJDWLYHHIIHFW
RQ WKH HVWLPDWHGIXWXUH FDVK IORZV RIWKDWDVVHW $Q LPSDLUPHQW ORVVLQUHVSHFWRID ILQDQFLDO DVVHW PHDVXUHG DW
DPRUWL]HGFRVWLVFDOFXODWHGDVWKHGLIIHUHQFHEHWZHHQLWVFDUU\LQJDPRXQWDQGWKHSUHVHQWYDOXHRIWKHHVWLPDWHG
IXWXUHFDVKIORZVGLVFRXQWHGDWWKHRULJLQDOHIIHFWLYHLQWHUHVWUDWH

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQPHDVXUHVWKHORVVDOORZDQFHIRUWUDGHUHFHLYDEOHVDWDQDPRXQWHTXDOWROLIHWLPHH[SHFWHGFUHGLW
ORVVHV7KHH[SHFWHGFUHGLWORVVHVRQWUDGHUHFHLYDEOHVDUHHVWLPDWHGXVLQJDSURYLVLRQPDWUL[E\UHIHUHQFHWRSDVW
GHIDXOWH[SHULHQFHRIWKHGHEWRUDQGDQDQDO\VLVRIWKHGHEWRU¶VFXUUHQWILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDGMXVWHGIRUIDFWRUVWKDWDUH
VSHFLILFWRWKHGHEWRUVJHQHUDOHFRQRPLFFRQGLWLRQVRIWKHLQGXVWU\LQZKLFKWKHGHEWRUVRSHUDWHDQGDQDVVHVVPHQW
RIERWKWKHFXUUHQWDVZHOODVWKHIRUHFDVWHGGLUHFWLRQRIFRQGLWLRQVDWWKHUHSRUWLQJGDWH

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQZULWHVRIIDWUDGHUHFHLYDEOHZKHQWKHUHLVLQIRUPDWLRQLQGLFDWLQJWKDWWKHGHEWRULVLQVHYHUHILQDQFLDO
GLIILFXOW\DQGWKHUHLVQRUHDOLVWLFSURVSHFWRIUHFRYHU\7UDGHUHFHLYDEOHVWKDWKDYHEHHQZULWWHQRIIDUHQRWVXEMHFW
WRHQIRUFHPHQWDFWLYLWLHV
Debt Instruments:

'HEW LQVWUXPHQWV DUH LQLWLDOO\ UHFRJQL]HG DW IDLU YDOXH ZKLFK LV WKH SURFHHGV UHFHLYHG OHVV DWWULEXWDEOH
ILQDQFLQJ FRVWV  6XEVHTXHQW WR LQLWLDO UHFRJQLWLRQ GHEW LQVWUXPHQWV DUH VWDWHG DW DPRUWL]HG FRVW ZLWK DQ\
GLIIHUHQFHQHWRIWUDQVDFWLRQFRVWVLQFXUUHG$Q\GLVFRXQWEHWZHHQWKHQHWSURFHHGVUHFHLYHGDQGWKHSULQFLSDOYDOXH
GXHRQUHGHPSWLRQLVDPRUWL]HGRYHUWKHGXUDWLRQRIWKHGHEWLQVWUXPHQWDQGLVUHFRJQL]HGDVSDUWRIILQDQFLQJFRVWV
XVLQJWKHHIIHFWLYHLQWHUHVWPHWKRG

,QWHUHVWRQLQGHEWHGQHVVLVH[SHQVHGDVLQFXUUHGXQOHVVFDSLWDOL]HGIRUTXDOLI\LQJDVVHWVLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK,$6

'HEWLVFODVVLILHGDVDFXUUHQWOLDELOLW\XQOHVVWKH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVDQXQFRQGLWLRQDOULJKWWRGHIHUVHWWOHPHQWIRUDWOHDVW
PRQWKVDIWHUWKHUHSRUWLQJSHULRG
Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedge Accounting:
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQXVHVGHULYDWLYHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVLQWKHIRUPRILQWHUHVWUDWHVZDSVWRKHGJHLWVLQWHUHVWUDWHULVNV
6XFKGHULYDWLYHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVDUHLQLWLDOO\UHFRJQL]HGDWIDLUYDOXHRQWKHGDWHRQZKLFKDGHULYDWLYHFRQWUDFW
LVHQWHUHGLQWRDQGDUHVXEVHTXHQWO\UHPHDVXUHGDWIDLUYDOXH'HULYDWLYHVDUHFDUULHGDVILQDQFLDODVVHWVZKHQWKH
IDLUYDOXHLVSRVLWLYHDQGDVILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVZKHQWKHIDLUYDOXHLVQHJDWLYH

,QWHUHVWUDWHVZDSVZKHQKHGJLQJWKHH[SRVXUHWRYDULDELOLW\LQFDVKIORZVWKDWLVHLWKHUDWWULEXWDEOHWRDSDUWLFXODUULVN
DVVRFLDWHGZLWKDUHFRJQL]HGDVVHWRUOLDELOLW\RUDKLJKO\SUREDEOHIRUHFDVWWUDQVDFWLRQDUHFODVVLILHGDVFDVKIORZ
KHGJHV
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK

6LJQLILFDQW$FFRXQWLQJ3ROLFLHV FRQWLQXHG 

$WWKHLQFHSWLRQRIDKHGJHUHODWLRQVKLSWKH&RUSRUDWLRQIRUPDOO\GHVLJQDWHVDQGGRFXPHQWVWKHKHGJHUHODWLRQVKLS
WRZKLFKLWZLVKHVWRDSSO\KHGJHDFFRXQWLQJDQGWKHULVNPDQDJHPHQWREMHFWLYHDQGVWUDWHJ\IRUXQGHUWDNLQJWKH
KHGJH7KHGRFXPHQWDWLRQLQFOXGHVLGHQWLILFDWLRQRIWKHKHGJLQJLQVWUXPHQWWKHKHGJHGLWHPWKHQDWXUHRIWKHULVN
EHLQJKHGJHGDQGKRZWKH&RUSRUDWLRQZLOODVVHVVZKHWKHUWKHKHGJLQJUHODWLRQVKLSPHHWVWKHKHGJHHIIHFWLYHQHVV
UHTXLUHPHQWV LQFOXGLQJWKHDQDO\VLVRIVRXUFHVRIKHGJHLQHIIHFWLYHQHVVDQGKRZWKHKHGJHUDWLRLVGHWHUPLQHG $
KHGJLQJUHODWLRQVKLSTXDOLILHVIRUKHGJHDFFRXQWLQJLILWPHHWVDOORIWKHIROORZLQJHIIHFWLYHQHVVUHTXLUHPHQWV



7KHUHLVµDQHFRQRPLFUHODWLRQVKLS¶EHWZHHQWKHKHGJHGLWHPDQGWKHKHGJLQJLQVWUXPHQW



7KHHIIHFWRIFUHGLWULVNGRHVQRWµGRPLQDWHWKHYDOXHFKDQJHV¶WKDWUHVXOWIURPWKDWHFRQRPLFUHODWLRQVKLS



7KHKHGJHUDWLRRIWKHKHGJLQJUHODWLRQVKLSLVWKHVDPHDVWKDWUHVXOWLQJIURPWKHTXDQWLW\RIWKHKHGJHGLWHP
WKDWWKH&RUSRUDWLRQDFWXDOO\KHGJHVDQGWKHTXDQWLW\RIWKHKHGJLQJLQVWUXPHQWWKDWWKH&RUSRUDWLRQDFWXDOO\
XVHVWRKHGJHWKDWTXDQWLW\RIKHGJHGLWHP


+HGJHVWKDWPHHWDOOWKHTXDOLI\LQJFULWHULDIRUKHGJHDFFRXQWLQJDUHDFFRXQWHGIRUDVGHVFULEHGEHORZ

Cash flow hedges

7KHHIIHFWLYHSRUWLRQRIWKHJDLQRUORVVRQWKHKHGJLQJLQVWUXPHQWLVUHFRJQL]HGLQRWKHUFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPHLQ
WKHFDVKIORZKHGJHUHVHUYHZKLOHDQ\LQHIIHFWLYHSRUWLRQLVUHFRJQL]HGLPPHGLDWHO\LQWKHVWDWHPHQWRISURILWRUORVV
7KHFDVKIORZKHGJHUHVHUYHLVDGMXVWHGWRWKHORZHURIWKHFXPXODWLYHJDLQRUORVVRQWKHKHGJLQJLQVWUXPHQWDQG
WKHFXPXODWLYHFKDQJHLQIDLUYDOXHRIWKHKHGJHGLWHP7KHDPRXQWDFFXPXODWHGLQRWKHUFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPHLV
UHFODVVLILHGWRSURILWRUORVVDVDUHFODVVLILFDWLRQDGMXVWPHQWLQWKHVDPHSHULRGRUSHULRGVGXULQJZKLFKWKHKHGJHG
FDVKIORZVDIIHFWSURILWRUORVV
,IFDVKIORZKHGJHDFFRXQWLQJLVGLVFRQWLQXHGWKHDPRXQWWKDWKDVEHHQDFFXPXODWHGLQRWKHUFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPH
PXVWUHPDLQLQDFFXPXODWHGRWKHUFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPHLIWKHKHGJHGIXWXUHFDVKIORZVDUHVWLOOH[SHFWHGWRRFFXU
2WKHUZLVH WKH DPRXQW ZLOO EH LPPHGLDWHO\ UHFODVVLILHG WR SURILW RU ORVV DV D UHFODVVLILFDWLRQ DGMXVWPHQW $IWHU
GLVFRQWLQXDWLRQ RQFH WKH KHGJHG FDVK IORZ RFFXUV DQ\ DPRXQW UHPDLQLQJ LQ DFFXPXODWHG RWKHU FRPSUHKHQVLYH
LQFRPHPXVWEHDFFRXQWHGIRUGHSHQGLQJRQWKHQDWXUHRIWKHXQGHUO\LQJWUDQVDFWLRQDVGHVFULEHGDERYH$GGLWLRQDO
LQIRUPDWLRQUHJDUGLQJGHULYDWLYHVDQGKHGJLQJDUHSURYLGHGLQQRWHVDQG

)DLUYDOXHV
)DLUYDOXH LV WKHSULFHWKDW ZRXOG EH UHFHLYHG WR VHOODQ DVVHW RU SDLGWR WUDQVIHU D OLDELOLW\ LQDQ RUGHUO\ WUDQVDFWLRQ
EHWZHHQ PDUNHW SDUWLFLSDQWV DW WKH PHDVXUHPHQW GDWH $OO DVVHWV DQG OLDELOLWLHV IRU ZKLFK IDLU YDOXH LV PHDVXUHG RU
GLVFORVHGLQ WKHFRQVROLGDWHG ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDUHFDWHJRUL]HG ZLWKLQ WKH IDLU YDOXH KLHUDUFK\ GHSHQGLQJRQ WKH
REVHUYDELOLW\RIWKHVLJQLILFDQWLQSXWVXVHGLQWKHPHDVXUHPHQW

/HYHO  TXRWHG SULFHV XQDGMXVWHG  IRU LGHQWLFDO DVVHWV DQG OLDELOLWLHV LQ DFWLYH PDUNHWV WKDW DUH DFFHVVLEOH DW WKH
PHDVXUHPHQWGDWH

/HYHOLQSXWVRWKHUWKDQTXRWHGSULFHVLQFOXGHGZLWKLQ/HYHOWKDWDUHREVHUYDEOHIRUWKHDVVHWRUOLDELOLW\HLWKHUGLUHFWO\
RULQGLUHFWO\

/HYHOXQREVHUYDEOHLQSXWVIRUWKHDVVHWRUOLDELOLW\
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)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK

6LJQLILFDQW$FFRXQWLQJ3ROLFLHV FRQWLQXHG 

3URSHUW\3ODQWDQG(TXLSPHQW
3URSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWLVVWDWHGDWFRVWOHVVDFFXPXODWHGGHSUHFLDWLRQDQGLPSDLUPHQWORVVHV'HSUHFLDWLRQ
LVFDOFXODWHGRQDVWUDLJKWOLQHEDVLVRYHUWKHHVWLPDWHGXVHIXOOLIHRIWKHDVVHWV7KHXVHIXOOLYHVDUHHVWLPDWHGDV
IROORZV





$VVHW



:LQGWXUELQHVDQGWRZHUV
'LVWULEXWLRQ
7UDQVPLVVLRQ
%XLOGLQJ
5DGDU(TXLSPHQW
5RDGV



5DWH











\HDUV
\HDUV
\HDUV
\HDUV
\HDUV
\HDUV


'HSUHFLDWLRQLVRQO\UHFRJQL]HGIRUDVVHWVDYDLODEOHIRUXVHLQWKHLUFXUUHQWVWDWH

$VVHWVXQGHU'HYHORSPHQW
'HYHORSPHQWFRVWVDQGDVVHWVXQGHUFRQVWUXFWLRQDUHUHFRUGHGDWFRVW&DSLWDOL]HGFRVWVUHODWHGWRDQDVVHWXQGHU
GHYHORSPHQWLQFOXGHDOOHOLJLEOHH[SHQGLWXUHVLQFXUUHGLQFRQQHFWLRQZLWKWKHGHYHORSPHQWDQGFRQVWUXFWLRQRIWKH
DVVHWXQWLOLWLVDYDLODEOHIRULWVLQWHQGHGXVH7KH&RUSRUDWLRQFDSLWDOL]HVDOOGLUHFWO\DWWULEXWDEOHFRVWV8SRQDSURMHFW
EHFRPLQJ FRPPHUFLDOO\ RSHUDWLRQDO WKH DFFXPXODWHG FRVWV LQFOXGLQJ FDSLWDOL]HG ERUURZLQJ FRVWV LI DQ\ DUH
WUDQVIHUUHGWRSURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWDQGDUHDPRUWL]HGRQDVWUDLJKWOLQHEDVLVRYHUWKHHVWLPDWHGXVHIXOOLYHV
RIWKHYDULRXVFRPSRQHQWV

,PSDLUPHQWRI/RQJ/LYHG$VVHWV

7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ DVVHVVHV DW HDFK UHSRUWLQJ GDWH ZKHWKHU WKHUH LV DQ LQGLFDWLRQ WKDW DQ DVVHW PD\ EH
LPSDLUHG,IDQ\VXFKLQGLFDWLRQH[LVWVWKH&RUSRUDWLRQPDNHVDQHVWLPDWHRIWKHDVVHW¶VUHFRYHUDEOHDPRXQW$Q
DVVHW¶V UHFRYHUDEOH DPRXQW LV WKH KLJKHU RI DQ DVVHW¶V IDLU YDOXH OHVV FRVWV WR VHOO DQG LWV YDOXH LQ XVH  7KH
UHFRYHUDEOHDPRXQWLVGHWHUPLQHGIRUHDFKDVVHWJURXSIRUZKLFKFDVKIORZVDUHJHQHUDWHGLQGHSHQGHQWO\IURPRWKHU
DVVHWVLQWKHJURXS:KHQWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIDQDVVHWH[FHHGVLWVUHFRYHUDEOHDPRXQWWKHDVVHWLVFRQVLGHUHG
LPSDLUHGDQGLVZULWWHQGRZQWRLWVUHFRYHUDEOHDPRXQW,QDVVHVVLQJYDOXHLQXVHWKHHVWLPDWHGIXWXUHFDVKIORZV
DUHGLVFRXQWHGWRWKHLUSUHVHQWYDOXHXVLQJDGLVFRXQWUDWHWKDWUHIOHFWVFXUUHQWPDUNHWDVVHVVPHQWVRIWKHWLPHYDOXH
RIPRQH\DQGWKHULVNVVSHFLILFWRWKHDVVHW,PSDLUPHQWORVVHVIURPFRQWLQXLQJRSHUDWLRQVDUHUHFRJQL]HGLQWKH
&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWRI&RPSUHKHQVLYH,QFRPHLQWKHOLQHLWHP³'HSUHFLDWLRQ´

*RYHUQPHQW*UDQWV

*RYHUQPHQW JUDQWV DUH UHFRJQL]HG ZKHQ WKHUH LV UHDVRQDEOH DVVXUDQFH WKDW WKH JUDQW ZLOO EH UHFHLYHG DQG DOO
DWWDFKHGFRQGLWLRQVZLOOEHFRPSOLHGZLWK:KHQWKHJUDQWUHODWHVWRDQH[SHQVHLWHPLWLVGHGXFWHGIURPWKHH[SHQVH
IRUZKLFKLWLVLQWHQGHGWRFRPSHQVDWH:KHQWKHJUDQWUHODWHVWRDQDVVHWLWLVGHGXFWHGIURPWKHDVVHW¶VFDUU\LQJ
DPRXQW

3URYLVLRQV
3URYLVLRQVDUHUHFRJQL]HGZKHQWKH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVDSUHVHQWREOLJDWLRQ OHJDORUFRQVWUXFWLYH DVDUHVXOWRIDSDVW
HYHQWLWLVSUREDEOHWKDWWKH&RUSRUDWLRQZLOOEHUHTXLUHGWRVHWWOHWKDWREOLJDWLRQDQGDUHOLDEOHHVWLPDWHFDQEH
PDGHRIWKHDPRXQWRIWKHREOLJDWLRQ





PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III - PART B 2020-2021

145

3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ
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6LJQLILFDQW$FFRXQWLQJ3ROLFLHV FRQWLQXHG 


3URYLVLRQV FRQWLQXHG 
7KH DPRXQW UHFRJQL]HG DV D SURYLVLRQ LV WKH EHVW HVWLPDWH RI WKH FRQVLGHUDWLRQ UHTXLUHG WR VHWWOH WKH SUHVHQW
REOLJDWLRQDWWKHUHSRUWLQJGDWHWDNLQJLQWRDFFRXQWWKHULVNVDQGXQFHUWDLQWLHVVXUURXQGLQJWKHREOLJDWLRQ:KHUHD
SURYLVLRQ LV PHDVXUHG XVLQJ WKH FDVK IORZV HVWLPDWHG WR VHWWOH WKH SUHVHQW REOLJDWLRQ LWV FDUU\LQJ DPRXQW LV WKH
SUHVHQWYDOXHRIWKRVHFDVKIORZV
Decommissioning provisions 
3URYLVLRQVIRUWKHFRVWVWRGHFRPPLVVLRQWXUELQHVDQGUHVWRUHOHDVHGODQGWRLWVRULJLQDOFRQGLWLRQDVUHTXLUHGE\WKH
WHUPVDQGFRQGLWLRQVRIWKHOHDVHDUHUHFRJQL]HGZKHQWKHREOLJDWLRQLVLQFXUUHGHLWKHUDWWKHFRPPHQFHPHQWGDWH
RUDVDFRQVHTXHQFHRIKDYLQJXVHGWKHXQGHUO\LQJDVVHWGXULQJDSDUWLFXODUSHULRGRIWKHOHDVHDWPDQDJHPHQW¶V
EHVWHVWLPDWHRIWKHH[SHQGLWXUHWKDWZRXOGEHUHTXLUHGWRUHVWRUHWKHDVVHWV(VWLPDWHVDUHUHJXODUO\UHYLHZHGDQG
DGMXVWHGDVDSSURSULDWHIRUQHZFLUFXPVWDQFHV

3HQVLRQ/LDELOLWLHV

(PSOR\HHVRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQDUHPHPEHUVRIWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGSHQVLRQSODQ7KHSHQVLRQSODQ
REOLJDWLRQLVDOLDELOLW\RIWKH3URYLQFHDQGQRWWKH&RUSRUDWLRQWKHUHIRUHQROLDELOLW\IRUWKHVHFRVWVKDVEHHQUHFRUGHG


&ULWLFDO$FFRXQWLQJ(VWLPDWHV-XGJPHQWVDQG(UURUV

7KHSUHSDUDWLRQRIFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVUHTXLUHVPDQDJHPHQWWRPDNHHVWLPDWHVDQGMXGJPHQWVDERXW
WKH IXWXUH  (VWLPDWHVDQG MXGJPHQWVDUH FRQWLQXDOO\ HYDOXDWHG DQG DUH EDVHG RQ KLVWRULFDO H[SHULHQFH DQGRWKHU
IDFWRUV LQFOXGLQJ H[SHFWDWLRQV RI IXWXUH HYHQWV WKDW DUH EHOLHYHG WR EH UHDVRQDEOH XQGHU WKH FLUFXPVWDQFHV
$FFRXQWLQJ HVWLPDWHV ZLOO E\ GHILQLWLRQ VHOGRP HTXDO WKH DFWXDO UHVXOWV  7KH IROORZLQJ GLVFXVVLRQ VHWV IRUWK
PDQDJHPHQW¶V PRVWFULWLFDO HVWLPDWHVDQGDVVXPSWLRQVLQ GHWHUPLQLQJ WKHYDOXHRI DVVHWVDQG OLDELOLWLHV DQGWKH
PRVWFULWLFDOMXGJPHQWVLQDSSO\LQJDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV

5HYHQXHIURP&RQWUDFWVZLWK&XVWRPHUV

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQDSSOLHGWKHIROORZLQJMXGJHPHQWVWKDWVLJQLILFDQWO\DIIHFWWKHGHWHUPLQDWLRQRIWKHDPRXQWDQGWLPLQJ
RIUHYHQXHIURPFRQWUDFWVZLWKFXVWRPHUV
Determining the timing of satisfaction of access to electricity grid infrastructure

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQFRQFOXGHGWKDWUHYHQXHIRUUDWHSD\HUUHFRYHULHVLVWREHUHFRJQL]HGRYHUWLPHEHFDXVHWKHFXVWRPHU
VLPXOWDQHRXVO\ UHFHLYHV DQG FRQVXPHV WKH EHQHILWV SURYLGHG E\ FRQQHFWLRQ WR WKH PDLQODQG HOHFWULFLW\ JULG DQG
RQJRLQJDFFHVVWRDVXSSO\RIHOHFWULFLW\7KH&RUSRUDWLRQUHFRJQL]HVUHYHQXHRQWKHEDVLVRIWLPHHODSVHGUHODWLYH
WRWKHWRWDOSHULRGRIWKHFRQWUDFWZKLFKDOLJQVZLWKWKHHVWLPDWHGXVHIXOOLIHRIWKH3(,1%&DEOH,QWHUFRQQHFWLRQ

Principal versus agent considerations

7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ VHOOV 5HQHZDEOH (QHUJ\ &HUWLILFDWHV 5(&V  RQ EHKDOI RI WKH 3URYLQFH RI 3(,  7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ
GHWHUPLQHGWKDWLWGRHVQRWFRQWUROWKH5(&VEHIRUHWKH\DUHWUDQVIHUUHGWRFXVWRPHUVDQGLWGRHVQRWKDYHWKHDELOLW\
WRGLUHFWWKHXVHRIWKH5(&VRUREWDLQEHQHILWVIURPWKH5(&V7KHUHIRUHWKH&RUSRUDWLRQGHWHUPLQHGWKDWLWLVDQ
DJHQWLQWKHVHFRQWUDFWV
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&ULWLFDO$FFRXQWLQJ(VWLPDWHV-XGJPHQWVDQG(UURUV FRQWLQXHG 

'HFRPPLVVLRQLQJ3URYLVLRQV

,QDFFRUGDQFHZLWK,$6WKHFRVWRIDQLWHPRISURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWLQFOXGHVWKHLQLWLDOHVWLPDWHRIWKH
FRVWVRIGLVPDQWOLQJDQGUHPRYLQJWKHLWHPDQGUHVWRULQJWKHVLWHWRLWVRULJLQDOVWDWH'HFRPPLVVLRQLQJDQGVLWH
UHVWRUDWLRQFRVWVKDYHEHHQHVWLPDWHGEDVHGRQFXUUHQWO\DYDLODEOHLQIRUPDWLRQ7KHVHHVWLPDWHVZLOOEHUHYLVHGDV
QHZLQIRUPDWLRQEHFRPHVDYDLODEOHDQGVXFKFKDQJHVFRXOGKDYHDVLJQLILFDQWLPSDFWRQWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

$VVHW/LYHV

*LYHQWKHUHODWLYHO\QHZDQGFRQVWDQWO\HYROYLQJZLQGHQHUJ\LQGXVWU\LWLVGLIILFXOWWRSUHGLFWWKHXVHIXOOLYHVRIPDMRU
FRPSRQHQWVRISURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQW8VHIXOOLYHVRIZLQGWXUELQHVDQGUHODWHGLQIUDVWUXFWXUHDUHGHWHUPLQHG
EDVHG RQ VXSSOLHUV¶ HVWLPDWHG GHVLJQ OLYHV RI WKH WXUELQHV ZLWK UHIHUHQFH WR WKH OHQJWK RI WKH SRZHU SXUFKDVH
DJUHHPHQWVWKH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVLQSODFH7KHHVWLPDWHGXVHIXOOLYHVUHVLGXDOYDOXHDQGGHSUHFLDWLRQPHWKRGVZLOO
EH DGMXVWHG DV QHZ LQIRUPDWLRQ EHFRPHV DYDLODEOH DQG VXFK FKDQJHV FRXOG KDYH D VLJQLILFDQW LPSDFW RQ WKHVH
FRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

&29,'


6LQFH-DQXDU\WKHVSUHDGRI&29,'KDVVHYHUHO\LPSDFWHGPDQ\ORFDOHFRQRPLHVDURXQGWKHJOREH
,QPDQ\FRXQWULHVLQFOXGLQJ&DQDGDEXVLQHVVHVDUHEHLQJIRUFHGWRFHDVHRUOLPLWRSHUDWLRQVIRUORQJRULQGHILQLWH
SHULRGVRIWLPH0HDVXUHVWDNHQWRFRQWDLQWKHVSUHDGRIWKHYLUXVLQFOXGLQJWUDYHOEDQVTXDUDQWLQHVVRFLDO
GLVWDQFLQJDQGFORVXUHVRIQRQHVVHQWLDOVHUYLFHVKDYHWULJJHUHGVLJQLILFDQWGLVUXSWLRQVWREXVLQHVVHVZRUOGZLGH
UHVXOWLQJLQDQHFRQRPLFVORZGRZQ7KHGXUDWLRQDQGLPSDFWRIWKH&29,'SDQGHPLFUHPDLQVXQFOHDUDWWKLV
WLPH


7KH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVGHWHUPLQHGWKDWWKHVHHYHQWVKDYHQRWKDGDPDWHULDOLPSDFWRQWKHFDUU\LQJYDOXHRIDVVHWV
DQGOLDELOLWLHVUHSRUWHGLQWKHVHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDVDW0DUFKZLWKWKHH[FHSWLRQRI
GHULYDWLYHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWV$VDUHVXOWRIDGHFUHDVHLQPDUNHWLQWHUHVWUDWHVWKHIDLUYDOXHRIWKHVH
LQVWUXPHQWVH[SHULHQFHGDVLJQLILFDQWGHFOLQHGXULQJWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK'XULQJWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK
WKH&RUSRUDWLRQH[SHULHQFHGDFRPSOHWHUHFRYHU\LQWKHIDLUYDOXHRILWVGHULYDWLYHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWV
7KHGXUDWLRQDQGLPSDFWRIWKH&29,'SDQGHPLFDVZHOODVWKHHIIHFWLYHQHVVRIJRYHUQPHQWDQGFHQWUDOEDQN
UHVSRQVHVUHPDLQVXQFOHDUDWWKLVWLPH,WLVQRWSRVVLEOHWRUHOLDEO\HVWLPDWHWKHGXUDWLRQDQGVHYHULW\RIWKHVH
FRQVHTXHQFHVDVZHOODVWKHLULPSDFWRQWKHILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDQGUHVXOWVRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQIRUIXWXUHSHULRGV 


&DVK

)RUWKHSXUSRVHRIWKH&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWRI&DVK)ORZVFDVKFRQVLVWVRIWKHIROORZLQJ
 



8QUHVWULFWHGFDVK
   
5HVWULFWHGFDVK

  

   


7UDGH5HFHLYDEOHV


 





 



7UDGHUHFHLYDEOHVIURPFRQWUDFWVZLWKFXVWRPHUV

     
2WKHUWUDGHUHFHLYDEOHV



+67
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7UDGH5HFHLYDEOHV FRQWLQXHG 

7UDGHUHFHLYDEOHVDUHQRQLQWHUHVWEHDULQJDQGDUHJHQHUDOO\RQGD\SD\PHQWWHUPV,QFOXGHGLQWUDGHUHFHLYDEOHV
DUHSDVWGXHDPRXQWVWRWDOLQJ  1RORVVDOORZDQFHZDVUHFRJQL]HGIRUWKH\HDUHQGHG
0DUFK   DV KLVWRULFDO H[SHULHQFH DQG IDFWRUV VSHFLILF WR WKH GHEWRU LQGLFDWH WKDW WKH UHFHLYDEOHV DUH
UHFRYHUDEOH,QFOXGHGLQWUDGHUHFHLYDEOHVLV  GXHIURP3URYLQFLDO*RYHUQPHQWFRQWUROOHG
HQWLWLHV


,QYHVWPHQWV

,QYHVWPHQWVFRQVLVWRIGD\WHUPGHSRVLWVZLWKDILQDQFLDOLQVWLWXWLRQEHDULQJLQWHUHVWDW



2WKHU)LQDQFLDO$VVHWV 






&XVWRPHUVRIDORFDOXWLOLW\SURYLGHU 3RLQW/HSUHDXILQDQFLQJ 
   
UHFHLYDEOHLQPRQWKO\LQVWDOOPHQWVRISULQFLSDODQGLQWHUHVWRIXSWR
$SULOIURP0D\WKURXJK0DUFKDQG
WKHUHDIWHUGXH0DUFK


&XVWRPHUVRIDORFDOXWLOLW\SURYLGHU 3RLQW/HSUHDXILQDQFLQJ 
   
UHFHLYDEOHLQPRQWKO\LQWHUHVWRQO\SD\PHQWVXSWR$SULOIROORZHGE\
LQVWDOOPHQWVRISULQFLSDODQGLQWHUHVWRIIURP0D\WKURXJK
0DUFKDQGWKHUHDIWHUGXH0DUFK


&XVWRPHUVRIDORFDOXWLOLW\SURYLGHU 'DOKRXVLHILQDQFLQJ UHFHLYDEOHLQ 
 

PRQWKO\LQVWDOOPHQWVRISULQFLSDODQGLQWHUHVWRIGXH$SULO


&XVWRPHUVRIDORFDOXWLOLW\SURYLGHU 1%,QWHUFRQQHFWLRQ7UDQVPLVVLRQSURUDWHG    
VKDUHRI3(,1%&DEOH,QWHUFRQQHFWLRQILQDQFLQJ UHFHLYDEOHLQ
PRQWKO\LQVWDOOPHQWVRISULQFLSDODQGLQWHUHVWRIDSSUR[LPDWHO\GXH
)HEUXDU\


:LQG(QHUJ\,QVWLWXWHRI&DQDGDUHFHLYDEOHLQTXDUWHUO\LQVWDOOPHQWVRI 
  
SULQFLSDODQGLQWHUHVWRIGXH-XQHVHFXUHGE\ILUVWFKDUJHRQ
PDWHULDOVEXLOGLQJVDQGHTXLSPHQWDQGVLWHVSHFLILFJHQHUDOVHFXULW\


$FFUXHGLQWHUHVWUHFHLYDEOH

 


    
/HVVFXUUHQWSRUWLRQ
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2WKHU)LQDQFLDO$VVHWV FRQWLQXHG 
PEI Energy Accord – Point Lepreau and Dalhousie Financing

,Q1RYHPEHUWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGHQWHUHGLQWRWKH3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\$FFRUGZKLFK
UHTXLUHGWKH&RUSRUDWLRQWRDVVXPHFHUWDLQILQDQFLQJUHVSRQVLELOLWLHVDQGUHFRYHUWKHVHFRVWVIURPFXVWRPHUVRID
ORFDO XWLOLW\ SURYLGHU 7KH 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG (QHUJ\ $FFRUG H[SLUHG )HEUXDU\   DQG D QHZ FROOHFWLRQ
DJUHHPHQWZDVVLJQHGEHWZHHQWKH3URYLQFHRI3(,0DULWLPH(OHFWULF&RPSDQ\/LPLWHGDQGWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ7KH
FRVWV RI HOHFWULFLW\ LQFOXGH WKH FRVWV DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK WKH UHIXUELVKPHQW RI WKH 3RLQW /HSUHDX 1XFOHDU *HQHUDWLQJ
6WDWLRQ)DFLOLW\DQGWKHH[LWRIWKHXWLOLW\SURYLGHUIURPWKH'DOKRXVLH8QLW3DUWLFLSDWLRQDJUHHPHQW7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ
KDVREWDLQHGILQDQFLQJIURPWKH7RURQWR'RPLQLRQ%DQNWRFRYHUWKHVHFRVWV7HUPVDQGFRQGLWLRQVIRUUHSD\PHQW
RIWKH3RLQW/HSUHDXDQG'DOKRXVLHGHEWDQGWKHWHUPVDQGFRQGLWLRQVIRUWKHUHFHLYDEOHIURPWKHFXVWRPHUVRIWKH
XWLOLW\SURYLGHUGLIIHUEHFDXVHWKHSD\PHQWVIURPFXVWRPHUVZHUHSUHYLRXVO\EDVHGRQNLORZDWWKRXUVDOHVZKLOHWKH
UHSD\PHQWRIGHEWLVDIL[HGPRQWKO\SD\PHQW'XULQJWKHWHUPVDQGFRQGLWLRQVRIWKHUHFHLYDEOHZHUHDPHQGHG
WR UHTXLUH UHSD\PHQW DW D IL[HG PRQWKO\ UDWH ZKLFK ZLOO IDFLOLWDWH IXWXUH DOLJQPHQW ZLWK WKH 3RLQW /HSUHDX DQG
'DOKRXVLHGHEWUHSD\PHQWVFKHGXOH$OWKRXJKWKHUHDUHWLPLQJGLIIHUHQFHVLQSD\PHQWVUHFHLYHGIURPFXVWRPHUVDQG
UHSD\PHQWV RI GHEW REOLJDWLRQV DOO ILQDQFLQJ FRVWV DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK 3RLQW /HSUHDX DQG 'DOKRXVLH LQFXUUHG E\ WKH
&RUSRUDWLRQDUHUHFHLYDEOHIURPFXVWRPHUVRIWKHXWLOLW\SURYLGHUXQWLOWKHDPRXQWVDUHIXOO\UHFRYHUHG

PEI-NB Cable Interconnection Project

,Q0D\WKH&RUSRUDWLRQHQWHUHGLQWRD&RQVWUXFWLRQ$JHQF\$JUHHPHQWZLWK0DULWLPH(OHFWULF&RPSDQ\/LPLWHG
IRUWKHXSJUDGHRIWKHLQWHUFRQQHFWLRQEHWZHHQWKHHOHFWULFDOV\VWHPVRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGDQGPDLQODQG&DQDGD
8QGHU WKLV DJUHHPHQW WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ DVVXPHV ILQDQFLQJ UHVSRQVLELOLW\ IRU WKH XSJUDGH  )LQDQFLQJ KDV EHHQ
REWDLQHG IURP 7RURQWR 'RPLQLRQ %DQN DQG DOO ILQDQFLQJ FRVWV ZLOO EH UHFRYHUHG IURP FXVWRPHUV RI D ORFDO XWLOLW\
SURYLGHU7KH3(,1%&DEOH,QWHUFRQQHFWLRQ3URMHFWZLWKWKHH[FHSWLRQRIWKH1%,QWHUFRQQHFWLRQ7UDQVPLVVLRQDV
GHVFULEHGEHORZKDVEHHQDFFRXQWHGIRUDVSURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQW

$NH\FRPSRQHQWRIWKH3(,1%&DEOH,QWHUFRQQHFWLRQ3URMHFWLVWKHFRQVWUXFWLRQRIWUDQVPLVVLRQIDFLOLWLHVLQ1HZ
%UXQVZLFN ³1% ,QWHUFRQQHFWLRQ 7UDQVPLVVLRQ´  2ZQHUVKLS RI WKLV WUDQVPLVVLRQ PXVW UHPDLQ ZLWK 1% 3RZHU LQ
DFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHSURYLVLRQVRIWKH1HZ%UXQVZLFN(OHFWULFLW\$FW$UHFHLYDEOHIURPWKHFXVWRPHUVRIWKHORFDO
XWLOLW\SURYLGHUKDVEHHQUHFRUGHGIRUWKH1%,QWHUFRQQHFWLRQ7UDQVPLVVLRQFRVWV*LYHQWKDWWKHILQDQFLQJREWDLQHG
IURP 7RURQWR 'RPLQLRQ %DQN LV LQ UHVSHFW RI WKH HQWLUH 3(,1% &DEOH ,QWHUFRQQHFWLRQ 3URMHFW D SRUWLRQ RI WKH
SD\PHQWVUHFHLYHGIURPFXVWRPHUVPXVWEHDOORFDWHGWRWKH1%,QWHUFRQQHFWLRQ7UDQVPLVVLRQ7KHSURSRUWLRQDWH
VKDUHRIILQDQFLQJUHODWHGWRWKH1%,QWHUFRQQHFWLRQ7UDQVPLVVLRQKDVEHHQHVWLPDWHGEDVHGRQFRVWVLQFXUUHGWR
WKHHQGRIWKHUHSRUWLQJSHULRG$VDUHVXOWWKHFXUUHQWSRUWLRQUHFRJQL]HGLQUHODWLRQWRWKHUHFHLYDEOHIURPFXVWRPHUV
RIWKHORFDOXWLOLW\SURYLGHUPD\GLIIHUIURPWKHDFWXDODPRXQWVUHFRJQL]HG
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3URSHUW\3ODQWDQG(TXLSPHQW1HW



:LQG7XUELQHV
DQG7RZHUV
*URVV$PRXQW

$W0DUFK

$FTXLVLWLRQV

'LVSRVDOV
 
$W0DUFK

$FTXLVLWLRQV

'LVSRVDOV

$W0DUFK



$FFXPXODWHG'HSUHFLDWLRQ
$W0DUFK

'HSUHFLDWLRQ

,PSDLUPHQW

'LVSRVDOV
 
$W0DUFK

'HSUHFLDWLRQ

,PSDLUPHQW

'LVSRVDOV

$W0DUFK



&DUU\LQJ$PRXQW

$W0DUFK

$W0DUFK



7UDQVPLVVLRQ
DQG
'LVWULEXWLRQ






 










 






/DQGDQG
%XLOGLQJV
























$VVHWVXQGHU
(TXLSPHQW 'HYHORSPHQW
7RWDO






 


 



 


 


 



 


 










 


 







 


 


 







 


 










 


 
5RDGV

,QFOXGHG ZLWKLQ $VVHWV XQGHU 'HYHORSPHQW LV D ULJKWRIXVH DVVHW LQ UHVSHFW RI D ODQG OHDVH DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK WKH
GHYHORSPHQWRIDQHOHFWULFDOVPDUWJULG$GGLWLRQDOLQIRUPDWLRQUHJDUGLQJWKLVULJKWRIXVHDVVHWLVSURYLGHGLQQRWH

,QFOXGHGLQ7UDQVPLVVLRQDQG'LVWULEXWLRQLVD0:WUDQVPLVVLRQOLQHZKLFKLVQRWDYDLODEOHIRUXVHLQLWVFXUUHQW
VWDWH,QDFFRUGDQFHZLWK WKH2FWREHUDJUHHPHQWEHWZHHQWKH&RUSRUDWLRQDQG 0DULWLPH(OHFWULF&RPSDQ\
/LPLWHGJRYHUQLQJWKHFRQVWUXFWLRQRIWKHWUDQVPLVVLRQOLQHWKHDPRXQWIRUZKLFKWKHDVVHWFDQEHVROGWRDWKLUGSDUW\
HTXDOVFRVWOHVVGHSUHFLDWLRQDWDUDWHRIIRUWKHILUVWVHYHQ\HDUVDIWHUFRQVWUXFWLRQDQGSHUDQQXPWKHUHDIWHU
7KH VHYHQ\HDU SHULRG H[SLUHG 'HFHPEHU    'XULQJ WKH \HDU DQ LPSDLUPHQW ORVV RI   
 ZDVUHFRJQL]HGLQGHSUHFLDWLRQLQWKH&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWRI3URILWRU/RVVWRZULWHGRZQWKHDVVHWWR
LWVUHFRYHUDEOHDPRXQW$W0DUFKWKHUHFRYHUDEOHDPRXQWEDVHGRQIDLUYDOXHOHVVFRVWVRIGLVSRVDOZDV
  6LQFHWKHHVWLPDWHRIIDLUYDOXHEDVHGRQWKHWHUPVRIWKH2FWREHUDJUHHPHQW
LVDVLJQLILFDQWXQREVHUYDEOHLQSXWWKHIDLUYDOXHRIWKHWUDQVPLVVLRQOLQHLVFODVVLILHGDVDOHYHOIDLUYDOXH
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK

/HDVHV

Right-of-use assets 

5LJKWRIXVHDVVHWVLQFOXGHGZLWKLQSURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWLQWKHFRQVROLGDWHGVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQ
DUHDVIROORZV
$VVHWVXQGHU







'HYHORSPHQW
*URVV$PRXQW







$W0DUFK














$FTXLVLWLRQV







'LVSRVDOV
$W0DUFK















$FFXPXODWHG'HSUHFLDWLRQ






$W0DUFK














'HSUHFLDWLRQ







'LVSRVDOV
$W0DUFK















&DUU\LQJ$PRXQW













$W0DUFK







$W0DUFK

Lease liabilities
/HDVHOLDELOLWLHVLQFOXGHGZLWKLQLQGHEWHGQHVVLQWKH&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWRI)LQDQFLDO3RVLWLRQDUHDVIROORZV






&XUUHQW

 

1RQFXUUHQW

 



 


7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ KDV OHDVHV IRU ODQG IRU ZLQG IDUPV DQG WKH GHYHORSPHQW RI DQ HOHFWULFDO VPDUW JULG  :LWK WKH
H[FHSWLRQRIVKRUWWHUPOHDVHVOHDVHVRIORZYDOXHXQGHUO\LQJDVVHWVDQGOHDVHVWKDWFRQVLVWVROHO\RIYDULDEOHOHDVH
SD\PHQWVZKLFKGRQRWGHSHQGRQDQLQGH[RUUDWHHDFKOHDVHLVUHIOHFWHGDVDULJKWRIXVHDVVHWDQGDOHDVHOLDELOLW\
9DULDEOHOHDVHSD\PHQWVZKLFKGRQRWGHSHQGRQDQLQGH[RUDUDWH VXFKDVOHDVHSD\PHQWVEDVHGRQDSHUFHQWDJH
RIZLQGUHYHQXHV DUHH[FOXGHGIURPWKHLQLWLDOPHDVXUHPHQWRIWKHOHDVHOLDELOLW\DQGDVVHW7KH&RUSRUDWLRQFODVVLILHV
LWVULJKWRIXVHDVVHWVLQDFRQVLVWHQWPDQQHUWRLWVSURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQW

6RPHOHDVHVFRQWDLQDQRSWLRQWRUHQHZWKHOHDVHDWWKHHQGRIWKHWHUP7KHODQGOHDVHVUHTXLUHWKH&RUSRUDWLRQWR
FRPSOHWHVLWHUHVWRUDWLRQDWWKHHQGRIWKHOHDVH

7KHWDEOHEHORZGHVFULEHVWKHQDWXUHRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VOHDVLQJDFWLYLWLHVE\W\SHRIULJKWRIXVHDVVHW


5LJKWRI
XVHDVVHW
/DQG




1RRIULJKWRI
XVHDVVHWV
OHDVHG


5HPDLQLQJ
OHDVHWHUP
\HDUV

1RRIOHDVHV
ZLWKH[WHQVLRQ
RSWLRQV


1RRIOHDVHV
ZLWKRSWLRQVWR
SXUFKDVH


1RRIOHDVHV
ZLWKYDULDEOH
SD\PHQWV
OLQNHGWRDQ
LQGH[


1RRI
OHDVHVZLWK
WHUPLQDWLRQ
RSWLRQV
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK

/HDVHV FRQWLQXHG 

)XWXUHPLQLPXPOHDVHSD\PHQWVDW'HFHPEHUZHUHDVIROORZV

0LQLPXPOHDVHSD\PHQWVGXH

:LWKLQ

\HDU \HDUV \HDUV \HDUV \HDUV
$W0DUFK





/HDVHSD\PHQWV





)LQDQFHFKDUJHV





1HWSUHVHQWYDOXHV







Lease payments not recognized as a liability

$IWHU
\HDUV





7RWDO





&HUWDLQYDULDEOHOHDVHSD\PHQWVDUHQRWSHUPLWWHGWREHUHFRJQL]HGDVOHDVHOLDELOLWLHVDQGDUHH[SHQVHGDVLQFXUUHG
7KHVHYDULDEOHOHDVHSD\PHQWVGRQRWGHSHQGRQDQLQGH[RUUDWHEXWUDWKHUDUHEDVHGRQWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VZLQG
UHYHQXHV7KHH[SHQVHUHODWLQJWRSD\PHQWVQRWLQFOXGHGLQWKHPHDVXUHPHQWRIWKHOHDVHOLDELOLW\LVDVIROORZV






9DULDEOHOHDVHSD\PHQWV

 


,QWHUHVWRQOHDVHOLDELOLWLHVIRUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFKZDV QLO DOORIZKLFKZDVFDSLWDOL]HG
LQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK,$67RWDOFDVKRXWIORZIRUOHDVHVIRUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFKZDV 
 

7UDGH3D\DEOHVDQG$FFUXHG/LDELOLWLHV







7UDGH3D\DEOHV
   
+67

 

$FFUXHG/LDELOLWLHV

 


   

7UDGH SD\DEOHV DUH QRQLQWHUHVW EHDULQJ DQG QRUPDOO\ VHWWOHG ZLWKLQ  GD\V  ,QFOXGHG LQ WUDGH SD\DEOHV LV
  GXHWR3URYLQFLDO*RYHUQPHQWFRQWUROOHGGHSDUWPHQWVDQGDJHQFLHV


&RQWUDFW/LDELOLWLHV







%DODQFHEHJLQQLQJRI\HDU
  
 
$PRXQWVUHFHLYHG


'HEWFROOHFWLRQVDOORFDWHGWRUHSD\PHQWRI1%,QWHUFRQQHFWLRQ7UDQVPLVVLRQ
 
 
'HEWFROOHFWLRQVDOORFDWHGWRLQWHUHVWUHYHQXH
 
 
'HEWFROOHFWLRQUHYHQXHUHFRJQL]HG
 
 
*RYHUQPHQWJUDQWVUHFRJQL]HG
 

%DODQFHHQGRI\HDU
 
 

7KHVH DPRXQWV UHODWH WR UDWHSD\HU UHFRYHULHV RQ WKH 3(,1% &DEOH ,QWHUFRQQHFWLRQ DQG JUDQWV LQ UHVSHFW RI WKH
GHYHORSPHQWRIDQHOHFWULFDOVPDUWJULG$OOHQGRI\HDUEDODQFHVDUHFXUUHQW
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK

/RQJWHUPLQGHEWHGQHVV







7RURQWR'RPLQLRQWHUPORDQEHDULQJLQWHUHVWDWYDULDEOHUDWHVEDVHGRQ
   
GD\%DQNHUV¶$FFHSWDQFHVKHGJHGE\DIORDWLQJWRIL[HGLQWHUHVWUDWHVZDS
EHDULQJLQWHUHVWDWSD\DEOHLQPRQWKO\SD\PHQWVRISULQFLSDODQG
LQWHUHVWRIGXH)HEUXDU\


7RURQWR'RPLQLRQWHUPORDQEHDULQJLQWHUHVWDWYDULDEOHUDWHVEDVHGRQ
   
GD\%DQNHUV¶$FFHSWDQFHVKHGJHGE\DIORDWLQJWRIL[HGLQWHUHVWUDWHVZDS
EHDULQJLQWHUHVWDWSD\DEOHLQPRQWKO\SD\PHQWVRISULQFLSDODQG
LQWHUHVWRIGXH0DUFK


7RURQWR'RPLQLRQWHUPORDQEHDULQJLQWHUHVWDWYDULDEOHUDWHVEDVHGRQ
   
GD\%DQNHUV¶$FFHSWDQFHVKHGJHGE\DIORDWLQJWRIL[HGLQWHUHVWUDWHVZDS
EHDULQJLQWHUHVWDWSD\DEOHLQPRQWKO\SD\PHQWVRISULQFLSDODQG
LQWHUHVWRIGXH-XO\


7RURQWR'RPLQLRQWHUPORDQEHDULQJLQWHUHVWDWYDULDEOHUDWHVEDVHGRQ
   
GD\%DQNHUV¶$FFHSWDQFHVKHGJHGE\DIORDWLQJWRIL[HGLQWHUHVWUDWHVZDS
EHDULQJLQWHUHVWDWSD\DEOHLQPRQWKO\LQWHUHVWRQO\SD\PHQWVXQWLO$SULO
WKHQPRQWKO\SD\PHQWVRISULQFLSDODQGLQWHUHVWRIGXH0DUFK




 

3URYLQFHRI3(,ORDQEHDULQJLQWHUHVWDWWKHGD\WUHDVXU\ELOOUDWHSOXV
QRVHWWHUPVRIUHSD\PHQW

7RURQWR'RPLQLRQWHUPORDQEHDULQJLQWHUHVWDWYDULDEOHUDWHVEDVHGRQ

 

GD\%DQNHUV¶$FFHSWDQFHVKHGJHGE\DIORDWLQJWRIL[HGLQWHUHVWUDWHVZDS
EHDULQJLQWHUHVWDWSD\DEOHLQPRQWKO\SD\PHQWVRISULQFLSDODQG
LQWHUHVWRIGXH$SULO

2WKHULQGHEWHGQHVVDQGDFFUXHGLQWHUHVWSD\DEOH

 


/HDVHOLDELOLWLHV

 


   
/HVVFXUUHQWSRUWLRQ

    

  

7KHDJJUHJDWHPDWXULWLHVRIORQJWHUPLQGHEWHGQHVVLQFOXGLQJDFFUXHGLQWHUHVWVXEVHTXHQWWR0DUFKDUH
DVIROORZV







7KHUHDIWHU







$JJUHJDWHPDWXULWLHV




 

7KHDERYHDJJUHJDWHPDWXULWLHVLQFOXGHWKRVHLQUHVSHFWRIDOHDVHOLDELOLW\RIODQGOHDVHGIRUWKHGHYHORSPHQWRIDQ
HOHFWULFDOVPDUWJULG$GGLWLRQDOLQIRUPDWLRQUHJDUGLQJOHDVHOLDELOLWLHVLVSURYLGHGLQQRWH

,QDFFRUGDQFHZLWKDORDQDJUHHPHQWWKH&RUSRUDWLRQPXVWGHSRVLWSHUPRQWKLQWRDVLQNLQJIXQGIRUIXWXUH
VHWWOHPHQWRIORQJWHUPLQGHEWHGQHVV7KHEDODQFHRIWKHVLQNLQJIXQGLVSUHVHQWHGRQWKH&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQW
RI)LQDQFLDO3RVLWLRQDVUHVWULFWHGFDVK
$GGLWLRQDOLQIRUPDWLRQUHJDUGLQJGHULYDWLYHVDQGKHGJLQJLVSURYLGHGLQQRWHVDQG
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK

)LQDQFLDO,QVWUXPHQWV


0DUFK
&DVKLQFOXGLQJUHVWULFWHGFDVK
7UDGHUHFHLYDEOHVQHW
2WKHUILQDQFLDODVVHWVLQFOXGLQJFXUUHQW
7UDGHSD\DEOHVDQGDFFUXHGOLDELOLWLHV
'HULYDWLYHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVOLDELOLWLHV
/RQJWHUPLQGHEWHGQHVVLQFOXGLQJFXUUHQW


0DUFK
&DVKLQFOXGLQJUHVWULFWHGFDVK
7UDGHUHFHLYDEOHVQHW
,QYHVWPHQWV
2WKHUILQDQFLDODVVHWVLQFOXGLQJFXUUHQW
'HULYDWLYHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVDVVHWV
7UDGHSD\DEOHVDQGDFFUXHGOLDELOLWLHV
'HULYDWLYHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVOLDELOLWLHV
/RQJWHUPLQGHEWHGQHVVLQFOXGLQJFXUUHQW


'HULYDWLYHV
 )DLU9DOXH
GHVLJQDWHGDV
 $PRUWL]HG
WKURXJK
KHGJLQJ
(DUQLQJV

&RVW
LQVWUXPHQWV 
7RWDO
 















 

 
 
 



 

 
 
 

 





























 

 


 
 

 

 
 
 

 


1HWJDLQV ORVVHV E\FDWHJRU\E\SHULRGZHUHDVIROORZV

)LQDQFLDODVVHWVDWDPRUWL]HGFRVW
)LQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDWDPRUWL]HGFRVW
'HULYDWLYHVGHVLJQDWHGDVKHGJLQJLQVWUXPHQWV
















 
 





 
 




$GGLWLRQDOGHWDLOVUHJDUGLQJQHWJDLQV ORVVHV RQGHULYDWLYHVGHVLJQDWHGDVKHGJLQJLQVWUXPHQWVDUHDVIROORZV









+HGJLQJJDLQV ORVVHV UHFRJQL]HGLQRWKHUFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPH

 






7KHFDUU\LQJYDOXHVRIILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVLQFOXGHGLQFXUUHQWDVVHWVDQGFXUUHQWOLDELOLWLHVDSSUR[LPDWHWKHLUIDLU
YDOXHUHIOHFWLQJWKHVKRUWWHUPPDWXULW\QRUPDOWUDGHFUHGLWWHUPVDQGRUWKHQDWXUHRIWKHVHLQVWUXPHQWV

'HULYDWLYHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVFRQVLVWRILQWHUHVWUDWHVZDSVZLWKDILQDQFLDOLQVWLWXWLRQWKDWDUHGHVLJQDWHGDV
FDVKIORZKHGJHV7KHFDUU\LQJYDOXHVRIGHULYDWLYHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVHTXDOWKHLUIDLUYDOXHVZKLFKDUH
FDOFXODWHGDVWKHSUHVHQWYDOXHVRIWKHIXWXUHULJKWVDQGREOLJDWLRQVEHWZHHQWKHWZRSDUWLHVWRUHFHLYHRUGHOLYHU
IXWXUHFDVKIORZV7KHIDLUYDOXHVRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VLQWHUHVWUDWHVZDSVDUHFODVVLILHGDV/HYHOIDLUYDOXHVDV
WKHVLJQLILFDQWLQSXWVDUHGLUHFWO\RULQGLUHFWO\REVHUYDEOH

+HGJH HIIHFWLYHQHVV LV GHWHUPLQHG DW WKH LQFHSWLRQ RI WKH KHGJH UHODWLRQVKLS DQG WKURXJK SHULRGLF SURVSHFWLYH
HIIHFWLYHQHVV DVVHVVPHQWVWR HQVXUH WKDW DQ HFRQRPLFUHODWLRQVKLS H[LVWVEHWZHHQWKH KHGJHG LWHPDQG KHGJLQJ
LQVWUXPHQW7KH&RUSRUDWLRQHQWHUVLQWRLQWHUHVWUDWHVZDSVWKDWKDYHVLPLODUFULWLFDOWHUPVDVWKHKHGJHGLWHPVVXFK
DVUHIHUHQFHUDWHUHVHWGDWHVSD\PHQWGDWHVPDWXULWLHVDQGQRWLRQDODPRXQW$VDOOFULWLFDOWHUPVRIORQJWHUP
LQGHEWHGQHVVDQGFRUUHVSRQGLQJLQWHUHVWUDWHVZDSVPDWFKHGGXULQJWKH\HDUWKHHFRQRPLFUHODWLRQVKLSVZHUH
HIIHFWLYH
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK

)LQDQFLDO,QVWUXPHQWV FRQWLQXHG 

,IFKDQJHVLQFLUFXPVWDQFHVDIIHFWWKHWHUPVRIWKHKHGJHGLWHPVXFKWKDWWKHFULWLFDOWHUPVQRORQJHUPDWFKH[DFWO\
ZLWKWKHFULWLFDOWHUPVRIWKHKHGJLQJLQVWUXPHQWWKH&RUSRUDWLRQXVHVWKHK\SRWKHWLFDOGHULYDWLYHPHWKRGWRDVVHVV
HIIHFWLYHQHVV+HGJHLQHIIHFWLYHQHVVIRULQWHUHVWUDWHVZDSVPD\DULVHLIWKHUHLVDFUHGLWYDOXHGHELWYDOXHDGMXVWPHQW
RQDQLQWHUHVWUDWHVZDSZKLFKLVQRWPDWFKHGE\WKHFRUUHVSRQGLQJORDQRULIWKHUHDUHGLIIHUHQFHVLQFULWLFDOWHUPV
EHWZHHQWKHLQWHUHVWUDWHVZDSVDQGORDQV7KHUHZDVQRLQHIIHFWLYHQHVVGXULQJWKH\HDUVHQGHG0DUFK
DQGLQUHODWLRQWRWKHLQWHUHVWUDWHVZDSV

$GGLWLRQDOLQIRUPDWLRQUHJDUGLQJGHULYDWLYHVDQGKHGJLQJDUHSURYLGHGLQQRWHVDQG

7KHIDLUYDOXHRIRWKHUILQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGORQJWHUPGHEWLVFDOFXODWHGE\GLVFRXQWLQJWKHIXWXUHFDVKIORZRIHDFK
LQVWUXPHQWDWWKHHVWLPDWHG\LHOGWRPDWXULW\IRUWKHVDPHRUVLPLODULVVXHVDWWKHEDODQFHVKHHWGDWHRUE\XVLQJ
TXRWHGPDUNHWSULFHVZKHQDYDLODEOH7KHIDLUYDOXHRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ VRWKHUILQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGORQJWHUPGHEWLV
GHWHUPLQHGXVLQJWKHSURYLQFLDO&URZQERUURZLQJUDWHIRUVLPLODUWHUPV7KHHVWLPDWHGIDLUYDOXHRIRWKHUILQDQFLDO
DVVHWVLV ± 7KHHVWLPDWHGIDLUYDOXHRIORQJWHUPLQGHEWHGQHVVLV
 


*RYHUQPHQW*UDQWV

*RYHUQPHQWJUDQWVKDYHEHHQUHFRUGHGLQWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDVIROORZV








*RYHUQPHQWJUDQWVGHGXFWHGIURPUHODWHGH[SHQVH



*RYHUQPHQWJUDQWVGHGXFWHGIURPFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIUHODWHGDVVHW
 

*RYHUQPHQWJUDQWVUHFRJQL]HGDVLQFRPH








*RYHUQPHQWJUDQWVKDYHEHHQUHFHLYHGIRUFRQVWUXFWLRQUHODWHGWRWKH3(,1%&DEOH,QWHUFRQQHFWLRQ3URMHFWZKLFK
XSJUDGHGWKHLQWHUFRQQHFWLRQEHWZHHQWKHHOHFWULFDOV\VWHPVRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGDQGPDLQODQG&DQDGDDQGWR
FRPSHQVDWHWKH&RUSRUDWLRQIRUVHOOLQJUHQHZDEOHHQHUJ\FHUWLILFDWH¶VRQEHKDOIRIWKH3URYLQFLDO*RYHUQPHQW8QGHU
WKH FRQGLWLRQV RI WKHJUDQW UHODWHG WR WKH 3(,1% &DEOH ,QWHUFRQQHFWLRQ 3URMHFWWKH &RUSRUDWLRQ PXVWHQVXUH WKH
RQJRLQJRSHUDWLRQPDLQWHQDQFHDQGUHSDLURIWKHDVVHWVIRUDSHULRGRIILYH\HDUVDIWHUWKHHQGRIWKHSURMHFW

*RYHUQPHQWJUDQWVKDYHDOVREHHQUHFHLYHGLQUHODWLRQWRWKHGHYHORSPHQWRIDPHJDZDWWZLQGIDUPDQHOHFWULFDO
VPDUWJULG SURMHFW DQG HOHFWULFLW\ WUDQVPLVVLRQ LQIUDVWUXFWXUH  &RQWUDFW OLDELOLWLHV KDYH EHHQ UHFRUGHG IRU JUDQWV
UHFHLYHGLQDGYDQFHDQGDUHLQFOXGHGLQQRWH


5LVN0DQDJHPHQW

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VDFWLYLWLHVH[SRVHLWWRDYDULHW\RIILQDQFLDOULVNVLQFOXGLQJPDUNHWULVNFUHGLWULVNDQGOLTXLGLW\ULVN
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQXVHVYDULRXVVWUDWHJLHVWRPDQDJHWKHVHULVNV

0DUNHW5LVN
5LVNWKDWWKHIDLUYDOXHRIIXWXUHFDVKIORZVRIDILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWKHOGE\WKH&RUSRUDWLRQ
ZLOOIOXFWXDWHEHFDXVHRIFKDQJHVLQPDUNHWSULFHV LHFRPPRGLW\SULFHULVNLQWHUHVWUDWHULVN
DQGFXUUHQF\ULVN 

&UHGLW5LVN
5LVNRIORVVGXHWRWKHIDLOXUHRIWKHERUURZHURUFRXQWHUSDUW\WRIXOILOOLWVFRQWUDFWXDOREOLJDWLRQV

/LTXLGLW\5LVN
5LVNWKDWWKH&RUSRUDWLRQFDQQRWPHHWDGHPDQGIRUFDVKRUIXQGDQREOLJDWLRQZKHQLWLVGXH
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK

5LVN0DQDJHPHQW FRQWLQXHG 


0DUNHW5LVN

&RPPRGLW\SULFHULVN LVGHILQHGDVWKHULVNWKDWWKHIDLUYDOXHRIIXWXUHFDVKIORZVZLOOIOXFWXDWHEHFDXVHRIFKDQJHV
LQWKHSULFHRIHOHFWULFLW\7KH&RUSRUDWLRQPDQDJHVWKLVULVNE\HQWHULQJLQWRORQJWHUP33$¶V7KHVH33$¶VSURYLGH
SULFH DVVXUDQFH  &XUUHQWO\  RI WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ¶V HOHFWULFLW\ SURGXFWLRQ LV FRQWUDFWHG XQGHU ORQJWHUP 33$¶V
ZKLFKH[SLUHEHWZHHQDQG

,QWHUHVWUDWHULVNLVGHILQHGDVWKHULVNWKDWWKHIDLUYDOXHRUIXWXUHFDVKIORZVRIDILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWKHOGE\WKH
&RUSRUDWLRQZLOOIOXFWXDWHEHFDXVHRIFKDQJHVLQLQWHUHVWUDWHV7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VH[SRVXUHWRWKHULVNRIFKDQJHVLQ
PDUNHWLQWHUHVWUDWHVUHODWHVSULPDULO\WRWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VORQJWHUPGHEWREOLJDWLRQVZLWKIORDWLQJLQWHUHVWUDWHV

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQPDQDJHVLWVLQWHUHVWUDWHULVNE\HQWHULQJLQWRLQWHUHVWUDWHVZDSVLQZKLFKLWDJUHHVWRH[FKDQJHDW
VSHFLILHG LQWHUYDOV WKH GLIIHUHQFH EHWZHHQ IL[HG DQG YDULDEOH UDWH LQWHUHVW DPRXQWV FDOFXODWHG E\ UHIHUHQFH WR DQ
DJUHHGXSRQQRWLRQDOSULQFLSDODPRXQW$W0DUFKDIWHUWDNLQJLQWRDFFRXQWWKHHIIHFWRILQWHUHVWUDWHVZDSV
RIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VERUURZLQJVDUHDWD IL[HG UDWH RI LQWHUHVW ±  7KH IL[HGLQWHUHVWUDWHV RI WKH
VZDSVUDQJHEHWZHHQDQG ±DQG 7KHVZDSFRQWUDFWVUHTXLUHVHWWOHPHQWRIQHW
LQWHUHVWUHFHLYDEOHRUSD\DEOHRQDPRQWKO\EDVLV7KHVHWWOHPHQWGDWHVFRLQFLGHZLWKWKHGDWHVRQZKLFKLQWHUHVWLV
SD\DEOHRQWKHXQGHUO\LQJGHEW

7KHHIIHFWVRIWKHLQWHUHVWUDWHVZDSVRQWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDQGSHUIRUPDQFHDUHDVIROORZV









&DUU\LQJDPRXQW±GHULYDWLYHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWV DVVHWV 


&DUU\LQJDPRXQW±GHULYDWLYHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWV OLDELOLWLHV 

 
1RWLRQDODPRXQW
 
0DWXULW\GDWH


+HGJHUDWLR

 

&KDQJHLQIDLUYDOXHRIRXWVWDQGLQJKHGJLQJLQVWUXPHQWVVLQFHEHJLQQLQJRI\HDU

 
&KDQJHLQYDOXHRIKHGJHGLWHPXVHGWRGHWHUPLQHKHGJHHIIHFWLYHQHVV


%DODQFHLQFDVKIORZVKHGJHUHVHUYHIRUFRQWLQXLQJKHGJHV
 
 
:HLJKWHGDYHUDJHKHGJHGUDWHIRUWKH\HDU

 


$GGLWLRQDOLQIRUPDWLRQUHJDUGLQJGHULYDWLYHVDQGKHGJLQJDUHSURYLGHGLQQRWHVDQG

&XUUHQF\ULVNLVGHILQHGDVWKHULVNWKDWWKHIDLUYDOXHRIIXWXUHFDVKIORZVZLOOIOXFWXDWHEHFDXVHRIFKDQJHVLQIRUHLJQ
H[FKDQJHUDWHV7KH&RUSRUDWLRQFXUUHQWO\LQFXUVDOPRVWDOORILWVUHYHQXHVDQGH[SHQGLWXUHVLQ&DQDGLDQGROODUV
EXWGRHVKDYHVRPHH[SHQVHVUHODWHGWRLWVWXUELQHVXSSO\DQGPDLQWHQDQFHDJUHHPHQWVWKDWDUHGHQRPLQDWHGLQ
86 GROODUV  7R PLWLJDWH WKHVH ULVNV WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ PRQLWRUV WKH ULVNV DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK IRUHLJQ H[FKDQJH UDWH
IOXFWXDWLRQVDQGIURPWLPHWRWLPHPD\HQWHULQWRIRUZDUGIRUHLJQH[FKDQJHFRQWUDFWV$VDW0DUFKWKH
&RUSRUDWLRQGLGQRWKROGDQ\IRUHLJQH[FKDQJHFRQWUDFWV

&UHGLW5LVN

7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ¶V FUHGLW ULVN LV OLPLWHG WR FDVK WUDGH UHFHLYDEOHV DQG RWKHU ILQDQFLDO DVVHWV  7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ¶V
PD[LPXPH[SRVXUHWR FUHGLWULVNLQ UHODWLRQWRHDFK FODVVRIUHFRJQL]HGILQDQFLDO DVVHWVLV OLPLWHGWRWKHFDUU\LQJ
DPRXQWRIWKRVHDVVHWVDVLQGLFDWHGLQWKHVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQ7KHPD[LPXPFUHGLWH[SRVXUHGRHVQRW
WDNHLQWRDFFRXQWWKHYDOXHRIDQ\FROODWHUDORURWKHUVHFXULW\KHOGLQWKHHYHQWWKHFRXQWHUSDUW\IDLOVWRSHUIRUPLWV
REOLJDWLRQVXQGHUWKHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWLQTXHVWLRQ7KH&RUSRUDWLRQFRQVLGHUVDILQDQFLDODVVHWWREHLQGHIDXOW
ZKHQWKHERUURZHULVXQOLNHO\WRSD\LWVFUHGLWREOLJDWLRQVWRWKH&RUSRUDWLRQLQIXOOZLWKRXWUHFRXUVHE\WKH&RUSRUDWLRQ
WRDFWLRQVVXFKDVUHDOL]LQJVHFXULW\ LIDQ\LVKHOG 
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK

5LVN0DQDJHPHQW FRQWLQXHG 

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVPLQLPDOFUHGLWULVNZLWKUHVSHFWWRFDVKDVLWLVKHOGDWKLJKFUHGLWTXDOLW\ILQDQFLDOLQVWLWXWLRQV
7UDGHUHFHLYDEOHULVNLVPDQDJHGWKURXJKWKH33$SURFHVVZKHUHE\WKHFRXQWHUSDUW\WRWKH33$LVDXWLOLW\VXEMHFW
WRJRYHUQPHQWUHJXODWLRQDQGOHJLVODWLRQDQGLVDVXEVLGLDU\RIDKLJKO\UDWHGSXEOLFFRPSDQ\2IWKHWUDGHUHFHLYDEOHV
EDODQFH DW WKH HQG RI WKH \HDU      LV GXH IURP WKH XWLOLW\ WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ¶V ODUJHVW
FXVWRPHUQLO ± LVGXHIURPWKH)HGHUDO*RYHUQPHQWDQG  LVGXHIURP
WKH3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG,QIUDVWUXFWXUH6HFUHWDULDWLQUHVSHFWRI)HGHUDO*RYHUQPHQWJUDQWV$SDUWIURPWKLVWKH
&RUSRUDWLRQGRHVQRWKDYHVLJQLILFDQWFUHGLWULVNH[SRVXUHWRDQ\VLQJOHFRXQWHUSDUW\RUDQ\JURXSRIFRXQWHUSDUWLHV
KDYLQJVLPLODUFKDUDFWHULVWLFV$OORWKHUILQDQFLDODVVHWVDUHFDWHJRUL]HGDVSHUIRUPLQJDVFRXQWHUSDUWLHVKDYHDORZ
ULVN RI GHIDXOW DQG DOO FRQWUDFWXDO FDVK IORZV KDYH EHHQ PHW  1R H[SHFWHG FUHGLW ORVV SURYLVLRQV KDYH EHHQ
UHFRJQL]HG

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQDFWLYHO\PDQDJHVLWVH[SRVXUHWRFUHGLWULVNE\DVVHVVLQJWKHDELOLW\RIFRXQWHUSDUWLHVWRIXOILOOWKHLU
REOLJDWLRQV XQGHU WKH UHODWHG FRQWUDFWV SULRU WR HQWHULQJ LQWR VXFK FRQWUDFWV  7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ PDNHV GHWDLOHG
DVVHVVPHQWVRIFUHGLWTXDOLW\RIDOOFRXQWHUSDUWLHVDQGZKHUHDSSURSULDWHREWDLQVFRUSRUDWHJXDUDQWHHVFROODWHUDO
RURWKHUVHFXULW\WRVXSSRUWWKHXOWLPDWHFROOHFWLRQRIWKHVHILQDQFLDODVVHWV

/LTXLGLW\5LVN

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQDFWLYHO\PDQDJHVLWVOLTXLGLW\WKURXJKFDVKDQGGHEWPDQDJHPHQWVWUDWHJLHV6XFKVWUDWHJLHVLQFOXGH
FRQWLQXDOO\PRQLWRULQJIRUHFDVWHGDQGDFWXDOFDVKIORZVWRDVVHVVDQGIXUWKHUUHGXFHOLTXLGLW\ULVN7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶V
FDVKUHVRXUFHVWUDGHUHFHLYDEOHVRWKHUILQDQFLDODVVHWUHFHLYDEOHVDQGFDVKJHQHUDWHGIURPRSHUDWLRQVVLJQLILFDQWO\
H[FHHGWKHFXUUHQWFDVKRXWIORZUHTXLUHPHQWV


&DSLWDO0DQDJHPHQW

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ VGHEWPDQDJHPHQWSODQLVEXLOWRQWKHJRDORIHQVXULQJWKHFDSDFLW\WRPHHWORQJWHUPREOLJDWLRQV
DQG HQVXULQJ ILQDQFLDO KHDOWK ZKLOH DFKLHYLQJ WKH JURZWK SODQV RI WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ ,Q RUGHU WR IDFLOLWDWH WKH
PDQDJHPHQWRILWVFDSLWDOUHTXLUHPHQWVWKH&RUSRUDWLRQSUHSDUHVDQQXDORSHUDWLQJEXGJHWVDQGDFWXDOWREXGJHW
IRUHFDVWVRQDTXDUWHUO\EDVLV7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ VFDSLWDOFRQVLVWVRIVKRUWWHUPGHEWKDYLQJDWHUPWRPDWXULW\RIRQH
\HDU RU OHVV ORQJWHUP GHEW KDYLQJ D WHUP WR PDWXULW\ JUHDWHU WKDQ RQH \HDU DQG HTXLW\ SULPDULO\ LQ WKH IRUP RI
UHWDLQHGHDUQLQJV7KHUHKDVEHHQQRFKDQJHZLWKUHVSHFWWRWKHRYHUDOOFDSLWDOULVNPDQDJHPHQWVWUDWHJ\GXULQJ
WKH\HDU

7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ LV VXEMHFW WR DQ H[WHUQDOO\ LPSRVHG UHTXLUHPHQW WR FRQWULEXWH WR D VLQNLQJ IXQG IRU WKH IXWXUH
VHWWOHPHQWRIORQJWHUPLQGHEWHGQHVVDQGKDVFRPSOLHGZLWKWKLVUHTXLUHPHQWGXULQJWKH\HDU


&RPPLWPHQWVDQG)LQDQFLDO*XDUDQWHHV

&RPPLWPHQWV

Turbine service and warranty agreements:

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQHQWHUVLQWRVHUYLFHDQGZDUUDQW\DJUHHPHQWVLQWKHRUGLQDU\FRXUVHRIEXVLQHVV&HUWDLQDJUHHPHQWV
DUHGHQRPLQDWHGLQ86GROODUVDQGKDYHEHHQFRQYHUWHGWR&DQDGLDQGROODUVXVLQJWKHH[FKDQJHUDWHLQHIIHFWDW
0DUFK7KHFRQWUDFWVSURYLGHIRUVFKHGXOHGDQGXQVFKHGXOHGPDLQWHQDQFHDQGUHTXLUHDQQXDOPLQLPXP
SD\PHQWV VXEMHFW WR LQIODWLRQDU\ LQFUHDVHV DV DSSOLFDEOH 7KH FRPPLWWHG DPRXQWV RYHU WKH QH[W ILYH \HDUV DQG
EH\RQGDUHDVIROORZV







7KHUHDIWHU







&RPPLWPHQWV
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK

&RPPLWPHQWVDQG)LQDQFLDO*XDUDQWHHV FRQWLQXHG 
Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs):

7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ LV FRQWUDFWXDOO\ REOLJDWHG WKURXJK 33$¶V WRWDOLQJ  PHJDZDWWV ZLWK SULYDWH ZLQG GHYHORSHUV WR
SXUFKDVHDOOZLQGSRZHUSURGXFHGDQGWKHQVHOODOOZLQGSRZHU SXUFKDVHGWR0DULWLPH(OHFWULF&RPSDQ\/LPLWHG
7KHVH33$¶VH[SLUHLQ PHJDZDWWV DQG PHJDZDWWV 7KH&RUSRUDWLRQLVFRQWUDFWXDOO\REOLJDWHG
WKURXJK33$¶VWRWDOLQJPHJDZDWWVWRVHOODOOZLQGSRZHUSURGXFHGDWLWVZLQGIDUPIDFLOLWLHVWR0DULWLPH(OHFWULF
&RPSDQ\/LPLWHG7KHVH33$¶VH[SLUHLQ PHJDZDWWV  PHJDZDWWV  PHJDZDWWV 
PHJDZDWWV DQG PHJDZDWWV 
Land lease payments:

,QWKHQRUPDOFRXUVHRIEXVLQHVVWKH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVHQWHUHGLQWRDJUHHPHQWVIRUWKHXVHRIRURSWLRQWRXVHODQG
LQSHUSHWXLW\LQFRQQHFWLRQZLWKWKHRSHUDWLRQRILWVZLQGIDUPV3D\PHQWXQGHUWKHVHDJUHHPHQWVLVGHSHQGHQWRQ
WKHDPRXQWRISRZHUJHQHUDWHGE\WKHZLQGIDUPDVVHWVWKHUHIRUHIXWXUHPLQLPXPSD\PHQWVDUHLQGHWHUPLQDEOH

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQKDVDOVRHQWHUHGLQWRDOHDVHDJUHHPHQWIRUWKHXVHRIODQGLQFRQQHFWLRQZLWKWKHGHYHORSPHQWRI
DQHOHFWULFDOVPDUWJULG7KHDVVRFLDWHGIXWXUHPLQLPXPOHDVHSD\PHQWVDUHGLVFORVHGLQQRWH
Development:

$W 0DUFK   WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ KDG RXWVWDQGLQJ FRQWUDFWXDO FRQVWUXFWLRQ FRPPLWPHQWV DPRXQWLQJ WR
DSSUR[LPDWHO\  ZKLFKUHSUHVHQWVDWXUELQHVXSSO\DJUHHPHQWIRUWKHPHJDZDWW
ZLQGIDUPSURMHFWFXUUHQWO\LQWKHGHYHORSPHQWSKDVH7KHUHDUHQRDGGLWLRQDOFRQWUDFWXDOFRQVWUXFWLRQFRPPLWPHQWV
RXWVWDQGLQJ DW 0DUFK     QLO   3URMHFW IXQGLQJ IRU WKH PHJDZDWW ZLQG IDUP KDV EHHQ DUUDQJHG
WKURXJKWKH*RYHUQPHQWRI&DQDGD¶V,QYHVWLQJLQ&DQDGD,QIUDVWUXFWXUH3ODQ8QGHUWKLV3ODQWKH*RYHUQPHQWRI
&DQDGD ZLOOSURYLGHWKURXJK WKH 3URYLQFH RI 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG¶V 'HSDUWPHQW RI7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ ,QIUDVWUXFWXUH
DQG(QHUJ\XSWRDPD[LPXPRILQIXQGLQJIRUWKHSURMHFW$VRI0DUFK ±
 RISURMHFWIXQGLQJKDGEHHQUHFHLYHGRUFRPPLWWHGWRWKURXJKWKH,QYHVWLQ&DQDGD,QIUDVWUXFWXUH3ODQ

7KH&RUSRUDWLRQDOVRKDVIXQGLQJDJUHHPHQWVZLWKWKH*RYHUQPHQWRI&DQDGD±'HSDUWPHQWRI1DWXUDO5HVRXUFHV
15&DQ DQGWKURXJKWKH*RYHUQPHQWRI&DQDGD¶V,QYHVWLQJLQ&DQDGD,QIUDVWUXFWXUH3ODQWRGHYHORSDQHOHFWULFDO
VPDUWJULGRQ3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG15&DQ¶VPD[LPXPFRQWULEXWLRQWRZDUGWKHVPDUWJULGSURMHFWVKDOOQRWH[FHHG
WKHOHVVHURIRIWRWDOSURMHFWFRVWVRUDPD[LPXPRI$W0DUFKIXQGLQJLQWKHDPRXQWRI
  KDGEHHQUHFHLYHGRUFRPPLWWHGE\15&DQWRZDUGWKHSURMHFW7KHPD[LPXPFRQWULEXWLRQ
WRZDUG WKLV SURMHFW WKURXJK WKH ,QYHVWLQJ LQ &DQDGD ,QIUDVWUXFWXUH 3ODQ LV  ZLWK    QLO 
UHFHLYHGRUFRPPLWWHGDVRI0DUFK2XWVWDQGLQJFRQWUDFWXDOFRPPLWPHQWVWRVXSSOLHUVUHJDUGLQJWKLVSURMHFW
WRWDOHG QLO DVRI0DUFK

3URMHFWIXQGLQJIRUHOHFWULFLW\WUDQVPLVVLRQLQIUDVWUXFWXUHLQZHVWHUQ3(,KDVEHHQDUUDQJHGWKURXJKWKH*RYHUQPHQW
RI&DQDGD¶V,QYHVWLQJLQ&DQDGD,QIUDVWUXFWXUH3ODQ8QGHUWKLV3ODQXSWRDPD[LPXPRILQIXQGLQJ
ZLOOEHSURYLGHGIRUWKHSURMHFW$VRI0DUFK QLO RIIXQGLQJKDGEHHQUHFHLYHGRU
FRPPLWWHG
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3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG(QHUJ\&RUSRUDWLRQ
1RWHVWRWKH&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK

5HODWHG3DUW\7UDQVDFWLRQV

6DODULHVDQGEHQHILWVIRU&RUSRUDWLRQHPSOR\HHVSDLGE\DQGUHLPEXUVHGWRWKH3URYLQFHRI3(,GXULQJWRWDOHG
  

'XULQJWKH&RUSRUDWLRQUHFHLYHG  LQJUDQWVIURPWKH3URYLQFHRI3(,LQH[FKDQJH
IRUWKH&RUSRUDWLRQDFWLQJDVDQDJHQWLQWKHVDOHRI5HQHZDEOH(QHUJ\&HUWLILFDWHV

'XULQJWKH\HDUWKH&RUSRUDWLRQSURYLGHG  LQIXQGLQJIRUDSURJUDPDGPLQLVWHUHG
WKURXJKWKH3URYLQFHRI3(,WKDWVXSSRUWVHFRQRPLFVRFLDODQGFRPPXQLW\EDVHGSURMHFWVLQWKHDUHDVXUURXQGLQJ
RQHRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ VZLQGIDUPV

Key Management Compensation

.H\PDQDJHPHQWLQFOXGHVWKH&(26DODU\DQGVKRUWWHUPEHQHILWVSDLGWRWKH&(2WRWDOHG ±
 




3ULRU3HULRG&RPSDUDWLYH)LJXUHV

&HUWDLQSULRUSHULRGFRPSDUDWLYHVKDYHEHHQUHVWDWHGWRFRQIRUPWRWKHSUHVHQWDWLRQIRUPDWDGRSWHGLQWKHFXUUHQW
\HDU
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Commissioners of Prince Edward Island Liquor Control Commission
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Prince Edward Island Liquor Control Commission (the
Commission), which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2021, and the
statements of changes in equity, profit or loss and cash flow for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Commission as at March 31, 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flow for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Commission in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with those requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Commission's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Commission or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Commission's financial reporting
process.

(continues)
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:










Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Commission’s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Commission’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Commission to cease to
continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

MRSB CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS INC.
Charlottetown, PE
June 24, 2021

2
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
Statement of Financial Position
March 31, 2021
2021

2020

ASSETS
Current
Cash
Accounts receivable (Note 5)
Inventory (Note 6)
Prepaid expense

$

$

5,270,113
2,065,159
7,958,613
111,071

13,202,829
8,582,656

15,404,956
9,295,695

$ 21,785,485

$ 24,700,651

$

$

Property and equipment (Schedules 1 and 2)
Total assets

3,486,656
1,513,065
8,043,031
160,077

LIABILITIES
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 7)
Deferred revenue
Deferred lease inducements
Due to the Province of Prince Edward Island (Note 8)
Current portion of debentures payable (Note 9)
Current portion of lease liabilities (Note 10)
Debentures payable (Note 9)
Lease liabilities (Note 10)
Total liabilities

6,262,059
460,610
308,511
10,978,655
43,906
809,082
18,862,823
93,247
2,829,415

21,281,885
137,153
3,281,613

$ 21,785,485

$ 24,700,651

Contractual obligations (Note 11)

ON BEHALF OF THE PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION

_____________________________ Chair
_____________________________ Commissioner
Notes 1 - 21 are an integral part of these financial statements
3

5,090,753
368,276
372,340
14,499,996
177,053
773,467
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
Statement of Changes in Equity
Year Ended March 31, 2021
2021
Retained earnings - beginning of year

$

Net income (Statement 5)

Annual income distribution to Province of Prince Edward Island
Retained earnings - end of year

$

Notes 1 - 21 are an integral part of these financial statements
4

-

2020
$

-

23,414,429

22,468,919

23,414,429

22,468,919

(23,414,429)

(22,468,919)

-

$

-
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
Statement of Profit or Loss
Year Ended March 31, 2021
2021
Income
Sales (Note 12)

2020

$ 85,651,167

$ 83,473,652

Cost of sales (Note 6)

48,095,711

47,530,611

Gross margin

37,555,456

35,943,041

1,467,126
617,975
254,644
9,249
252,237
182,760
487,605
1,097,081
11,041,092
637,835
98,264
771,926

1,379,290
710,443
235,467
16,379
249,144
204,271
593,591
932,811
10,485,520
765,705
101,528
802,096

16,917,794

16,476,245

Income from operations

20,637,662

19,466,796

Other income (Note 16)

2,776,767

3,002,123

$ 23,414,429

$ 22,468,919

Expenses
Amortization of property and equipment (Schedules 1 and 2)
Credit and debit card charges
Insurance and property taxes (Note 13)
Interest on debentures (Notes 9, 13)
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 10)
Operating leases
Other operating expenses (Note 14)
Repairs and maintenance
Salaries and benefits (Notes 13, 15)
Store and office expenses
Travel
Utilities

Net income

Notes 1 - 21 are an integral part of these financial statements
5
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
Statement of Cash Flow
Year Ended March 31, 2021
2021
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income
Items not affecting cash:
Amortization of property and equipment
Gain on disposal of property and equipment

$ 23,414,429

2020

$ 22,468,919

1,467,126
-

1,379,290
(17,000)

24,881,555
Changes in non-cash working capital:
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expense
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue

23,831,209

552,094
(84,418)
(49,006)
1,171,307
92,334

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment
Purchase of right-of-use assets
Proceeds on disposal of property and equipment

Cash flows from financing activities
Annual income distribution to Province of Prince Edward Island
Advances (to) from the Province of Prince Edward Island
Repayment of lease liabilities
Repayment of debentures payable
Proceeds from lease liabilities
Deferred lease inducements

Increase (decrease) in cash
Cash - beginning of year

(134,289)
841,189
182,323
782,061
40,408

1,682,311

1,711,692

26,563,866

25,542,901

(628,665)
(125,422)
-

(931,949)
(3,757,083)
48,169

(754,087)

(4,640,863)

(23,414,429)
(3,521,341)
(539,038)
(177,053)
122,454
(63,829)

(22,468,919)
1,946,193
(295,426)
(201,213)
3,586,353
(63,830)

(27,593,236)

(17,496,842)

(1,783,457)

3,405,196

5,270,113

1,864,917

Cash - end of year

$

3,486,656

$

5,270,113

Cash consists of:
Cash on hand
Cash in financial intuitions

$

120,195
3,366,461

$

112,195
5,157,918

$

3,486,656

$

5,270,113

$

263,973

$

268,103

Cash flow supplementary information
Interest paid

Notes 1 - 21 are an integral part of these financial statements
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended March 31, 2021
1.

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
Prince Edward Island Liquor Control Commission (the Commission) is a wholly owned Crown
corporation of the Province of Prince Edward Island, established under the provisions of the Liquor
Control Act and is therefore a non-taxable entity under the provisions of the federal Income Tax Act.
The Commission is responsible for managing the importation, sale, and distribution of beverage
alcohol throughout Prince Edward Island. The head office is located at 3 Garfield Street in
Charlottetown with outlets in various locations across the province.

2.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with, and are in compliance with,
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB). The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial
statements are set out in Note 4.
These financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Board of Commissioners on June 24,
2021.
The board of directors have the power to amend the financial statements after issue.

3.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis and are presented in
Canadian dollars, which is the functional currency of the Commission.

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Changes in accounting standards
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS, issued and in effect as of
March 31, 2021. The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these financial
statements are summarized below.
An overview of the standards, amendments, and interpretations on the conversion to IFRS, those
adapted in the current year, and those which are issued but not yet in effect are presented below.
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
On January 23, 2020, IASB issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements to specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current.
The amendments to IAS 1 are required to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2023. The amendments must be applied retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8.
Cash
Cash is comprised of cash on hand and amounts on deposit with financial institutions.
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable arise from trade sales, Prince Edward Island Cannabis Management
Corporation, and the Province of Prince Edward Island. Amounts deemed uncollectible are written off
and deducted from the carrying value of the receivable. Amounts subsequently recovered from
accounts previously written off are credited to the allowance account in the period of recovery.
(continues)
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Inventory
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value on a first-in, first-out basis. Cost
includes the costs to purchase, duty and excise taxes, and standard freight rates for goods received.
Net realizable value represents the amount that may be realized from the sale of an inventory item
under normal business conditions. When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories are recognized as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognized.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realizable value and all losses of inventories shall
be recognized as an expense in the period the loss or write-down occurs. The amount of reversal of
any write-downs, arising from an increase in net realizable value, shall be recognized as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognized as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
Property and equipment
Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any impairment losses.
All capital asset additions over $1,000 are capitalized. Property and equipment are broken down into
components when the components are significant and have differing useful lives than the rest of the
asset. Amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis at the following rates:
Buildings
Equipment
Vehicles
Leasehold improvements
Financial information system
Right-of-use assets

2.5%, 3.33%, 5%, 6.66%
20%
20%
5% and 10%
20%
term of the lease

One-half of the annual rate is recorded in the year of acquisition; no amortization is recorded in the
year of disposal.
Leases
The Corporation recognizes right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for its leases except for certain
classes of underlying assets in which the lease terms are 12 months or less or for low valued assets.
Right-of-use assets are included in property and equipment on the statement of financial position.
The amortization expense on right-of-use assets is based on amortization of the right-of-use asset
from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or
the end of the lease term
Impairment
The Commission assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired, and impairment losses are recorded, only if there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a "loss event")
and the loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Deferred lease inducements
The Commission received inducements to extend a lease at one of its locations. This amount will be
amortized over the term of the lease to offset the cost of the leased premise.
(continues)
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). A financial asset is
measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL: the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flow; and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. All
other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL. Financial assets that are held for trading
or managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL
because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows nor held both to collect contractual
cash flows and to sell financial assets.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after
the Commission changes its business model for managing financial assets. There were no changes
to any of the Commission business models during the current or prior year.
The Commission classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan
commitments, as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. The Commission derecognizes a financial
liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Commission currently has legally enforceable right to set
off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
The Commission has classified its financial assets and liabilities as follows:
Cash - fair value through profit or loss
Accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, debentures payable, lease liabilities,
and due to the Province of Prince Edward Island - amortized cost
Transaction costs for fair value through profit or loss instruments are recognized as profit or loss
immediately while transaction costs for other financial instruments form part of the original value of
the financial instrument.
De-recognition of a financial instrument occurs when the contractual rights to the cash flow generated
by the asset expire, when the financial asset and substantially all of the risks and rewards are
transferred to a third party, or when the obligation in the contract is discharged, cancelled, or expires.
(continues)
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue is derived from the sale of goods and other income from the rendering of services.
Revenue is measured by reference to the fair value of the consideration received or receivable by the
Commission for the goods or services supplied, exclusive of sales tax, deposits, and health tax.
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured, collection is probable, the costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured, and
when the Commission transfers control of the goods to the customer.
Other income includes permit, license, marketing fees, and limited time offer promotions. Revenues
from permits and license fees are recognized when they can be reliably measured and the
associated right to sell or produce beverage alcohol has been utilized. Revenues from marketing fees
are recognized when the amount of revenues can be reliably measured and it is probably that
economic benefits will flow to the Commission. Marketing fees are earned during the nine marketing
periods of the fiscal year. Any variable amounts due can be reliably measured at the end of each
marketing period. All other revenue amounts can be reliably measured at the beginning of the
marketing period. All incremental costs of the programs are the responsibility of the supplier.
Marketing fees do not span multiple fiscal years resulting in no restatement of prior fiscal years for
contract revenues under marketing fees.
The Commission sells gift cards to its customers and initially records the amount to deferred
revenue. Revenue is recognized as the gift cards are redeemed. If, in the opinion of management,
the likelihood of the gift card balance not being redeemed is highly probably, then the revenue will be
recognized at that time.
Expenses
Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis in the period in which the transaction or event that
gave rise to the expense occurred.
Significant accounting judgments and estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make
estimates, judgments, and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues, and expenses. The actual results may materially differ from management's estimation.
Items requiring the use of significant estimates include useful lives of property and equipment,
accrued liabilities, legal contingencies and impairment. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis based on historical experience, best knowledge of current events
and conditions and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
including expectations of future events. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results, and actual results may ultimately differ from these estimates.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recorded in the period in which the estimate is reversed if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of revision and in future periods if the revision affects
both the current and future periods.
Future changes in significant accounting policies
A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet effective
for the year ended March 31, 2021 and have not been adopted by the Commission in preparing these
financial statements. These changes are not expected to have a material impact on the
Commission's financial statements.
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5.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
2021
Trade accounts receivable
Province of Prince Edward Island
Prince Edward Island Cannabis Management Corporation

2020

$

1,584,237
(6,491)
1,577,746
(64,681)

$

1,973,218
87,172
69,450
2,129,840
(64,681)

$

1,513,065

$

2,065,159

Allowance for doubtful accounts

All amounts in the accounts receivable balance are short-term. The net carrying value of accounts
receivable is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value.
All of the Commission's trade and other receivables have been reviewed for indications of
impairment. It is management's assessment that an allowance of $64,681 (2020 - $64,681) is
required to fairly state the value of accounts receivable.
The receivables from the Prince Edward Island Cannabis Management Corporation consist primarily
of accruals to account for the shared use of resources of the Commission and is based on a best
estimate of the cost of those resources used.
The receivable from the Province of Prince Edward Island primarily relates to a wage reimbursement
for one employee on secondment to the Commission. The carrying amount of the receivable is
considered a reasonable approximation of fair values as this financial asset is expected to be paid
within the year, such that the time value of money is not significant.
6.

INVENTORY
2021
Warehouse
Stores
In-transit

2020

$

3,987,796
3,929,549
125,686

$

4,237,470
3,501,251
219,892

$

8,043,031

$

7,958,613

Inventories recognized in the statement of financial position consist of liquor products held for sale. In
2021, a total of $48,095,711 (2020 - $47,530,611) of inventories was included in the statement of
profit or loss as cost of sales.
In-transit inventory consists of beverage alcohol that has been customs cleared at the dock in Halifax
as part of a consolidated load destined for three liquor boards in the Maritimes. The Commission
owns the inventory in this case after it has been cleared at the point of entry into Canada.
There were no write-downs of inventories. No reversals of previous write-downs were recognized as
a reduction of expense in 2021 or 2020. None of the inventories are pledged as security for liabilities.
7.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
2021
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

$

11

6,262,059

2020
$

5,090,753
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8.

DUE TO THE PROVINCE OF PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
Prince Edward Island Liquor Control Commission is a wholly owned Crown Corporation of the
Province of Prince Edward Island. The Commission's employee salaries and benefits are paid by the
Province and are subsequently reimbursed by the Commission. Net profit earned during the period is
payable to the Province.
2021
Due to the Province of Prince Edward Island

9.

$ 10,978,655

2020
$ 14,499,996

DEBENTURES PAYABLE
2021
Province of PEI - 4.07%, repayable in annual blended
installments of $49,488. The loan matures on January 2,
2024.
Province of PEI - 4.2%, repayable in annual blended
installments of $86,542. The loan matured on September 13,
2020.
Province of PEI - 1.81%, repayable in annual blended
installments of $52,747. The loan matured on February 5,
2021.

$

Current portion
$

137,153

2020

$

179,342

-

83,054

-

51,810

137,153
(43,906)

314,206
(177,053)

93,247

$

137,153

Principal repayments of long term debt are expected to be repaid over the next three years as follows:
2022
2023
2024

12

$

43,906
45,693
47,554

$

137,153
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10. LEASE LIABILITIES
2021
The Commission leases 10 retail outlets, a warehouse and
office space. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of terms and conditions.
Current portion

2020

$

3,638,497
(809,082)

$

4,055,080
(773,467)

$

2,829,415

$

3,281,613

$

809,082
748,122
652,892
619,167
470,630
1,361,877

Future minimum capital lease payments are approximately:
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter
Total minimum lease payments

4,661,770

Less: amount representing interest at various rates

1,023,273
$

3,638,497

11. CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
The Commission has entered into contracts with various suppliers for hardware maintenance,
software support services, and security services. The total of these contracts is $941,517 and they
expire between one and three years.
12. SALES
2021

2020

Gross receipts
Less taxes collected and remitted
Provincial Health Tax
Harmonized Sales Tax

$124,316,872

$121,112,506

21,828,364
16,837,341

21,246,773
16,392,081

Sales

$ 85,651,167

$ 83,473,652

13
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13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
These financial statements include the results of normal operating transactions with various
provincial departments, Crown corporations, and agencies with which the Commission is related.
Operating transactions with related parties, such as insurance and property taxes of $129,637 (2020
- $139,225) and interest on debentures of $9,249 (2020 - $16,379), are recorded at rates as
determined by the Province of Prince Edward Island.
Key management received $592,729 (2020 - $566,797) during the year for salaries and benefits.
Post-employment benefits are the responsibility of the province and are not included in these financial
statements.
The Commission's employees salaries and benefits are paid by the province and subsequently
reimbursed by the Commission.
Profit earned during the period is payable to the Province. The outstanding balance due to the
Province at year end is $10,978,655 (2020 - $14,499,996).
Management and staff of the Prince Edward Island Liquor Control Commission (PEILCC) assisted in
the development, management, and ongoing operation of the Prince Edward Island Cannabis
Management Corporation. An estimation of the cost of these services has been expensed in various
accounts in the amount of $466,722 (2020 - $396,602). Interest received from PEICMC on line of
credit was $10,342.
14. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Other operating expenses include consulting, legal, professional development, security and vehicle
expenses. Included as an expense for the current year is a provision for bad debt of $Nil (2020 $Nil).

14
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15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Pension benefits
Permanent employees of the Commission participate in the Province of Prince Edward Island Civil
Service Superannuation Pension Plan (the Plan) which is a multi-employer contributory defined
benefit pension plan. The Plan provides a pension on retirement based on two percent of the average
salary for the highest three years times the number of years of pensionable service for service to
December 31, 2013, and two percent of the career average salary indexed with cost of living
adjustments for service after 2013. Indexing is subject to the funded level of the plan after December
31, 2016. The Plan is administered by the Province of Prince Edward Island. The Commission's
annual portion of contribution's to the Plan of $473,524 (2020 - $445,415) was paid by the Province
and is not reflected in these financial statements. Any unfunded liability of the Plan is the
responsibility of the Province and therefore no liability has been recognized in these financial
statements. For additional information on the Plan, see the Province's consolidated financial
statements.
Retiring allowance
The Commission provides a retirement allowance to its permanent employees. The amount paid to
eligible employees at retirement is based on the number of years of service and the rate of pay in
effect at the retirement date. The benefit costs and liabilities related to the allowance are assumed by
the Province and are not included in these financial statements.
Sick leave
Classified employees are credited 1.25 (1.5 - excluded employees) days per month for use as paid
absences in the year, due to illness or injury. Under existing employment agreements, employees are
allowed to accumulate unused sick day credits each year up to the allowable maximum. Accumulated
credits may be used in future years to the extent the employee's illness or injury exceeds the current
year's allocation. The use of accumulated sick days for sick leave compensation ceases on
termination of employment and there is no obligation to settle these amounts with cash payments. A
liability has not been calculated and no accrual has been recorded in these financial statements. The
related liability is recorded by the Province. Salary expense is included in these financial statements.
16. OTHER INCOME
2021
LTO sales
Marketing fees
Program fees
LTO program fees
Miscellaneous
Amortization of leasehold Inducement
Permits, fees and licenses
Gain on disposal of property and equipment

15

2020

$

1,417,110
471,035
366,885
360,117
78,835
63,831
18,954
-

$

1,477,601
420,395
403,426
414,953
60,545
64,075
144,128
17,000

$

2,776,767

$

3,002,123
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17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Commission applies IFRS 9 when accounting for its financial instruments. IFRS 9 specifies how
an entity should classify and measure financial assets and financial liabilities.
The carrying amounts presented in the statement of financial position relate to the following
categories of financial assets and liabilities:
2021
Financial assets
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or
loss
Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Non-current
Debentures payable
Lease liabilities
Current
Due to the Province of Prince Edward Island
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Current portion of debentures payable
Current portion of lease liabilities

$

3,486,656
1,513,065

2020

$

5,270,113
2,065,159

4,999,721

7,335,272

93,247
2,829,415
2,922,662

137,153
3,281,613
3,418,766

10,978,655
6,262,059
43,906
809,082

14,499,996
5,090,753
177,053
773,467

21,016,364

23,960,035

18. FAIR VALUE
Financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on initial recognition except for certain
related party transactions. Measurement in subsequent periods is based on fair value through profit
and loss or at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
Financial assets and liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position at fair market value are
categorized based on the fair value hierarchy of inputs. The Level 1 hierarchy is unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities. This level of inputs is used to measure the
fair value of cash.
Fair value for accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, amounts due to/from the
Province of Prince Edward Island approximate their carrying amounts due to their short term natures.
The fair value of debentures payable and lease liabilities are not materially different from their
carrying value as there has not been a significant fluctuation in interest rates.

16
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19. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Commission is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments. The Corporation's
financial assets and liabilities by category are summarized in Note 17. The following analysis
provides information about the Commission's risk exposure and concentration as of March 31, 2021.
(a) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that the Commission will incur a loss because a customer fails to meet an
obligation. The Commission is exposed to this risk for financial instruments classified as financial
assets measured at amortized cost by granting credit to customers. The Commission's maximum
exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of these financial assets recognized at the
reporting date, $1,513,065 (2020 - $2,065,159).
The Commission has mitigated its exposure to this risk through the limited extension of credit and
its contractual relationships with its business partners. The Commission's management considers
that an allowance of $64,681 (2020 - $64,681) is required for the above loans and receivables to
be fairly stated. The loans and receivables are shown net of the expected credit losses.
The expected credit losses were calculated by reviewing the aging of receivables and assigning
higher probability of credit losses to balances outstanding for longer periods of time. The financial
condition of customers was also evaluated based on experience.
With respect to financial assets measured at amortized cost, the Commission is not exposed to
any significant credit risk exposure to any single supplier. Trade receivables consist of a large
number of customers in various industries and geographical areas. Management considers the
credit quality of trade receivables to be good.
Some of the unimpaired financial assets measured at amortized costs are past due as at the
reporting date. The aging of unimpaired assets is as follows:
Current

$

931,585

$

282,898
264,803
33,779
1,513,065

Less than 30 days
30 - 60 days
61 days -1 year
More than 1 year

$

1,062,863

$

683,090
219,677
99,529
2,065,159

(b) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency rate risk,
interest ate risk and other price risk. The Commission's market risk management focuses on the
unpredictability of financial and economic markets and seeks to minimize potential effects on the
Corporation's financial performance. In common with many organizations that purchase in foreign
currencies, the Commission may be exposed to a marginal degree of currency risk. Management
has mitigated the exposure to this risk by limiting the number of purchase transactions in foreign
currency.
The Commission's policy is to minimize interest rate cash flow risk exposure on long-term
financing. Long-term borrowing is at fixed rates.
(continues)
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19. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Commission would be unable to meet its obligations. The
Commission manages liquidity needs by monitoring scheduled debt servicing payments for long
term financial liabilities as well as cash inflows and outflows due in day-to-day business. The data
used for analysing these cash flows is consistent with that used in the contractual maturity analysis
below. Liquidity needs are monitored in various time bands, on a day-to-day and week-to-week
basis, as well as on the basis of a rolling 30 day outlook. Net cash requirements are compared to
available borrowing facilities in order to determine any surplus or shortfall.
The Commission's objective is to maintain cash and marketable securities to meet its liquidity
requirements for a minimum 60 day period. This objective was met for the reporting period.
Funding for long term liquidity needs are secured by adequate amounts of committed credit
facilities. The Commission's existing cash resources, trade receivables, and cash generated from
operations significantly exceed the current cash outflow requirements.
The Commission's contractual financial liabilities as at March 31, 2021 matures as follows:

Current
Within 6
months
Accounts payable
liabilities
Due to the Province
Lease liabilities
Debentures payable

and

Non-current

6 to 12 months

1 to 5 years

After 5 years

accrued
$

6,262,059
404,541
21,953

$

10,978,655
404,541
21,953

$

1,618,164
93,247

$

1,211,251
-

$

6,688,553

$ 11,405,149

$

1,711,411

$

1,211,251

20. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The capital structure of the Commission currently consists of amounts due to related parties,
debentures payable, and lease liabilities. The Commission manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Commission may arrange
more loans or advances from related parties. Management reviews its capital management approach
on a regular basis. The Commission is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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21. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The recent outbreak of the Coronavirus Disease 2019, or COVID-19, has spread across the globe
and is impacting worldwide economic activity. This global pandemic poses the risk that the
Commission or its clients, employees, contractors, suppliers and other partners may be unable to
conduct regular business activities for an indefinite period of time. While it is not possible at this time
to estimate the impact that COVID-19 could have on the Commission's business, the continued
spread of COVID-19 and the measures taken by the federal, provincial and municipal governments to
contain its impact could adversely impact the Commission's business, financial condition or results of
operations. The extent to which the COVID-19 outbreak impacts the Commission's results will
depend on future developments that are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted, including new
information that may emerge concerning the spread of the virus and government actions.
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208,139
628,665

4,491,838
-

22,378,714

$ 27,017,594 $

754,088 $

125,423

224,265

7,424,961

4,638,880

$
196,261
-

63,908 $
6,254,117
3,876,937
266,953

Additions

-

-

-

-

-

-

Disposals
and Write
Downs

4,764,303

23,007,379

4,699,977
-

7,649,226

773,789

16,948,111

4,091,146
-

5,357,843

63,908 $
$
6,254,117
4,015,476
4,073,198
3,336,155
266,953
147,491

Accum
Amort
Beginning
of Year

Notes 1 - 21 are an integral part of these financial statements

622,334

844,792

174,418
-

279,937

$
146,670
217,220
26,547

Amort
in the
Year

$ 27,771,682 $ 17,721,900 $ 1,467,126 $

$

Cost
End
of Year

20

The Commission has not pledged any of its property, plant, and equipment as security.

Right-of-use assets

Land
$
Buildings
Equipment
Vehicles
Leasehold
improvements
Financial information
systems

Cost
Beginning
of Year

-

-

-

-

-

-

Disposals
and Write
Downs

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
SCHEDULE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

1,396,123

17,792,903

4,265,564
-

5,637,780

3,368,180

5,214,476

434,413
-

2,011,446

$
63,908
4,162,146
2,091,971
3,553,375
519,823
174,038
92,915

Net
Book
Value

$ 19,189,026 $ 8,582,656

$

Accum
Amort
End
of Year

Schedule 1
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93,849
931,948

4,397,989

21,578,786

$ 22,460,583 $ 4,689,031 $

3,757,083

603,576

6,852,554

881,797

$
24,378
77,410
132,735

63,908 $
6,229,739
3,799,528
235,068

Additions

Cost
End
of Year

Accum
Amort
Beginning
of Year

4,638,880

22,378,715

4,491,838

7,424,961

213,180

16,230,281

3,911,970

5,101,211

560,609

818,681

179,176

256,632

$
155,203
212,681
14,989

Amort
in the
Year

21

(132,019) $ 27,017,595 $ 16,443,461 $ 1,379,290 $

-

(132,019)

-

(31,169)

$
63,908 $
$
6,254,117
3,860,273
3,876,938
3,123,474
(100,850)
266,953
233,353

Disposals
and Write
Downs

Notes 1 - 21 are an integral part of these financial statements

Right-of-use assets

Land
$
Buildings
Equipment
Vehicles
Leasehold
improvements
Financial information
systems

Cost
Beginning
of Year

Accum
Amort
End
of Year

Net
Book
Value

Schedule 2

773,789

16,948,111

4,091,146

5,357,843

3,865,091

5,430,604

400,692

2,067,118

(100,851) $ 17,721,900 $ 9,295,695

-

(100,851)

-

-

$
$
63,908
4,015,476
2,238,641
3,336,155
540,783
(100,851)
147,491
119,462

Disposals
and Write
Downs

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
SCHEDULE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
LOTTERIES COMMISSION
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
The financial statements have been prepared using the accounting policies specified by
IFRS, issued and in effect as of March 31, 2021. The significant accounting policies used
in the preparation of these financial statements are summarized below.
These accounting policies have been used throughout all of the periods presented.
b) Presentation of the Financial Statements
The financial statements are presented in accordance with International Accounting
Standard 1 (IAS 1), "Presentation of Financial Statements". The Commission has elected
to present a single statement of comprehensive income. The financial statements have
been prepared on a historical cost basis and are presented in Canadian dollars, which is
the functional currency of the Commission.
c) Continuity of Operations
On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the Coronavirus COVID-19
(COV!D-19) outbreak a pandemic. This has resulted in governments worldwide, induding
the Canadian and provincial governments, enacting emergency measures to combat the
spread of the virus. These measures, which include the implementation of trave! bans,
self-imposed quarantine periods, closures of non-essential businesses, and physical
distancing, have caused material disruption to businesses in Atlantic Canada and
globally, resulting in an economic slowdown.
On March 15, 2020, ALC ceased ail video lottery operations and closed its entertainment
centre. Operations resumed on June 26, 2020 when the Province moved into Phase 4 of
the Renew PE1 Together plan. Operations were again halted for a number of days in
December and March as a result of province wide circuit breaker measures.
The COVID-19 situation is dynamic, causing significant uncertainty regarding when video
lottery operations and the entertainment centre will operate. The ultimate duration and
magnitude of the impact on the economy and the financial effect on ALC's future
revenues, operating results, and overall financial performance is not known at this time;
however, the impact could be material. At the reporting date, ALC determined that
COVID-19 had no impact on its significant accounting poiicies, and its consolidated
financial statements were prepared on a going concern basis.

192

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III - PART B 2020-2021

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III - PART B 2020-2021

193

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
LOTTERIES COMMISSION
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued...)
g) International Financial Reporting Standards Not Yet in Effect
A number of new standards, amendments to standards, and interpretations of standards
have been issued by the international Accounting Standards Board and the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee, the application of which is effective for
periods beginning on or after Aprii 1, 2021. The Commission has chosen not to early
adopt as allowed by the Internationa! Financial Reporting Standards. The impact of these
new accounting pronouncements is unknown atthistimeh) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Commission's risk management poHcies are part of the overal! management of the
entity's operations. Management's direct involvement in day-to-day operations identifies
risks and variations from expectations leading to changes in risk management activities,
requirements, and actions. As part of the overall management of the entity's operations,
management considers avoidance of undue concentrations of risk in managing the
Commission's exposure.

4. Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with iFRS requires the use of
judgments, assumptions, and estimates as at the date of the financial statements that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods presented.
Measurement uncertainty exists when there is a variance between the recognized amount
and another reasonable amount. Some accounting measurements require management's

best estimate, based on assumptions as at the financial statement date that reflects the most
probable set of economic conditions and planned courses of action.
Items requiring the use of significant estimates include expected credit losses of $98,075
(2020 - $99,275), and amounts recorded in Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc. (ALC) financiai
statements such as the useful iives of tangible and intangible assets, impairment of financial
and non financial assets, accrued liabilities, employee future benefits, development costs,
fair value of financial instruments, liabiiities for unclaimed prizes, and Player Loyalty Program
which all impact the net distribution and allocation of undistributed income or loss to the
Commission. Actual results could differ from the estimates made by management in these
financial statements, and these differences, which may be materiaS, could require
adjustments in subsequent reporting periods.
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
LOTTERIES COMIVIISS10N
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

7. Financial Risk Management (continued...)
Liquidity risk management
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Commission will not be able to meet all its cash outflow
obligations as they come due. The Commission mitigates this risk by monitoring cash activities
and expected outflows. The Commission does not have material liabilities that can be caiied
unexpectedly at the demand of a lender or claimant. The Commission has no material
commitments for capital expenditures and there is no need for such expenditures in the normal
course of operations. All current liabilities are fully funded by the current assets of the
Commission.

There have been no significant changes from the previous year in the exposure to risk or
policies, procedures, and methods used to measure the risk.
8. Investment in Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc. (ALC)
The Commission uses the equity method to account for its investment in ALC which involves
recognizing its share of income and losses less distributions. ALC reported the following
results in its financial statements:

2021

$

(in thousands)
Current assets
Non current assets

Current liabilities
Non current liabiiities

2020

$

(in thousands)

64,252

63,788

205,037

200,648

(75,430)

(103,982)

(116,380)

(82.613)

Shareholder equity

89.877

65.443

Commission portion of shareholder equity

-^776

3.968
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
LOTTERIES COMMISSION
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2021

10. Grants to the Harness Racing Industry
Grants to the harness racing industry provided through the Commission consist of the
foliowing;

2021 2020

$

Grant to PE1 Harness Racing Industry Association
Grant to Prince County Horsemen's Club
Grant to Atiantic Provinces Harness Racing Commission
Grants to support the Matinee Racetracks
Grants for sales tax due from pari-mutue! wagering
Grants for other expenses

2,491,000

122,500
110,567
25,946
316,911

$

2,480,000

115,000
111,233
13,782
535,150

68.575
3.135.499

3.255.165

2021

2020

11. Accounts Receivable

$

Other receivables
Less: Expected credit losses

98,075
(98.075)

$

99,275
r99.275)

12. Grant to the City of Charlottetown
The grant to the City of Charlottetown is pursuant to an arrangement between the City and
the Province of Prince Edward Island, whereby the City was to receive $400,000 per annum
for ten years beginning with the year ended December 31, 2005. The original agreement
ended in December 2014. Treasury Board authorized a five year extension of the agreement
for fiscal year 2015-1 6 to 2019-20. Although the agreement expired in 2020, the Commission
agreed to extend the grant by one year and included a $400,000 grant to the City of
Chariottetown in the 2021 budget. This amount is subject to adjustment if the Chariottetown
gaming entertainment centre operates less than 300 days in a given year. Due to the public
health circumstances resulting from the COViD-19 pandemic the facility was not open for the
required 300 days and as a result the amount payable for 2020-21 was determined to be
$345,333.
13. Responsible Gaming Strategy
Implementation of the Province's Responsible Gaming Strategy began in 2010. The
objective of the strategy is to prevent and reduce problems associated with gaming, while
maximizing its potential social and economic aspects for islanders. Activities carried out by
the Department of Health and Weliness amounted to $213,310 (2020 - $200,533).
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
LOTTERIES COMMISSION
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

15. Related Party Transactions
The Commission is owned by the Province of Prince Edward Island. Any excess revenues
over expenses of the Commission are distributed to the Province as shown on the statement
of changes in sharehoider equity. Other transactions with the Province, its Crown
corporations, and agencies are recorded at rates as determined by the Province.
There are resources provided to the Commission by the Province of Prince Edward Island
such as office facilities, support sen/ices, salaries, and employee future benefits. These
costs are assumed by the Province and not reflected in these financial statements.
in prior years, the Commission did not have a separate bank account, and ail transactions
were processed through the Province's bank account- At the beginning of fiscal year 201920, the Commission opened a separate bank account for processing aSI Commission
transactions.

The following is a summary of operations conducted by the Atlantic Lottery Corporation
Inc. (ALC) on behalf of the Commission. Net profits were distributed to the Commission as
follows:
Net Profit

Gross
Profit
Lottery ticket sales - in person
Lottery ticket sales - online

Expenses

Net Profit

2021

2020

11,793,684

(7,052,947)

4,740,737

4,241,421

3,496,018

(782,386)

2,713,632

720,560

8,061,256

12,227,986

Video lottery sales

12.146,594

(4,085,338)

Red Shores at Charlottetown Driving Park

10,632,132

(10,862,548)

(230,416)

1,706,858

1.615,365

(2.194,535)

(579.170)

(221.787)

Red Shores at Summerside Raceway

Total

I)

1_8fi7fi0?8

included in the net profit distribution is an expense of $288,146 (2020 - $285,000) that ALC
remitted to the Interprovincial Lottery Corporation on behalf of the Commission.
These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the
exchange amount, which is the amount of net profit attributable to the Commission as
determined by the net profit of ALC in accordance with ALC's financial reporting framework.
16. Pensions and Employee Benefits
Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc. participates in a multiple-empioyer defined benefit
contributory pension p!an. ALC also provides certain post-employment heaithcare benefits,
long service awards, extended health and dental benefits, life insurance, and ad-hoc
supplementary pensions. The portion of expenditures allocated to the Commission through

ALC's profit distributions related to pensions is $430,307 (2020 - $713,794) and $180,325
(2020 - $180,598) related to future employee benefits.
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